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Marks and Spencar plc

STRATEGIC REPORT

Review of the business and future developments

Marks and Spencer plc {the ‘Company'} is the main trading company of the Marks & Spencer group of companies. The Company and
its subsidianes (the ‘Group’) are one of the UK's leading retailers of clothing, food and home products. The Group employs over
80,000 people and has around 1,487 stores including Simply Food franchised stores The Group also trades in wholly-owned stores
in the Republic of ireland and the Czech Republic, through partly-owned stores in a number of European countries and India and in
franchises within Asia, Europe and the Middle East.

In Novemnber 2017 we announced the beginning of a five-year transformation programme. The first phase is about restoring the
basics, getting the organisational structure and infrastructure of the business fit for the future. The objective of this programme s not
to "manage decline” but to return M&S 1o sustainabie, profitable growth. Despite considerable changes and progress in restoring
the basics, we remain in the first phase of the transformation and our In-year performance reflects this.

We are making good progress with the reshaping of our full-line estate and have closed 35 full-Jine stores as part of our programme
as at 30 March 2019, with sales transfer rates to nearby stores remaining abave 20%. Although we anticipate further net reductions in
overall retad space, and we currently expect to cose a further ¢ 85 {ull-line stores and .25 Simply Food stores in addition to the 35
full-kine stores closed in FY 18/19, we believe the current retail environment will allow us to secure some excellent sites for relocations.

The Intesnational business was already fully embarked on rationalisation and repositioning prior 1o the transforrmation programme
and further good progress has been made. Our objective is to create a much more competitive localised version of M&S in those
selected markets where we can attain a sustainable market share.

Last year we set out firm 1argets for cost savings as part of the first phase of transformation We have made good progress in the year,
delivering savings of c.£100m, in addition to the operating costs of stores that have closed, and are on the way to creating a leaner,
more efficient cost base for the business.

Savings in FY18/1% derived from the retail management restructure, the IT transformation plan, propenty costs, depreciation and
central costs enabled the business to offset infiation, new space and channe! shift with the result that full year UK operating costs
declined by 1. 2%

In February 2019, we announced the creation of a new 50/50 JV with Ocado Group Pk the UK's leading pure play digital grocer,
which will transform online grocery shopping for UK consumers. Under the JV, M&S acquired a 50% share of Ocado's UK retail
business, which will be supported by Ocade Smart Platform technology, for an initial consideration of £562.5m and deferred
congideration of up to £187.5m, plus interest The Ocado JV s expacted to be recognised by M&S as an associate applying the equity
method of accounting, reflecting the significant influence that M&S will have over the entity.

The JV combines the strength of M&S's brand and its leading food quality and innovation with Ocado’s unique and proprietary
technology, to create an unrivalled online offer for customers. In bringing the best together, the JV will benefit existing and new UK
customaers, colleagues and suppliers .

Marks and Spercer pic is mcorporated in the United Kingdom and domiciled in England and Wales The Company's registered office
is Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London W2 TNW

The financial statements are made up to the nearest Saturday to 31 March each year The current financial year is the 52 weeks ended
30 March 2019 (the 'vear’). The prior financial year was the 57 weeks endad 31 March 2018.

Further information that fulfiis the strategic review requirements of the Companies Act 2006 can be found in the following sections of
the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report 2019, which does not form part of this repon.

Strategic Report on pages 1 - 33

{Chairman's statement on pages 2 = 3

Chief Executive's statement on pages 4 - §

Our people on page 15 - 17
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Resutts
52 wareks ended 30 March 2019 52 wesks ended 31 March 2018
Before Adjusting Adjuating Before Adyatag
Items itams Total Adjustng Hems herrs Total
} Noves £m £fm fm £fm fm fm
Revenue 2,3 10,377.3 - 10,377.3 10,698 2 - 10,698.2
Operatingprofit 2,35 $01.0 (4145 186.5 6706 668.3) 2023
Finance income ’ -] 138 - 338 241 - 241
Finance costs . & [111.8) - {111.4) {1138} - {1138)
Profit before tax 4,5 5232 @145 1087 580 ¢ {468 3) 11246
Income tax expense 7 (105.1) 545 [50.5) {125 4) BLS (35.8)
Profit for the year 418.1 3600 58.1 4555 (381.7 738
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 4143 {3600y 5413 4521 (381 7} 04
Non-controlling interests 348 - 38 34 - 34
4181 {380.0% 58.1 4555 (381.7} 738

Group revenue decreased to £10,377.3m compared with £10,698.2m last year. Group revenues decreased, adversely impacted by
store closures in Clothing & Home, Easter timing and our investments in trusted value in Food. international revenue ako declined
largely due to the closure of stores in exit markets and the sale of the Group’s business in Hong Kong

Group operating profit before adjusting tems decreased by 10 4% to £601.0m. The Group recognised adjusting items before tax of
£414.5m duning the year (last year £468.3m) in relation to our strategk programmes which include: net costs associated with the
implementation of strategic programmas in relation to UK store estate, organisation, operational transformation, IT restructure, UK
logistics, charges arising in relation to changes to pay and pensions and Inter national store closures and impairments {the closure of
International owned businesses); impairments and write-off of the carrying value of UK stores and other property charges; the
reduction in M&S Bank charges incurred in refation to the insurance mis-selling provision; guaranteed minimum pension and other
pension equalisation; and charges relating to establishing the Ocado JV {refer to note 5).

Net finance costs were £77.8m compared with £89.7m last year primarily due to a decrease in interest payable as a result of the
repayment of the US$500m bond which matured in December 2017. Group profit before tax was £108.7m compared with £112.6m
last year.
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Key performance indicators

Group revenue

Group profit before tax (PBT) & adjusting items

-3.0%

£10.4bn

Group Revenue decreased, adversely impacied by store dosures in
Clothing & Home, Easter timing and our investments in trusted value
in Food International revenue also declined largely due to the
closure of stores in exit markets and the safe of the Group's business
in Hong Kong.

99%

£523.2m

Profit before tax and adjusting items was down year-on-year
principatly due to the reduction in UK gross profit, partially
offset by the decrease in operating costs in the year.

Food

Like-for-like sales (see page 119 for defnition)

Value for money parception

Like for-like performance was down but we saw encouraging volume
growth in the final quarter,

The proportion of customers wha rated us highly on vaiue for
money. We have started to address our value for money
perception through our marketing and price reductions.

03% w8 e
-0 3, ""590/0
23 NN
Availability Quality perception'

Qur availability is behind the industry average and we are tackling
this through our "Fuse” prograrmnme

92 6% +0.3%

Clothing & Home

Like-for-like sales (see page 119 for definition)

The proportion of customers who rated us highly on Guality Owr
Food strategy is 1o “protact the magic™ including our unique
quality, freshness, and innovation credentials

+85%

1 Hased on data cover ng stoses Irom 2018 crwyards tollawmg a reset in internal

messutemants

Value for money perception

Like-for-like revenue was down this year. Encouaging progress in Q3
was offset by weak availability in G4.

9% - e o (R

o« R

-1.6%

Ciothing & home space

The proportion of customers who rated us highly on valve for
money. We are focused on restoring our reputation for style and

value.

+65%

Style perception”

We have made good progress in reshaping our Clothing & Home space,
with a reduction of 4%

1718 11.1maq R

-4.0%

The proportion of customers who rated us highly on style. We saw
an encouraging customer respanse 1o same of our ranges this year
such as our Denim Best Ever Fit.

+58%

2 Based on stores and anline data from X8 onvrds follewang a resel in meernal

measurements
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Key performance indicators (continuad)

Stores

Footfall (average per week)

Transactions (average per week)

Net promoter score”

-4 5%

1B.6m

+0.3%

11.4m

" Net pramoter scare (NPS) equabs p
which we will imetisire oul future progress aganst

ME&S.com

ge of ‘o

Percentags of UK Clothing & Home sales

s the p

+68

ge of ‘detractors’ This represents o 1012l NPS score lollowndg s resetin internal measuraments ¥rom

online Trafic (visits per week) Net promoter score*
+3.0% +57%
22.0% 8.8m +54
International
Retained markets sales International customer satisfaction scores

+1.1%

7%

Sales from the International business including sales from owned
business and sales to franchisees. Excludes sales from owned exit

markets and Hong Kong folloming transition to franchise At

constant exchange rates

People
Engagernant

+6%

Overall satislaction score provided by customers from across the

International business, including both owned and franchise stores

Empowerment

Enablement

-1%

81%

O owr colleagues feel proud to work at
MA&S and enjoy what they do

Plan A

Products with a plan a quality

1%

83%

Of owr colleagues feel that they are trusted
and have the freedom to perform their role
effectively.

Operational greenhouse gas emissions
(coze)

2%

716%

Of our colleagues fee! that they have
the right processes, support and tools
to do their job well

Voluntearing hours

New

70%

70% of all M&S product packaging that ends
up with our customers & classified as being
widely recycled in the UK. We're aiming to
make it all widely recycled or recycled in store
as soon as possible.

16%
360,000

The gross carbon dioxide emissions from
M&S stores, offices, warehouses and
vehicles worldwide was down 16% on last
year and 75% on 2006/07

+54%

47,218

We provided 47 218 hours of work-time
volunteering across the UK and Republic of
heland.
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Financial review

Full year review

52 weeks ended
30 March 219 31 March 2018 Change
£m fm %
Group revenue 10,3773 10,6982 [T
Food 59034 5.940.0 0.8
Clothing & Home 35373 36710 (3.6)
YK 5.440.7 6110 {1.8)
Imernational o _ 936.46 10872 39
Group operating profit before adjusting itarms T 8010 5704 0.4
UK 4740 5354 (11.5)
International 1270 1352 %61
Net firance costs 71.8) (89.7) 133
profit before tax & adjusting itemns. 5232 5809 @9
Adijusting items {414.5) 468.3) 1.5
Profit before tax 108.7 124 (3.5)

UK: FOOD '

Food revenue decreased 0.6%. with iike-for-like revenue dowr 2.3%, or 1.9% when adjusted for the timing of Easter. Revenue
reflected the effects of price investment and a change in product mix as we reduced promotions. However, during the second half,
we saw an improving trend with volumes up 1.8% in the fourth quarter, adjusted for Easter. We opened 48 new stores during the year
in line with our plan 1o focus new siofe expansion on only the highest returning locations, although the contribution from space
diminished through the year as our full-line closure programme progressed

Gross margin was down 15bps year-on-year at 31.1%. The benefit of promouonal savings and our cost reduction programmes largely
offset the effects of cost inflation and price investment

UK: CLOTHING & HOME

UK Clothing & Home revenue deciined 3.46%. partly driven by our store closure programme, with like-for-like sales down 1.6%
Discounted sales decreased, as a result of the planned reduction in stock-into-sale. UK Clothing & Home online revenue grew 9.8%,
which was ahead of the clothing market, with sttong growth in womenswear, as we made improvements to our website and delivery
proposition and focused on key categories such as dresses in our "Must Haves' campaign

Gross margin increased 20bps to 57.1%. Buying margin was down 20bps as adverse currency headwinds more than offset sourcing
gains across the year Discounting reduced by 40bps, largely as a result of the 14% reduction in stock into sale
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Financial review (continued)

UK operating costs

52 weeks ended

T30 March 2019 31 March 2018 Change

L B £m £m %

Store staffing 1.044.7 10706 (2.4)
Other store costs 9504 9921 4.2)
Distribution & warghousing 564.6 5380 a9
Marketing 155.1 1514 23
Central costs 6948 6980 .5
Total 4094 3,450.3 12

UK operating costs decreased 12%. Store closures more than offset the cost of new space and channel shift. Cost savings across the
business sutweighed inflation related increases

Store staffing costs reduced, as savings from store management restructuring, closures and other efficiencies more than offset pay
inflation. Other store costs reduced driven by lower depreciation, due to our closure programme and as a number of assets have
reached the end of their useful life, which more than offset rent and rates inflation in the year.

The growth in distribution and warehousing costs was largely driven by inflation and the costs of channel shift, as well as costs
associated with the closure of an equipment warehouse, with some offset achieved from improved efficiencies at Castle Donington
The increase in marketing costs reflected investments in our Food brand and the planned increase in costs in the second half of the
year due to the timing of campaigns.

Central costs reduced as lower incentive costs year-on-year, the benefits of technology transformation programmes and other cost
efficiencies more than offset system investment write offs and expenditure on the Fuse programme.

ME&S Bank

M&S Bank income before adjusting items was down £12.7m 10 £27 6m This was predomina ntly the result of an increase in bad debt
provisioning due 1o the impact of revised forward estimates of economic indicators, including the impact of Brexit, and a modest
increase in underlying bad debt due to the risk of customer default. Underlying credit income was slightly up, as a result of more
competitive pricing. M&S Bank income after adjusting items increased E1 1m to £6 7m.

International

52 weeks ended
Change
20 March 2019 31 March 2018 Change Change CC% excl.
Em £m % CC% Hong Kong
Ravenue
Franchise 409.1 306 134 133 22
Owned Retained® 5275 o602 {20.1) {19.3) 03
Totat Retaned 9364 10208 82 7.7 11
Owned Exit' - b4 - - -
Total 9.5 10872 139 {13.4) ®.1)
DOperating profit/{loss) before adjusting items
Franchise 722 &1 1&4.1)
Owned Retained! 52.7 53.1 0.8)
Total Retained 1249 1392 (10.3)
Owned Exit! 2.1 a0 1525
Total 127.0 1352 ©6.1)

1 Hong Kang results raported n owned retamed untif the business was soid 1o our franchris partner «n Docembar 2017

Total International revenue decreased 13.4% at constant currency {'CC7). Excluding the impact from exit markets and Hong Kong,

tevenue at constant currency increased 1.1%. This was dniven by our franchise operations where Food revenue increased by 8%, with
notable growth in France, the Middle East and Singapore In Clothing & Home we implemented market right pricing across most

markets and saw an improving trend in retail sales in Q4 Owned retained revenue reflects solid growth in India and Greece, which

largely offsets ongoing difficult trading conditions in the Republic of Ireland.

International operating profn before adjusting items decreased é.1% with total retained operating profit down 10.3% This was largely
driven by the sale of cur business In Hong Kong and the inplementation of market right pricing. The decline in franchise operating
profit reflects the allocation of £8m of costs from owned te franchise following the closure of owned markets and the sale of cur
business in Hong Kong, in addition to the imptementation of market right pricing. Owned retained profit increased, excluding the
effects of the disposal of Hong Kong The £2.1m profit in owned exit markets largely reflects the recovery of an historical VAT
recevable
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Financial review [continuad}
Net finance cost

o 52 weeks ended
30 March 2019 31 March 2018 Change

o £m £m £m
Interest paysble @820 {95.4} 134
Interes) income 7.6 &0 16
Nat interest payable {74.4) @94 15.0
Pension net finance income 258 177 8.1
Unwind of discount on Scottish Limited Partnership liability (8.8} (109 21
Unwind of discount on provisions (12.3 52 {12.1)
Hedge ineHectiveress on financial instruments £3.1) (1.9 (1.2
Net finance cost 77.8 89.7) 119

Net finance cost decreased by £11.9m to £77.8m, primarily due to a decrease in interest payable as a result of the repayment of the
US$500m bond which matured in December 2017. Pension net finance income increased by £8.1m driven by a higher UX defined
benefit pension scheme surplus at the start of the year compared to the start of the prior year. The unwind of discount on provisions
reflects aur UK store estate programme and our central London office reorganisation

Group profit before tax and adjusting items

Profit before tax and adjusting itermns was £523.2m, down 9.9% on last year. The decrease was principally due 1o a 2.3% reduction in
UK gross profit, partially offset by the decrease in operating costs in the year

Group statutory profit before tax

Statutory profit before tax was £108 7m, down 3.5% on last year as a result of the above offset by a 11.5% decrease in adjusting
nerms

Adjustments to profit before tax

The Group makes certain adjustments to statutory profit measures, in order to derive aiternative performance measures that provide
stakeholders with additional helpful information on the performance of the busiress Further material charges relating to our strategic
programmes are anticipated as programmes progress For further detait on these charges and the Group’s policy for adjusting items
please see notes 1 and 5 to the financial statements

52 weeks ended
30 March 201% 31 March 2018 Change

£m £m £m
Strategic programmes
- UK store estate 2221 a2z 99.0)
- UK organisation 518 07 211
- Operational transformation 164 - 164
- 1T restructure ‘ 154 155 0
- UK logistics 143 131 12
— Changes to pay and pensons 62 129 6.7)
— Intemational stare closures and imparrments 53 50 €3
UK store impairments and other property charges 621 174 445
MBS Bank charges incurred in relation to the insurance mis-selling provision 09 M7 [AER:]
GMP and other pension equalisation 205 - 205
Establshing the Ocado jont venture 34 - 34
Qther (24.1) 177 (41.8)

Adjusting 4145 4683 (38
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Finandcial review {continued)
We have recogrised a number of charges in the period relating to the implementation of cur strategic programmes including:

*  Acharge of £222.1m in relation to our accelersted and expanded store closure programme, which has been expanded to include
a number of Food stares. This charge includes accelerated depreciation, impairment of assets, estimated onerous leases and
other closure costs Further matenal charges relating to the closure and re-configuration of the UK store estate are anticipated
as the programme progresses, the quantum of which is subject to change through-out the programme period as decisions are
taken in relation 10 the size of the store estate and the specific stores affected. Based on current plans, further charges betore
the adoption of IFRS 16 are expected to be incurred predominantly in the next twe years and are anticipated to be ¢.£100m,
bringing tota! pregramme costs to ¢ £680m;

e Acharge of £51.8m largely in relation to costs associated with centralising and rativnalising our London office tunctions as well
as redundency costs related to the review of the retail organisational structure;

« A charge of £16.4m in relation 1o the transformation and simplification of our supply chain and operations across Clothing &
Home and Food. This includes initiatives to reengineer the end 1o end supply chain, remove costs and complexity and working
capual;

e Acharge of [15.6m in relation to our technology transformation programme which we began in the prior year; and

e Anet charge of £14 3m as we conuinue to transition to a single tier Clothing & Home UK distribution network, including the
closure of two of our distribution centres.

In 2016/17 we announced our intention to close owned stores in tan international markets. A net charge of £5.3m has been recognised
in the perod reflecting the actualisation of previously estimated closure costs.

In response 1o the ongoing pressures impacting the retalt industry, as well as reflecting our strategic focus towards growing online
market share, we have revised future projections for certain UK stores. As a result, UK store impairment testing has identified stores
where the current and anticipated future performance does not support the carrying value of the stores. A charge of £52.8m has been
incurred primarily in respect of the impairment of assets associated with these stares. The charge has been classified as an adjusting
itern on the basis of the significant value of the cherge in the year to the results of the Group. Additiona! detail is in note 14 and 21
to the financial statements

We continue to incur charges in relation to M&S Bank insurance mis-seliing provision resulting in a charge of £20 @m during the year.
The deadline for any claims 1o be braught by customers expires on 29 August 2019. The estimated liability continues to be reviewed
in 2019/20 1o ensure it reflects the best estimate of likely settlernent, which could lead to further charges or releases.

We have recognised a non-cash charge of £20.5m in respect of the Group's defined benefit pension liability arising from equalisation

of guaranteed minimum pensions {"GMP") and other pension equalisation costs foliowing a High Count ruling in October 2018
Additiona! detail on the Group’s GMP assessment is detailed in note 10 ta the financial staternents.

In February 2019 we announced the creation of a new 50/50 Joint Venture with Ocado, the UK’s leading pure play digital grocer.
Transaction costs of £3 4m were incurred in the year.

Furthermore, a credit of £24.1m in relation to the finalisation of charges for certain employee related matters provided for during the
prior year.

Taxation

The efective tax rate on profit before tax and adjusting items was 20.3% (last year 21.6%). This is higher than the UK statutory rate
predominantly due 1o the recapture of previous tax relie]l under the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership ("5LP”) structure,
partially ofiset by the recognition of deferred tax assets in our Indha entity, following #ts return t0 profitability. The effective tax rate
on statutory profit before tax was 46.6% {last year 34 4%} due to the impact of disallowable adjusting items.
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Financial review {continued)
Capital expenditure

52 weeks ended

30 March 2019 31 March 2018 Change

£m £m £m

UK store environment %0 266 0.8
New UK stores 401 [ra) (320
International 110 116 06
Supply chan 487 238 249
IT & M&S.com 882 "9 37
Property & maintenance £9.0 729 (39)
Capital expendiure before disposals 283.0 2999 {159
Proceeds fom property disposals {48.1) 3.2 {44.9)
Net capital expenditure 2349 2957 {60.8)

Gioup capital expenditure remains tightly controlled resulting in a 5.3% reduction year-on-year, before disposal proceeds.

UK store environment spend was slightly down reflecting investment in store layout in the prior year, partially offset by investment in
improved visual merchandising and click and collect facilities 1n 2 number of stares. Spend on UK store space was lower as we opened
15 fewer owned Food and full-hne stores than the pnor year. Internationsl expenditure remains focused on the store opening and

modernisation programme.

Supply chain expenditure increased due to our investment in the Welham Green distribution centre &s we moved towards a single
tier network for Clothing & Home, and in improvements to our capabilities in Castle Donington. Spend in IT and M&S.com was driven
by the migration from our mainframe system, investment in the Welham Green distribution centre and website enhancements 1o
optimise user experience. Spend was slightly iower than last year due to the on-going move towards more cloud-based solutions and
following the Technology transformation programme. Property maintenance spend largely relates to investment in bur stores as well
as investment in energy efficiency projects and reconfiguring our central London office budding to rationalise the use of office space

Proceeds from property disposals relate to the closure of s stores and the sale and leaseback of eight Food stores
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Net assets were £5,234 2m at the year end, a decrease of 5.0% on last year.

CASH FLOW & NET DEBT

52 weeks ended

30 March 201% 31 March 2018 Change

£m £m fm

Adprsted operating profit o 6704 (&9 .5}
Deprecation and amortisation before adjusting items 5446 580.6 {35.7)
Working capital 5.1 ©6.8) 1559
Defred benefit scheme pergion funding 375 “14) 35
Capex and disposals 264.8) (345.9) 811
Interest and taxation (184.7 (200 5) 15.8
Investment in joint venture @25} - %)
Non-cash share based payment charges ’ 192 189 03
Share transactions o T - R T ﬁ-ﬂ o ‘3") ﬁ)ﬁ
Free cash fiow before adjusting items o - - 5824 1464
Adjusting fterns cash outflow 1453 (1649 19.6
Free cash flow 583.5 4975 166.0
Ordinary dwidendspard , N - N L (050} 00
Free cash flow after shareholder retums ) T zmes 125 1880
Opening net debt 723 6175 1054
Exchange and other non-cash movernents 1.8 0.9 a7
Clasing net debt 10034 7231 280.3

The business generated free cash flow before adjusting items of £728.8m, up £144.4m an last year primarily as a result of working
capital inflow, lower capital expenditure and lower interest and taxation payments. The working capital inflow was driven by the
planned reductions in Clothing & Home inventory levels and the timing of creditors at year end.

Lower interest and taxation payments reflect both the repayment of 8 bond in December 2017 and lower taxable profit in the prior
year.

Defined benefit scherme pension funding in the year of £37 9m largely refiects the secand imited partnership interest distribution to
the pension scheme in the year.

Adjusting items in cash flow during the year were £145.3m. These included £27.3m in relation to our store closure programme, £24.9m
in relation 1o organisational change, £20.9m for M&S Bark, £12.7m relatng to the closure of stores in Internatronal markets and
£11.1m in relation 10 our technolegy transformation programme. Total adjusting ems in cash flow are anticipated to be a similar
armount in 2019/20, prior to the implemantation of IFRS 14,

Aher the payment of our final dividend from FY 17/18 and interim dwvidend frem H1 18/19, net detit was down £280.3m on last year.

PENSION

Marks and Spencer ple {the Company) reached an agreement with the Trustee of its UK Defined Benefit Fension Scheme withregards
10 the triennsal actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2018. This resulted in a statutory surplus of £652m and is an improvement on the
previous position at 31 March 2015 (statutory surplus of £204m), primarily due to lower assumed life expectancy. The Company and
Trustee have confirmed, In line with the current funding arrangement, that no further contributions will be required to tund past
service as a result of this valuation fother than those already contractually committed under the existing Marks and Spencer Scottish
Limited Partnership arrangements and which are included in the calculation of the statutory surplus - see note 11).

At 30 March 2019, the IAS 19 net retirement benefit surplus was £914.3m (last full year £948.2m) The IAS 19 surplus includes the first
partnership inerest in the scheme assets, valued at £278 5m {note 11). The decrease in the surplus is largely due to a decrease in the
discount rate partially offset by a change in mortality assumptions and by the return on scheme assets.

In April 2019, following the year-end, the UK Defined Benefit pension scheme puichased additional pensioner buy-in policies with
two insurers for approximately £1.4bn Together with the two policies purchased in March 2018. the Oefined Benefit pension scheme
has now, in total, hedged s longevity exposure for around twe thirds of the pensioner cash flow liabilities for pensions in payment.
The buy-in policies cover specific pensioner liabilities and pass al! risks to an nsurer in exchange tor a fixed premium payment, thus
reducing the Company's exposure to changes in longevity, interest rates, inflation and other factors.

IFRS 16

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ 15 effective for penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Group will adopt the new financial reporting
standard from 31 March 2019 The financial statements for the 52 weeks ending 28 March 2020 will be the first prepared under IFRS
14. The Group has decided 1o adopt using the fully retrospective transition approach meaning the comparative peniod will also be
restated al this time.

There will be a significant impact on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019. It s expected on a pre tax basis that a right of use asset
of approxmately £1 7bn and lease liability of approximately £2 6bn will be recognised, along with the derecognition of onerous lease

j)
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provisions of approximately £0.2bn and other working capital balances (including lease incentives) of approximately £0.4bn, which
results in an overall adjustment 1o retained eamings of approximately £0.3bn.

Operating profit and garnings before nterest and 1ax {EBIT} before adjusting ttems increase due 1o the depreciation expense being
lower than thedease expense it replaces The overall impact on profit before 1ax and adjusting items depends on the maturity of the

IEESE
Rounded to the nearest £10m, it is estimated that for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2019

¢ Profit before tax when applying IFRS 16is c.£10m higher than that reported m these financial statements under current
accounting standards, including IAS 17 Leases,

. Profit before tax excluding adjusting items is ¢.£10m lower; and,

= Operating profit before tax and adjusting tems is ¢.£130m higher.

The application of IFRS 16 requires a reclassification of cash flow from operations 10 net cash used in financing activities, however,

the impact to the Group is cash flow neutral For further detail on IFRS 16 piease see note 1 to the financial statements.

BREXIT

The continued delay in agreeing the nature and timing of the UK’s exit from the European Union creates uncertainty that could impact
the performance of our business. Whilst an orderly exi: would allow business planning to more effectively address the consequences
of change against a defined timeframe, a no deal cutcome would have a more immediate and negative impact

Either cutcome is expected to place increased pressure on how our business performs
The potential impacts include

v Acontinued deterioration in customer sentiment

«  Operational complexity and costs due to restrictions on the movement of goods and stricter bordler controls
Costs passed through from our supgliers

Continuity of supply and suppler vability

The impact of import and export duties

Volatility in currency and corporate bond rates

Tightening of the labour market

Additional regulatory responsibilities and costs

Increased complexity and cost in our international aperations, including cur franchise paniners

LI I I Y A )

The Board continues to monitor the ongoing negotiations between the UK and the EU to assess the potential impact and any
transitional arrangements that may be agreed
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Principal risks and uncertainties and financial risk management

The key business risks and uncertainties affecting the Company ere considered to relate to competition from other retailers, the economic
outiook, employee retertion, new stores and distribution centres and the modemisation of the existing portfolio. The details of our principal
risks and uncertanties and the key mitigating activities can be found below. In addition, the directors have taken into consideration the
potential impact of the strategic review of the UK store estate announced by the ultimate parent, Marks and Spencer Group plc as part of its
full year results annauncerment in Novernber 2016. Copies of the Marks and Spencer Group ple comsclidated fnancial statements can be
obtained from the Company Secretary at Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London W2 1NW or are available on the website

whey 0 QI LT et 2 PURERAR VER TS
RISK DESCRIPTION & CONTEXT MITGATING ACTIVITIES
1 BREXT T T T T TTT 17 Across-business '\;v'orking party is in place to undertake

An inability to quickly identify and effectively respond to the
challenges of a post-Brexit environment could have a
significant impact on parformance across our business.

The continued delay in agresing the nature and timing of the -
UK's exit from the European Union (EU) creates uncertainty

that wil! impact the performance of our business, While an -
orderly exit would allow business planning to more effectively
address the consequences of change against a defined
timeframe. a no deal outcome would have 2 more immediate -
and negative impact. Either outcome is expected to place
increased pressure on how our business performs.

The potential impact includes:
- Acontinued deterioration in customer sentiment
- Operational complexity and cost due to restrictions
on the movement of goods and stricter border -

scenario planning including financial and operational
impact assessments and 10 consider and drive “day 1~
requirements.

An Operational Brexit Team has been established

Updates are provided to the Board and Audit Committee
outlning nsks and acticns being undertaken

We are engaged with the government and industry
bodies to represent M&S's views, including the UK Border
Development Group with access to the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Atfairs (Defra), HV Revenue
and Customs (HMRC) and the Food Standards Agency
(FSA) to support operational planming.

Specific mitigation plans have been developed and are

controls. being refined for our core businesses. For example:
- Costs passed through from our suppliers
- Continuity of supply and supplier viability. «  infood, plans are in place to build additional stock cover

- Import and export duties.

- Volatility in currency and corporate bond rates

- Tightening of the labour market

- Additional regulatory responsibilities and costs

- Increased complexity and cost in our internaticnal
opetatons, including our franchise activities

IMPROVING TRADING PERFORMANCE .

A failure of our Food and/or Clothing & Home business to
effectively and rapidly respond to the pressures of an
increasingly competitive and changing retail anvironment -
would adversely impact business performance.

The retail industry 15 highly competutive, both on the lugh

street and onlne. M&S competes with a diverse range of -
retailers in both Food and Clothing & Home These operate
different models and formats through a variety of physical,
digital and integrated distribution channels and offer a range

_of distinct product propositions, from the premium to the

in ambient and frozen in anticipation of a projected
penod of disruption. We have secured additional ambient
warehouse capacity 1o hold product, extended our
warehouse management systems and put plans in place
with our fresh supphers 1o build raw materiat stocks in key
areas We have also mapped the processes to import
goods from the EY, including certification and import
notification, and continue to maintain regular dialogue
with our Top 30 food suppliers to track readiness

While most Clothing & Home product 1s sourced from
outside the EU, we have engaged with suppliers to
ensure trade flows are maintained and are modelling the
impact of changes to tanffs and border processes. We
have also acceterated delivery of certain stock lines from
key countries.

For International, we have developed plans to minimise
operational and supply chain disruption to serve overseas
operations. This includes bullding additional food stack
cover in EU markets and setting up an ambient
warehouse outside Pans. We have modified aspects of
ou supply chain for exporting from UK warehouses and
to prepare for potential new customs requirements. We
have also worked with our franchise partners and owned
businesses to set up new import systems and evaluated
options to maintain the flow of products across our
operations in kreland.

Targeted recruitment to strengthen the capabilities of cur
senior leadership teams in both Food and Clothing &
Home has continued during the year.

Implementation of a revised operating model to create a
family of accountable businesses who share M&S brand
values, colleagues, technolagy and customer data.

Managing Dhrectors fot each of these businesses who
have full accountability for their divisions including for
marketing, supply chain, finance and technology.



Marks and Spencer pic

STRATEGIC REPORT

RISK DESCRIPTION & CONTEXT

3

i

value end of the market, in the vanous markets in which we -
operate

Continued cost and pricing pressures, the migration of -
customer actwvity online and the consumer impact of the UK's
departure from the European Union, as well as broader
macroeconomic conditions, are all contributing to the
chaflenge that is faced.

A failure to successiully reshape the Clothing & Home and/or
the Food business would have an adverse effect on business
results,

BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION™ ' -

A failure 1o execute our business transformation activities with
pace and agility could impede our ability to imprave
operational efficiency and competitiveness. -

The business is und ertaking a number ol projects connected

1o the five-year transformation programme. The first phase of

the programme is enabling the organmation and infrastructure -

1o be fit for the future. Key activities include (although are not

limited 10)

- Reshaping, modernising and managing the UK store -
estate {at a time when external factors such as falling
property values and other retailers also exiting space
create further complexity). -

- Modernising our supply chain and logistics activities to
improve speed, operationat effectiveness and reduce
costs. :

- Delivering our Digital First ambitions to improve -
customer experience, reduce costs and work smaner
across the business (discussed further in the Technology
Capabilty and Talent, Culture and Capabilty risks below)

Underlying activities are significant in their own right but the
level of interdependency and volume of change create
additional delivery risk

Any delays in detivery of the transformation plan, or a key
component, could adversely impact the planned
improvements in business performance -

TFODDONLINE JOINTVENTURE ~ ~ 7 77 L
A failure to effectively plan for and execute the go-ive of the

joint venture with Ocado on time would hamper achievement -
of our food online objectives.

The joint venture (ocado.com} with Ocado Group Ple will -
enable us 10 take our food onhine ir a profitable, scalable and
sustainable way, operating as a fully aligned partnership with
complementary skills and assets. Completion is scheduled for
Autumn 2019, with our commitment to provide M&S product
ranges and establish development capabilities te the jomnt
venture from September 2020 at the latest Delivery of this
commitment is overlaid with the challenge of applying and -
managing existing resources effectively across our full
transformation prograrmme, including the joint venture, so that
all necessaty steps are in place to achieve tmely completion
and successfid commencement of operations

Activities to be completed include:
- Satisfaction of all contractual completion conditions.

MITGATING ACTVITIES

Establishment of business boards to enable executive
oversight and effective governance of each business

Development of, and delivery against, business-specific
transformation plans incorporating revised disciplines
around prices, availability, value, ranges and promotions
across both businesses,

Continued progress aganst our stated target to deliver
30% of Clothing & Home sales online by 2023 including a
programme of investment in technology and marketing
to suppen an improved online proposition

Announcement of the joint venture with Ocado for Food
online.

Qngoing implementation of a cost reduction plan.
Established programme governance 10 track progress
against the overall transformation plan, resourcing and
capability, and to monitor critical interdependencies

High levels of cross-functional engagement te ensure
consistency and collaboration in setting and achieving
objectives.

Pariodic independent audn reviews of key programme
detivery.

increased algorment of retail operations and property
through the appointment of a single Managing Director.

Continued operation of the UK Retail & Property Board
and Store Renewal Steering Group 1o oversee planned
changes 1o our store estate.

The appoimtment of a single service provider 1o support
the efficient and elfective defivery of all store
maintenance activities

Ongoing delivery of “Fuse”, looking at how we plan, buy
and manage stock end to end across both Clothing &
Home and Food businesses

Targeted operational improvements at Castle Donington
to improve our M&S com fulfilment capacity

Establishment of a smpler, single -tier Clothing & Home
logestics network to reduce costs and working capital and
improve speed.

_Rollout of new warehouse management software.

Identification of M&S-nominated directars to form part of
the Qcado com Board.

Co appointment of an appropriate management team 10
lead Ocado.com.

Establishment of a dedicated M&5 programme 1eam with
senior M&S leadership to support the Ocado.com set-up
and ensure that M&S interfaces and processes are
developed to support the M&S products going live
enline This includes providing ongoing support of
sourcing and branding activities to the joint venture.

Joint worlkung group 1n place with Ocado Group Plc 10
establish the systems, processes and ways of working to
coordinate sourcing, preduct development, product
ranging, customer data and marketing




Warks and Spencer pic

STRATEGIC REPORT

RISK DESCRIPTIOMN & CONTEXT
- Successful separation of the joint venture operations and

bl

establishment of associated services arrangements.
Creation of an effective oversight and governance
framework

Maobilisation of resources.

Development of appropriate M&S range and interfaces
10 ensure that M&S products are ready to go hve in
September 2020.

FOOD SAFETY & INTEGRITY  ~— — ~ 7 7 -

Failure to prevent or effectively respond to a food safety
incident, or to maintain the integrity of our products, could
impact business performance, customer confiderce and our
brand. -

Food safety and integrity remain vital for our business

We need to manage the potential risks to customer

health and consumer confidence that face alt food
retailars, while also considering hbow external pressures on-
the food industry and wider economic or environmental
changes could impact the integrity of our food, our
reputation and sharehalder value.

Many of these external pressures, including infiationary
costs, labour quality and availability, increased regulatory -
scrutiny and the unknown impact of Brexit, are outside

our control but are nevertheless being monitored

3 CORPORATE COMPLIANCE & RESPONSIBILITY -

Failure to deliver against our legal, reguiatory or social
commitments undermines our reputation as a respansible
ratailer, may result in legal exposure of regulatory sanctions,
and could negatively impact our ability to operate and/or -
remain relevant to our customears.

Responsible corporate behaviour is a basic reguirement

of all businesses and the expectations of our customers -
and stakehalders (including regulators) are increasingly
demanding.

The increasingly broad and stringent legal and regulatory -
framework for retailers creates pressure on both business
performance and market sentiment requiring continual
improvements in how we operate as a business to
maintain compliance. -
Non-compliance may result in fines, criminal prosecution
for M&S or colleagues, litigation, additional investment to
rectify breaches, disruption or cessation of business -
actvity, as well as have an impact on our reputaton and
financial resutts.

Similarly, speed is vital to respond to heightened

customer expectations, such as the epvironmental impact -
of food packaging. Public sentiment towards any business
can change rapidly, especially in the age of social media,

if expected standards are not met. -
While our business operates appropriate controls, we
recognise thal potential non-compliance remains a risk
and that there can be no rcom for complacency -

MITGATING ACTIVITIES

’ Cle.arly defined requirements through Terms of Trade,

Codes of Practice, Standard Operating Procedures and
Specifications “from farm to fork”, including in-store
processes.

Maintenance of a qualified and capable technical team
Professional status is maintained through training and an
independently validated Continuing Professional
Development Programme.

Cleat accountabilities for policy and standard
development at technical leadership level coupled with
individual accountability for product safety at
tachnologist level.

Long-established store, supplier and depot auditing
programmes are in place, mcluding unannounced visits
and raw material testing.

Quarterly review of our control framework by the
technical leadership through established governance
procedures and the Customer Brand Protection
Committee.

Established processes for the development and legal
sign-off for product packaging.

Clear and tested crisis management plan to respond to
future incidents.

Membership of the Food Industry intelligence Forum at
both Board and Operating Committes level.

Periodic Internal Audit reviews to consider process design
and operating effectiveness. o
Clear policies and procedures in place, induding on
human rights, medern stavery, global sourcing, data
protection, anti-bribery and corruption, health & safety,
food safety, cyber and data secunty

Immediate response to new requirements, such as for
minimum alcohol pricing in Scotland, implemented
during the last financial year.

Mandatory induction briefings and annual training for
relevant colleagues on key reguiations.

Oversight from committees and steering groups where
necessary, including on data protection, fire heaith &
safety, food safety and human rights

in-house regulatory legal team, including specialist
solicitors, with external expertise available as needed

Dedicated non-legal regulatory specialists and advisers in
place across the business responsible for driving

comphance.

Ongoing engagement with regulators, legislators, trade
bodies and policy makers

Published, montored and reported commitments in
relation to environmental and social issues.

Estanhshed auditing and monitoring systems in place.
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7 TECHNOLOGY CAPABILITY -

Failure to rapidly improve our technology capabilities, reduce
dependency on legacy systems and enhance digital capability
could limit our ability to keep pace with customer

expectations and competitors, anable business -
transformation and grow profitably.

The digital world continues to evolve at an
unprecedented rate, enabling competitive advantage, -
influencing consumer behaviours or expectations and
increasing demands on T infrastructure

We have clearly communicated our aim to te Digita! First,
and recognise the need to invest to achieve this. -
In addition, our existing IT infrastructure needs 1o be

more flexible 1o lower costs, leverage development
opportunities and enable us 1o move with pace 10 meet
customer and colleague needs.

As well as techrology, we need to continue to develop

the skills and capabilities of our people. This will be -
critical 1o providing a top-quartile, searnless customer
experience -

8  INFORMATION SECURITY oo 8

Failure to adequately prevent or respond to a data breach or

MITGATING ACTIVITIES

cyber-attack could aciversely impact our reputation, result in -+ -

significant fines, business disruption, loss of stakeholder
conhdence, and/ar loss of information for our customers,

employees or busingss.

The increasing sophistication and frequency of cyber.
attacks, couvpled with the General Data Protection
Regulation {GDPR), highlight the escalating information -
secutity risk facing all businesses. Our reliance on a
number of third parties to host and hold data alsc means
the risk profile of our nformation security is changeable
This risk is more pronounced due to the pace at which -
our business is changing and the valume of activities
under way, both of which add 1o the complexity of
maintaining a secure environment.

We recognise the importance of challenging our existing
capabilities, supporting the education of our teams and -
maintaining vigilance across the business. This holistic
approach is needed to reduce the hkelihood of attack or
breach in an environment that is undergoing significant
change and facing ar external threal thal is changing at
pace

Customer contact centre insight and analysis of live social
media issues.

Continupus improvement initiatives such as in-store trial
of plastic-free fruit and vegetable lines or launch of an
initiative where customers can drop non-recyclable plastic
at our stores, to be re-used in making equyprent for use
instores and schools. R

A technology transformation programme is ongoing,
suppornted by project governance principles, to enabie
the Dgnal First ambitons and to deliver improved
customer experience

An established Technology Operating Model to drve
ciear accountabilities and efficiencies, including the
adoption of industry standard agile methods

Appointment of a leading technology company as our
principal partner, coupled with consalidation of the
technology supplier base.

Simplification of IT infrastructure through clearly defined
technology roadmaps for all business areas, including the
migration from an ageing mawmnframe environment and
improvements to our website, such as the completed re-
platform of our web sales site to the cloud

Improvements to our in-store technology

Development of strategic partnarships, such as with
Microsoft and Founders Factory.

Establshment of Decoded - an externally developed and
delivered training and qualification programme to
improve digital people skills.

Cross-channel technology investment strategy in place
and aligned to the Tamily of businesses to mutually
agreed priorties.

Querterly reviews to track benefits realisation.
A Data Governance function, overseen by the Data
Governance Steering Group

Mandatory data protection traning for colleagues,
ncluding responsibilities for the use of personal data in
compliance with GDPR

Control of sensitive data through limited and monitored
access and the roll-out of systems with enhanced security.

Dedicated Cyber Security function, comprising a mult-
disciphnary 1earn of cyber secunty specialists, with 24/7
monitoring and defence tools

Established security controls, including policies and
procedures and adoption of security technologies,
subject to periodic independant testing and
improvement.

Completion of a comprehensive maturity review by an
independent consultancy during the last financial year
covering network secunty, identity and access
management, security software development, and project
and programme assurance

Third-party cyber maturity assessments performed and
periadically refreshed. Targeted reviews of third-party
control comphance
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"BUSINESS CONTINUITY & RESILIENCE
Failures or resilience issues at key business locations could
result in major business interruption. In particular, 8 major

incident at our Castle Donington e commerce distribution
centre may have a significant impact on our ability to fulfil

online orders.

The effective opetation of the Castle Donington
distribution centre is vital as it is the sole fulfilment centre
for our online Clothing & Home business. A major
incident leading 1o & sustained period offline, while
unlikely, would not only impact current sales but
potentially alsc hinder the growth of the

M&S.com business and achievement of the one-third
online target.

Operational risks also exist in other parts of the business,
such as the high volumes of goods sourced from
Bangladesh, and at the dedicated warehouses that store
beers, wines & spirits and frozen goods in the UK.

Our ability to develop effective continuity plans, build
resilience in our networks and capabilities to manage
associated risks remains an area of focus

" THIRD-PARTY MANAGEMENT

An inability to successfully manage and leverage our strategic
third-party relationships, or a critical failure of 2 key supplier or
partner, may have an impact on delivery of transformational
initiatives, our ability to operate effectively and efficiently or, in
some circumstances, our brand and reputation.

TREASURY & FUNDING

Qur business 1s increasingly dependent on significant
thitd-party relationships. These span M&S and include
products and services, franchise relationships, our joint
ventures and our banking partner.

To fully leverage these relationships we continue to focus
on developing clear and consistently applied processes
to track performance, ensuring that commercial
expectations and outcomes are met and to put in place
plans to manage potentiat business interruption risk
created by such dependencies

MITGATING ACTIVITIES

o -6n_goi-r§n:5ri_r_torin_g_a ::i'é\}-te?opr;\énts in c;ybe_r security

threats, engaging with third-party speciabsts as
appropriate.

Periodic penetration testing by internal Audit.
Corporate Security team with ongoing focus on

improving the physical security environment.
A dedicated Business Continuity team.

A Group Crisis Management team is in place and subject
to periodic testing.

Business continuity plans for key areas of the business
and critical points of failure, including offices, depots and
IT sites. are developed and 1ested.

Group Incident Reporting & Management Procedures in
place and used to escalate incidents on site. These also
include critical third parties.

Insurance cover to mitigate the impact of remediation
and business interruption.

Participation in the Retail Business Continuity Association,
which provides insight across the sector.

Regular participation at government-led exercises at key
locations.

Membership of the National Counter Tarrorism
Information exchange.

Mechanisms for checking that suppliers have apgropriate
business continuity plans in place

Qngomg contingency ptanning for Brexit.

Clear procurement and supplier management policies in
place, including specific requirements for strategic
suppliers with dedicated relationship ownership

Defined service level agreements and key performance
indicators in place for key contracts.

Established franchise governance and management
processes with regular relationship meetings with
partners for the UK and Internaticnal businesses.

Integrated business planning processes to support
franchise and joint venture reviews in International

Customer satisfaction surveys introduced for franchise
partners with agreed perlormance targets.

Regular review of franchise and joint venture markets
Engagement of in-house legal and procurement teams.

Key supplier business contingency planning, selectively
_subject 1o review by our Business Continuity team.

An inability to maintain short and long term funding to meet
business needs or to effectively manage associated risks, such
as significant fluctuations in foreign currency or interest rates,
may have an advarse impact on business viability.

Avallability of, and access 1o, appropriate funds 15 crucial
in supporting core business operations and the successful
and timely delivery of our transformation plan The
Group's indebtedness pnimarily consists of bonds, -
bilateral facilities and finance leases The Group's ability
to make payments on its debt and to fund working

A £1.1bn undrawn committed credit faciity in place until
April 2023 and £285.4m of cash on depasit.

lssuance of £250m Notes in July 2019, due July 2027,
under the £3bn Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Treasury axecutes forward buying of currency
requirements and is 90% hedged for FY2019/20.

Close monitoring and stress testing of projected cash and
debt capacity, financal covenants and other rating
metrics, in line with our perfarmance actuals and outiock

14
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capital, capital expenditures and other expenses will -
depend on the Group's future operating performance

and ablity to generate cash from operations and to -
refinance its existing debt.

Brexit adds a further dimension te this financial risk
because of the potential impact on currency movements, -
corporate bond rates, changes in credit regulations and
the extent of government support of credit markets.
Additionally, we have a pensions fund commitment that
requires active management and regular monitoring. -

TALENT, CULTURE & CAPABILITY T -

MITGATING ACTMITIES

A failure to attract, develop and motivele the right talent
could slow down our ability to achieve operational and

strategic objectives, including successful cultura! and business -

transformation.

As we transform our business, the calibre of owr people is
integral to dehvering operational and strategic objectives -
and is especially important in cur drive 1o be Digital First.
Attracting, developing and retaining quality individuals is
influenced by many factors, a number of which are

outside our control such as labour availability and the -
challenges facing the UK retail sector.

Qur focus, however, cannot solely be outward looking —
our existing workforce is one of our greatest assets. We -
need 1o ensure that our colleagues and culture are
developed to drive a Digital First and customer-centric
mindset and ensure that colleagues feel empoweredto -
drive change at pace.

Building cross-functional experience for high-potential
¢olleagues 1o accelerate their development and to better -
prepare them for more senior roles, as well as expanding -
our focus on early careers 15 important in helping us build
a bigget pool of future potential talent. .

BRAND, LOYALTY & CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

An inability to successfully evolve our brand, customer
experience and loyalty in line with expectations and

innovations in the retai! environment coutd have an impact on

our ability to attract and retain custamers and
result in 2 decline in our market share.

Consumer lifestyles and attitudes continue to evalve at
pace in an increasingly diversified and competiuve retail
enviropment

We are proud of our strong brand recognition, but
external pressures make it more difficult for all businesses -
to drive brand relevance and attract and retain customers,
especially in our target markets. Failure 10 do so creates
the risk of a deciine in market share. -
Our organisational design and operating model need to
support our aim 1o be a customer-centnc, Digital First -
business and our Sparks loyalty programme, marketing
strategies and cross-functional ways of working will be key
enablers in achieving this, supported by meaningtul
measurement of customer experence. -

ﬁéguiarglaioéhe with the market and raimg agencie‘s‘

Rewiew of counterparty credit nisk and limits in Iine wath
our risk appetite and treasuty policy

Pension fund assets fully offset pension scheme habilities.
At the last triennial review in March 2018, the fund had a
surplus of £652m

Purchase of additional buy-in policies for approximately
£1.4bn subsequent to year end, resulting i the Defined
Benefit pansion scheme hedging its longevity exposure for
approximately two thirds of the pensioner cash flow liabilities
for pensions in payment,

Talent is identified as a critical component of our people
strategy and a key enabler in the delwery of our overall
business strategy

Fargeted external hires to strengthen capabilty including
i Womenswear and Menswear, Food transformation and
logistics, digital, Bark & Services and cyber

People key performance indicators are in place
supported by talent reviews at all levels of the
organisation.

Established biannual employee engagement survey,
enhanced during the year to provide additional insight.

Clear focus and transparent act:on on fair pay, including
gender, ethnicity, disability and age

A dedicated torum to lead the inclusion and diversity
agenda on behalf of the Operating Commuttee

Simplified, outputs-focused framework for performance
management

Ongoing culture assessment and roll-out of revised ME&S
Behaviours.

Active engagement with our Business Involvement
Group,

Ermployee suggestion process directly overseen by the
Chief Executive's office. o
Brand and marketing teams aligned with the operating
madel 1o better address the specific needs of cur family
of businesses

Chief Digital & Data Officer in post to head Insights and
Loyalty programmes.

Investment in capability to measure customer experience
through introduction of an end-to-end and multichannef
net promoter score prograrmine, supported by third-party
experiise.

Established Customet Insight Urit and focus groups in
place.

Rewview of our Sparks loyalty pragramme
Increasing our presence and proactive monitoring of
social media to observe and respond to trends in

customer expearience with initiatives such as Try Tuesday.

Targeted use of celebrity engagement
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Going concern

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial statements, the directors have considered the business activities and
strategic report s set out on pages 1 - 11 as well as the Group's principal risks and uncertainties as set out on pages 12 -17. Based
on the Group's cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board is satisfied that the Group will be able 10 operate within the level of its

facilities for the foreseeable future. For this reason the Group continues to adopt the gong concern in preparing its financial
statements

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on? September 2019 and signed on its behalf by

N folend

Mick Folland
Director
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Profit and dividends

The consohdated profit for the financial year, after taxation, amounts to £38.2m (last year £73.8m) The directors have declared
dividends as follows-

o9 a8
fm Em

Ordinary shares:
Pad interim divdend 39 (last year 3.9p) 1112 1112
Paid final interim dividend 6.8p (last year &.8p} 1938 193.8
Total ordmary dividend 10 7 per share (last year 10.7p) 3050 3050

Share capital

The Company’s issued ordinary share capital, as at 30 March 2019 comprised a single class of ordinary share  Detasls of movements
in the issued share capital can be found in note C18 to the financial statements.

Significant agreements

There are a number of agreements to which the Company is party that 1ake effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company following a takeover bid Details of the significant agreements of this kind are as foliows:

The £400m Medium Term Notes (MTN} issued by the Company on 30 November 2009, the £300m Medium Term Notes
issued by the Company on 6 December 2011, the £400m Medium Term Notes issued by the Company on 12 December
2012 and the £300m Medium Term Notes issued by the Company on 8 December 2016 1o vanous insttutions and under
the Group's £3bn Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme conltain an option such that, upon & change of control
event, combined with a credit ratings downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder of an MTN may require the
Company to prepay the principal amount of that MTN.

The $300m US Notes issued by the Company 1o various institutions on & December 2007 under Section 14da of the US
Securities Act contain an option such that, upon a change of contro! event, combined with a credit ratings downgrade to
below sub-investment level, any holder of such a US Note may require the Company to prepay the principal amount of that
US Note

The amended and restated £1.1bn Credit Agreement dated 16 March 2016 (originally dated 29 September 2011} between
the Company and various banks contains a provision such that, upon a change of control event, unless new terms are agreed
within 60 days, the facilty under this agreement will be cancelled with all outstanding amounts becorning immediately
payable with interest

The amended and restated Relatonship Agreement dated 6 October 2014 (ariginally dated ? Novernber 2004 as amended
en 1 March 2005), between HSBC and the Campany and relating to M&S Bank, contains certain provisions which address a
change of control of the Company Upon a change of control, the existing rights and obligations of the parties in respect
of M&S Bank continue and HSBC gains certain limited additional rights in respect of exsting customers of the new cantrolier
of the Company. Where a third-party arrangement 18 in place for the supply of financial services products to existing
customers of the new controller, the Company is required 1o procure the termination of such arrangement as soon as
practicable {while not being required 1o do anything that would breach such a third-party arrangement).

Where a third-party arrangement is so terminated, or does not exist, HSBC has the exclusive right to negotiate proposed
terms for the offer and sale, of financia! services products to the eusting customers of the new controfler by HSBC on an
exclusive basis.

Where the Company undertakes a re-branding exercise with the new controller following a change of control (which includes
using any M&S brand in respect of the new controlier’s business or vice versal, HSBC may, depending on the nature of the
re-branding exercise, have the nght {exercisable at HSBC's election} 1o terminate the Relationship Agreement

The Company does not have agreements with any director or employee that would provide compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from a takeover except that provisions of the Company's share schemes and plans may cause options and
awords granted to employees under such schemes and plans to vest on a takeover.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows

Amanda Melior  (resigned on 1 February 2019}

Stephen Rowe
Scilla Gnmble {appointed on 31 March 2018, resigned 12 September 2018)

Humphrey Singer (appomied on 10 August 2018}
Nick Folland {appointed on 1 February 2019)
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Directors’ indemnities

The Company mainmains directors’ and officers’ Rability insurance which gives appropriate cover for any legal action brought against
its directors The Company has also granted indemnities to each of its directors and the Group Secretary to the extent permitted by
law.

Qualifying third party indemmity provisions (as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) were in force during the year ended
30 March 2019 and remain in force, in relation to certain losses and liabilities which the directors may incur 1o third partes in the
course of acting as directors or employees of the Company or of any associated company

Colleague involvement

We remain committed to colleague involvement throughout the business. Colleagues are kept well mformed of the performance and
strategy of the Group. Examples of colleague involvement and engagement, and information on our approach to cur worklorce, are
highlighted throughout this Annual Report and specifically on pages 15 to 17 and on page 44 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc
Annual Repont 2019

Share schemes are a long-established and successful part of colleagues’ totat reward packages, encouraging and supporting
emplayee share ownership. The Company operates both an all-employee Save As You Eam Scheme and Share Incentive Plan
Approximately 18,949 colieagues currently participate in ShareSave, the Company’s Save As You £arn Scheme Full details of all
schemes are given on pages 114-116 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report 2019,

There are websites for both pension schemes — the defined contnbution scheme {Your M&S UK Pension Saving Plzan) and the defined
benefit scheme {the Marks & Spencer UX Pension Scheme) - which are fully accessible 1o employees and former employees who have
retained benefits in either scheme Employees are updated as needed with any pertinent information on their pension savings

Equal opportunities

The Group 1s committed to an active equal opportunities policy from recruitment and selection, through training and development,
performance reviews and promotion to retirement. The Company’s pohcy is to promate an environment free from discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, where evaryone will receive equal treatment regardiess of gender, colour, ethnic or national erigin,
disability, age, marital or cwvil partner status, sexual criemation or religion. All decisions relating to employment practices will be
objective, free from bias and based solely upon work criteria and indwvidual merit.

The Company 1s responsive to the needs of its employees, customers and the community at large. M&S is an organisation which uses
everycne’s talents and abilities and where diversity is valued.

MA&S was one of the first major comparves to remove the default retwvement age in 2001 and has continued to see an increase in
employees wanting to work past the state retirement age.

Employees with disabilities

The Company is clear in 1s palicy that people with health conditions should have full and far consideration for all vacancies.

MA&S has continued to demonstrate its commitment to interviewing those people with disabilities who fulfil the minimum critena,and
endeavouring to retain employees in the workforce if they become disabled during employment M&S will actively retrain and adjust
employees’ environments where possible to allow them 10 maximise their potential and will continue to work with externat
organisations to provide workplace opportunities through our innovative Marks & Start scheme and by working closely with Jobcentre
Plus The Marks & Start scheme was introduced into the distribution centre at Castle Donington in 2012/13, warking with Remploy to
support people with disabilities and heatth conditions into work, and this year marked 15 years since we launched the Marks & Start
programme

Financial instrurnents
infarmation about the use of financial instruments by the Company and its subsidhaties is given in note 20 to the financial statements.
Essential contracts or arrangements

The Company 1s required te disclose any contractual or other arrangements which it considers are essential to its business We have
awide range of suppliers for the production and distribution of products to our customers Whilst the loss of, or disruption to, certain
of these arrangements could temporarily affect the operations of the Group, none are considered to be essential, with the exception
of certain warehouse and logistic operators and providers of services relating to the Company's e-commaerce platform.

Groceries Supply Code of Practice

The Groceries (Supply Chain Practices) Market Investigation Order 2009 {the "Order”} and The Groceries Supply Code of Practice
{the “Code™) impose obligatiens on MBS relating to relationships with its suppliers of groceries Under the Order and Code, M&S is
required to submit an annual compliance report to the Audit Committee for approval and then to the Competition and Markets
Authority and Groceries Code Adjudicator ("GCAT)

M&S submitted its report, covenng the perod from 1 April 2018 to 30 March 2019, to the Audit Committee on 16 May 2019

In accordance with the Order, a summary of that compliance report is set out below
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M&5 bebeves that it has materially complied with the Code and the Order during the relevant peniod. No formal disputes under the
Code have ansen during the reporting period There have been seven instancas during the reporting period in which suppliers have
either alleged a breach or made a reference 1o potential non-compliance with the Code. M&S has worked with the suppliers to
address the issues raised and they have all now been resolved or closed. One additional Code reference made by a supplier before
1 Apnit 2018 was also resolved durning the reporting period

Total Global M&S Greenhouse gas emissions 2018/2019

The disclosures requwed by law and additionalinformation telating to the Group's greenhouse gas emissions are included # the table below

FY18/19 2017418 %

o 000 tonnes 000 tonnes change
Direct emissions (scope 1} 167 182 ®
Indirect ermissions from energy lscope 2) 193 248 72/
Total grossflocation-based emissions (scope 1 and 2) 340 430 18
Carbon imensity measure fper 1,000 sq ft of salesfioor) 19 £} {17
Green tariffs and bio-methane procured 202 273 (28
Remaining market-based emissi 158 157 1
Carbon offsets 158 157 1
Total net operational emissions 0 Q -

Emissions are fiom operationally controlled actvities 1n accordance with WRIAWBCSD GHG Reportng Protocols (Revised edition) and 2015
Scope 2 Guidance using 2018 BE1S conversion factors. As these ermissions account for less than 1086 of M&S's total carbon footpring, we also
engage with suppliers to address the most significant sources. M&S has an approved Science Based Target for reducing emissions Full
disclosure in accordance with Task Force on Climate Disclosure guidance can be found 2t cdp net

Political donaticns

The Company did not make any polfitical donations or incur any political expenditure during the year ended 30 March 2019. M&S has a pohcy
of not making donations to palitcal organisaticns or ndependent election candidates of incurning political expenditure anywhere m the
world as defined in the Folitical Parties, Elections and Referendurms Act 2000.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are 1esponsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Report of the Drectors and the fnancial statements in
accordance with apphcable laws and regulations.

Compary law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the direciors have prepared
the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union. Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and lair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and the Company
for that period In preparing these financial statements, the directors are reguired to

Properly select and apply accounting policies;

Present information, including accounting pohcies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandasble
information;

Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are nsufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the enuty's financial position and financiat
performance; and

Make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as 2 going concern

The ditectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficrent to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose at any time wih reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company and the Group and to enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are ako responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregulanties

Corporate governance statement
The Group has established internal control and risk management systems in relation to the process for preparing consolidated

financial statements The key leatures of these internal control and risk management systems are:

Management of the Group conduct periodic reviews of the Group's risks and mitgation. Each business unit 1s responsible for
identifying, assessing and managing the nsks in their respective areas on a half yearly basis These are then coliated to give a
consolidated view of the business risk areas,

- Management regularly monitors and considers developments in the accounting regulations and best practice in financial
reporting, and, where appropriate, reflects developments in the consolidated financial statements Appropnate bnefings and/or
training are provided to key finance personnel on relevant developments in accounting and financial reporting;

The Group's consohdation 's subject to various levels of review by the Group finance function; and
The financial statements are subject to external audit

Further information about the Group’s corporate governance 1s provided in the Charman’s Governance Overview set out on pages
34 and 35 in the Marks and Spencer Group ple 2019 Annual Report, which does rot form part of this report.

pal
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Disclosure of information to auditor

Each director confirms that, so far as he/she is aware, there is no relevant audit mformation of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware
and that each director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make himseli/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to ensure that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

independent auditor

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditor of the Company has been approved by the directors and shareholders at the time
of signing these financial staternents.

The Directors’ Report was approved by a duly authorised committee of the Board of Directors on f September 2019 and signed on its
behalf by

NAOWAA

NICK FOLLAND
Director,
London, fSeptember 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC

Report on the audit of the finandial statements

n our opinion:

. the financial statements of Marks and Spencer plc {the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’} give a true and fair view
of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 March 2019 and of the Group's profit for the year then
ended,;

. the Group finandial statements have been proparly prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and #FRSs as issued by the Intemationel Accounting Standards Board {IASB);

. the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European

Union and as applied in aocordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and
. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2005 and, as regards the
Group financial staternents, Artice 4 of the LAS Regulation.

‘We have audited the finanaal statements which comprise:

the Consoiidated income statement;

the Consoiidated statement of comprehensive income;

the Consohdated and Company statements of financial position;

the Consolidated and Cormpany statements of changes n equity;

the Consolidated and Cormpany statements of cash flaws;

the Reconciliations of movement in net debt and net debt to the consolidated statememt of financral position; and
the related notes 110 29 and C1to C25

LI I I A ]

The financial reporting framework that has been applied i their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

We conducted our audht in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {I5As (UK} and apphicable law. Our respansibifties
under those standards are further described i the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 1o our audit of
the financial staterents in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the FRC’s’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilties in accordance with these regquirements, We confirm that the non-
audhit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company.

We beleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

The key audit matters that we identified in the cuuent'year were:

Disclosure of adjusting items;

Acoounting for the UK store ratronalisation programme,

Impairment of UK store assets,

Inventory provisioning for UK Clothing & Home,

Vahsation of UK defined benefit cbligation; and

IFRS 16 Leases disclosures P

ithin this report, any new key audrt matlers are wentfied with®  and any key audit matters which are
4

et

he same as the prior year identified wit

I The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £20.0 million (2018: £24.5 million)
using a benchmark of adisted profit before tax but excluding the impact of cenain adsting items, as set
out on page 30 of this report.

2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

e performed a full scope audit on three compaonents of the business (UK, India and Ireland)
representing 99% of the Group's revenue, 75% of the Group's adjusted profit before tax, 92% of the
Jroup’s profi befare tax, B0% of the Group's total assets, and 97% of the Group's total liabilities

gnificant changes in our
approach

ur audit approach 15 consistent with the previous year, with the exception of

s Menua! adjustments to reported revenue has been removed as a key audit matter on account
of the guantum of adjustments applied and the imited scope of judgement involved; and

. IFRS 16 Leases disclosures has been included as a key audn matter due to the nherent level of
judgement involved in determiming the quantum of the impact and the leve! of audit effort
required in evaluating the appropriateness of the supporting drsclosures.

We are required by 1SAs (UK] to report in respect of the following matters where:

. the directors’ use of the gaing concern basis of accounting in preparation of the
financial staterments is not appropriate; or
. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified materiai

uncertainties that may cast signilicant doubt about the group's or the parent

company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a I . .
periad of at least twelve months fram the date when the financial statements are We m;::mg to rapart in res of

authorised for issue.

Key audit matters are those matters that, 0 our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most signficant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters inchuded those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

The Group has reported adjusted profitbefor tax of £523.2 million, which is derived from statutory profit before tax of
£108.7 million adjusted for a number of items which the Group considers meet their definition of an “adjusting item”.
Judgement is exercised by management in determining the classification of such items.

Explanations of each adjusting item are set out in note 5 to the financial statements and are summarised in the graphic
below,
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In determining adjustéd profit before tax, we identified the following risks
s The dentdication and dassification of items as ‘adjusting’ may be inappropriate, distorting the reported

) results;
Key af‘d.'t matter The omission of items which are considered matenal, one-off or sigrificant in nature, distorting the reperted
desaription results; and

s The clarity and detaii of disclosures in respect of adjusting items may be insufficient, precluding investors from
obtaining a dear understandng of the Group's results and performance

24
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TCO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED
How the scope of In responding to the identified key audit matter we completed the following audit procedures.

our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

Assessed the design and implementation of key controls pertaining to the identification and disclosure of
adsting items;

Performed enquiries of management to understand the mationale applied in identifying items as adjusting and
completed an independent assessment as 10 the selection and presentation of adjusting items based on their
nature;

Assessed the identfication and consistency of items reported as adjusting year on year in light of the latest
guidance published by the European Securities and Markets Authority 'ESMA'} and the FRC:

Perfarmed tests over a representative sample of adjusting items through agreement 1o supporting evigence:
Used our cumulative audit knowledge and applied data analybics to identify and test other transactions
outside of the normal course of business, or which displayed characteristics of being material, significant or
one-off in nature; and

Assessed the completeness and accuracy of disclosures within the financial statements 1n accordance with
IFRSs

Key cbsesvations We are satisfied that the itemns included in arriving at adjusted profit and the related disclosures within the finanoal
staternants are appropiiate

Key audit matter in February 2018 the Board approved a list of stores marked for closure as part of the UK store rationalisation
description programme, with a total charge of £321 1 mifhon recorded in the prior year i respect of impairment, accelerated
depreciation and property ext costs. In the current year, 2 further charge of £222 1 milion has been recognised as &
result of:

Management revisiting its assessment il stores approved for dlosure and the adequacy of estimates made in
light of known developments in the exit strategy, including current trading performance, negotiations with
landlords and changes in the retail property market;

Further accelerated depreciation of stores identified for ¢losure in the prior year (as they approach their
planned dosure dates);

Acceletated depreciation and impairment of buildings and fixtures and fitings i respect of additional stares
added to the programme.

Further iformation is set out in notes 1 and 5 to the financial statements.

Our key audit matter was focussed on the following areas of risk:

-

Accuracy and completeness of provisions encompassing oneraus contracts, store strip-out costs, restructuring
angd dilapidations are incompiete or inaccurate;

Spechic assumplions applied in the discounted cash flow analysis prepared by management inchudng the
discount rate, sublet income, sublet lease incentives, void periods, freehold sales proceeds and store closure
costs are inappropnate, and

Significant property transactions such as disposals and lease surrenders are accounted for correctly.

We consider this to represent a key audit matter reflecting the level of udgement applied by management. Our audn
work focussed on assessing the Group's UK store exit model and evaluating the continued appropriateness of the key
assumptions used in determining the extent of provisioning required.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

How the scope of In responding to the dentified key audn matter we completed the following audit procedures:

our audit
responded to the
kery audht matter

Key observations.

Assessed the design and implementation of key contrals pertaining to the review and approval of the Group’s
UK store exit mode;
Performed enquiries of management and inspected the latest strategic plans. Board and relevant sub-
committee minutes of meetings;

s Understood and challenged the basis of the Group's decisions where stores previously marked for closure are
no longer experted to dose;

s Evaluated the appropriateness of the Group's judgements for 2 representative sample of properties in
consuttation with our intermal real estate specialists and with reference to external benchmarking data;

*  Assessed the mechanical accuracy of discounted cash flow models and other key provision cakculations,

s Assessed the integrity of key inputs ncluding lease data, agent valuations, surveyor plans and rental payments
through agreement to supporting documentation;

»  Recalculated the closing provision for a representatve sample of stores and agreed any movement to the
Income Statement;

*  Evaluated the accuracy ardi completeness of provisions recorded in light of the status of the Group's UK store
rationslisation plan; and

e Assessed the completeness and accuracy of disdosures within the financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs

We are satisfied with the Comp:any‘s estimate of the impairments and store exit tharges recorded. Further, the
disclosure of amounts recorded in the financial statements is appropriate

Kay audrt matter
ion

As at 30 March 2019 the Group heid £2,859.9 million of UK store assets in respect of stores not considered for closure
within the UK store rationalisation programme. in accordance with 1S 35 Impairment of Assets, the Group has
undertaken an annual assessment of indicators of impairment. An impawrment charge of £52.8 million has been
recognised within adjusting items as set out in notes 5 and 14 to the financial statements.

As desaibed in note 14 to the financial statements, the Group has estimated the recoverable amount of store assets
based on their value in use, derived from a discounted cash flow model prepared by management. The mode! relies on

cenain assumptions and estimates of future trading performance, incorporating cemmitted strategic changes to the UK
Clothing & Home and Food businesses and the performance of new stores operating withi their shelter period. all of
which involve a high degree of estimation uncertainty (as disclosed in note 1), particularly in light of current retail market
conditions and the impact of wider economic uncertainty.

The key assumptions appled by managernent in the impairment reviews performed are

e Future revenue growth and changes in gross margin;
s Longterm growth rates; and
*  Discountrates

The Group considers that each retail store constitutes its own cash generating unit {CGUY), with the exception of the
outlet stores which are used to dear aged seasonal Clothing & Home inventory at a discount. The outlet stores are
considered to represent one CGU in aggregate.

The Group's accounting policy sets out a relevant shelter period for new stores to be 1aken into account when assessing
indicators of impairment duting the fast two years of trading 10 enable stores te establish themselves within the market.

26
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

How the scope of In responding to the identdied key audit matier we completed the following audd procedures:
our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

Assessed the design and implementation of key controls pertaining ta the impawment review process,
Evaluated and challenged management's range of impairment indicators with due consideration paid 10 the
profitability impact of committed strategic changes to the UK Clothing & Home and Food businesses and the
perormance of new stores operating within their sheiter perods;

s Assessed the mechanical accuracy of the imgairment models and the methodelogy applied by management
for consistency with the requirement of IAS 36;

+  Assessed the appropriateness of forecast revenue and gross margin growth rates through comparison to
external economic benchmarking data;

+  Assessed the appropriateness of the discount rates applied in conjunction with support from our internal
valuations specialists and compared the rates applied with our internal benchenarking data;

»  Evaluated the appropriateness and completeness of information included in the impairment models based on
our cumulative knowledge of the business driven by our review of trading plans, strategic initiatives, minutes
of property and investment committee meetings, and meetings with regional store managers and senior
wading managers from key product categories, together with our wider retail industry knowledge; and
Assessed the complateness and accuracy of disciosures within the financual statements in accordance with
IFRSs

Key observations We are satisfied that the judgements applied, the impairments recorded, and the related disclosures within the financial
statements are appropriate.

wveritony provasioning for UK Clothing & Home

Key audit matter As at 30 March 2019, the Group held UK Clothing & Home inventories of £4%6. million (2018: £591.5 milkon). As

description described in the Accounting Policies in note 1 1o the financial statements, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. As a result, judgemnent is apphied in determining the appropriate provisions required for obsolete
inventory and inventory expected to be sold below cost based upon a detailed analysis of old season inventory and
forecast net realisable value based upon plans for inventory 16 go into sale. We consider the assessment of inventory
provisions within UK Clothing & Home to require the most judgement, with the nsk increased due 1o recent trading
performance and the quantum of gross inventory

How the scope of In respending to the identified key audit matier we completed the foliowing audit procedures:
our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

Assessed the design and mplementation of key controls pertaining to inventory management and the review
and approval of the UK's inventory provision;

Assessed the validity, accuracy and completeness of the information used by management in computing the
provision;

+  Assessed the mechanical accuracy and logic of the models underpinning the respective provisions;

+  Understood any changes in the provisioning methodology and challenged the appropriateness thereof;

«  Chalienged and vahdated the key assumptions applied by managernent m estimating the provision by
performing enquiries of buyers and merchand sers, considering the current purchasing strategy and ranging
plans, and by using audit analytics; and

+  Tested the validiy and completeness of the inventory flags and season codes applied to a representative
sample of individual product lines.

Key cbservations We concur that the judgements taken by management are appropnate and that the resultant level of invertory
provisioning recorded in respect of UK Clothing & Home 1s acceptable

2/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

Key audit matter As described in the Accnting Policies in note 1 and ir note 10 to the financial statements, the Group has & defined

dascription benefit pension plan for its UK employees. This scheme is closed 10 new entrants and benefits ne longer accrue to
members foliowing the move of all active members to deferred membership on 1 Apnil 2017

As at X0 March 2019, the Group recorded 2 net retirement benefit asset of £923.4 millon (2018 £959.7 millon), being
the net of scheme assets of £10,224.7 million (2018: £9,989.3 million) and scheme liabilities of £9,301.3 milion (2018
£%,025.6 million) £9,175 1 million of this liability relates to the UK scheme (2018: £8.907 6 millon}

Our key audit matter related to the valuation of UK scheme liabilities on account of the sensitivity to changes in key
assumptions such as the discount rate, inflation and montality estimates.

r

The setting of the assumptions identified above is complex and an area of significant judgement whereby changes in
any of these assumptions could lead to a material movement in the met surplus. The increase / (decease) in scheme
surplus caused by a change in each of the key assumptions is set out in note 10 10 the financial statements

How the scope of In responding ta the identified key audit matier we completed the following audit procedures:

our audit

responded to the
key audit matter

*

-

Assessed the design and Implementation of relevant controls pettaining to the estmation and valuation of
the pension liability;

Evaluated the appropriateness of the assumptions applied in the vatuation of scheme liabilities, and the
information contained within the supporting actuarial valuation reports for each scheme in conpunctian with
our internal pension specialst team;

Assessed the integrity of key inputs through agreement of a representative sample of membership scheme
records;

Perdformed senstivity analysis on the key vanables within the valuation mode! in accordance with externa!
benchmarking data; and

Assessed the completeness and accuracy of disdosures within the financial staterments in accordance with
IFRSs

Key observations We are satisfied that the assumptions applied in determining the valuation of the defined benefit obligation are
o appropriate. '

Sl

K
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

Key audit matter [n advance of adopting IFRS 16 Leases from 31 March 2019, the Group has finalised its assessment of the mpact that

iption the new accounting standard will have on its staterment of financial posttion. The expected impact of IFRS 16 as at 30
March 2019 is disclosed in note 1 to the bnancial ststements A number of judgements have been applied and
estimates made in determining the mpact of the standard.

In ordar to compute the transttion impact of IFRS 16, a significant data extraction exercise was undertaken by
management to summarise all property and equipment lease data such that the respective inputs could be uptoaded
into management’s model. The incremental borrowing rate (18R] method has been adopted where the implictt rate of
interest in a lease is not readily determinable.

Qur key audit matter was focused on the following areas of risk

+  Leasing arrangements within the scape of IFRS 16 are not identified or appropriately inciuded in the
calculation of the transitional impact; .

Specific assumptions applied te determine the discount rates for each lease are nappropnate;

The underlying lease data used to calculate the transitional impact is incomplete and/or inaccurate.
The mechanical accuracy of lease calculations is lawed; and

The disclosures in the financial statements are insufficient, precluding investors from obtaining & clear
understanding as 1o the transtions! impact ol the change mn accounting standard.

How the scope of in responding 1o the identified key audit matter we completed the following audit procedures:

our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

Assessed the design and implementation of key controls pertainmg to the determination of the IFRS 16
transition impact disclosures,

Assessed the apprapriateness of the discount rates applied in determining lease liabilities with input from our
valuation specialists;

s Verified the accuracy of the underlying fease data by agreeing a representative sample of leases to original
contract of other supporting information, and checked the integrity and mechanical accuracy of the IFRS 16
caleulations for each lease sampled through recalculation of the expected IFRS 16 adjusiment;

»  Considered completeness by testing the reconciliation to the Group's operating lease commitments
{disclosed per note 24 to the financial statements), and by investigating key service contracts to assess
whether they cantained a lease under IFRS 16; and

e Assessed whether the disclosures within the financial statements are appropriate in light of the requirements
of IAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Kay observations

We are satisfied that the disclosure of the expected impact of IFRS 1415 in accardance with the Group's stated
accounting policy and the related disclosure of these nems per note 1 to the financial statements is appropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

We defme materiality as the magnitude of mssstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional jJudgement, we determined materiality for the finandial staterments as a whole as follows:

Group finanaat statements r’arnnt cumpany financal statements

£200 mithon (2018, £24.5 million) £18 million {2018: £22.1 million)

he principal measure considered in both the current and
pric year was a benchmark of 5% of adjusted profit
before tax but excluding the impact of cartain adjusting
itemns, which woulkd give a materiality of £21.5 million. The
items we excluded from our determination are listed
below and explained further in note 5 to the financial
taternents’

M&S Bank charges {PP)) - £20.9 million

* UK logistics- £14.3 milkon

s UK store impairments and associated charges
within £62.1 million adjusting femn in note 5 -
£52 .8 million

In light of racent trading performance, the continued

challenging market condrtions in which the Group

operates, and the broader leval of uncertainty associated

ith the UK's exit from the European Union we applied

Inrofessional judgement to reduce materiality to £200  We used 0.8% of revenue as the basis of materiality and

mitlion. then further capped this at 20% of Group materiality

Bass for de!efm;nmg
matenahty

Adjusted profit before tax has been used as it is the

primary measure of performance used by the Group. We

have used adjusted profit measures that exclude certain

tems from our determination to aid the consistency and  Revenue has been used as it is a primary measure of
B comparability of aur materiality base each year. performance used by the Company.

Group materiality
£20.0m

Adjusted PBT £523.2m <

= Adjusted PBT

. Component materiality
range £2.0m to £18.0m

 Audit Committee
- reporting threshold
Er1.0m

2 Group materiality
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

The materiality apphed by component auditors for full scope audits ranged from £2.0 millon to £1B.0 million [2018 £2.2 million to £22.1
millon} depending on the scale of the component’s apetations and our assessment of nsks specfic to each location

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would repor to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £1.0 million (2018 £10
milhon), as well as differences below that threshold that, n our view, warranted reponting on qualitative grounds We akso report to the
Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements

Our group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and s environment, including group-wide controls, and
assessing the nisks of material misstatement at the Group level.

Based on our assessmant, and consistent with the prior year, we focused our group audit scope on the retail businesses m the UK, India
and Ireland, which were subject to a full audit This work was performed by the group audit team.

These components were selected to provide an appropriate basis for undertaking audt work 1o address the risks of material misstatement
identified above. All other wholly cwned and joint venture businesses were subject to analytical review procedures. Whikst we audtt the
revenues received by the Group from franchise operations, which account for 4% {2018: 7%} of the Group's revenue, we do nat audit the
underlying franchise operations as part of our group audr.

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and carried out snalytical procedures 1o confirm our conclusion that
there were no significant risks of matenial misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining compenents not subject
to a full audit.

1%

\"

Net assets i

Profit

Revenue
 before tax

9%

» full audit scope

» Specified audit procedures
and review at group level

Total

Assets

« Full audst scope

» Specified audit procedures and

review at group level

» Full audit scope

n Specified audit procedures
and review at group level

' Total

® Liabilities

= Full audit scope

» Specified audit procedures and

review at group level

- Full auds scope

a Specified avdit procedures
and review at group level
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

The mast signdicant component of the Group 1s its retail business in the UK, which accounts for 91% (2018, 909%) of the Group's reported
revenue of £10.377.3 miflion (2018; £10,698.2 millon, and generates operating proftt of £76 9 million [2018: £66.4 milion} The graup audit
team performs the audit of the UK business without the involvement of a component team During the course of our audit, the group audit
team, conducted 10 distribution centre and 25 retail store wisits in the UK to understand the current trading performance and, at certan
locations, performed tests of internal controls and validated levels of mventory held

We operate a programme of planned visits to overseas locations such that a senior member of the group audt team visits each of the
components subject 10 a full audit or specific audit procedures at least once every two years, and the most significant of them at least once
a year. The programme of visits in the current and prior year 1s set out below

Componert 2018 2019

frast {This
year}  year)
india
Republic of v
ireland

In addition to our programme of planned visits, we issue detailed referral instructions to our component audit teams, engage regularly with
them in our sudit team brefings, consider and discuss the appropriateness of their local risk assessment, attend closing meetings with
thermn and component management teams, and review their component reporting. A dedicated member of the group aud't team is
assigned to facilitate an effective and consistent approach to component oversight.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other nformation comprises the  We have nothing to report in respect of
information included in the annual repor, other than the financial statements and our auditor's these matters.
report thereon

Qur opnion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except 1o
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon

In connection with owr audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and., in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenally inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

i we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a2 material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstaterent of the cther information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there s a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact,

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satistied that they gwve a true and far view, and for such internal contrel as the directors determine is necessary
1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenial misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors erther intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no reahstic
ahernative but 1o do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fimancial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that mcludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect & material
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or emor and are considered matenal if, indraduzlly or in the aggregate,
they could reasanably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting iregularities, including fraud are set out below

A further descnpnun of aur respongbl ities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
[ v i . This description forms part of our auditor's repert

S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errer, and then design and
pertform audit procedures responsive to those rsks, including obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate 1o provide a
pasis for our opinion,

in identifying and assessing nisks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, indfuding fraud and ron-compliance with laws and
regulations, our procedures included the following:

enquiring of management, M&S Group pl internal audit, internal legal counsel, and the M&S Group plc Audit Commities,
including obtaining and reviewing supporting documentation, concerning the Group's policies and pracedures relating to:
o identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whethe! they were aware of any instances of
non-compliance;
o detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud;
o the internal controls established 1o mitigate risks related to fraud or non-comphance with laws and regulations
including the Group's controls relating to Grocenes Supply Code of Practice (*GSCOP’) requirements,
discussing among the engagement team including signilicant component audit teams and involving relevant internal
specialists, ncluding tax, valuations, real estate, pensions, and IT speciahsts regardhng how and where fraud might occur in the
financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we identified potential for fraud in the
disclosure of adjusting tems, and
obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, focusing on those laws and
regulations that had a direct effect on the financial statements or that had a fundamental effect on the operations of the
Group The key laws and regulations we considered in this context inctuded the UK Companies Act 2006, pensions legisiation
and UK and overseas tax legislation. The key laws and regulations which had a fundamental effect on the operations of the
Group included GSCOP, employment law and health and safety legislation.

£5s a resuh of performing the above, we idemified the disclosure of adjusting items as a key audit matter. The key audit matters section
of our report explains the matter in more detail and also describes the specific procedures we performed in response to that key audit

matter.

In addrion to the above, our procedures to respond to nsks identified included the following.

reviewing the financiat staternent disclosures and testing to supporting documentation 1o assess compliance with relevant
laws and regulations discussed above;

enquirng of management, the Audt Committee and n-house and extemal legal counsel concerning actual and potential
ltigation and claims,

perforrming analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may mdicate risks of material
misstatemnent due to fraud;

reacing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing intermat sudit reports and reviewing
correspondence with HMRC; and

in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entnies and
other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias;
and avaluating the business rationale of any sigrificant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to al' engagement team members ncluding
internal specialists and significant component audn teams, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws
and regulations throughout the audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER PLC CONTINUED

In our opinian, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audht:

s the iMformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the finanaal year for which the finandial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

«  the sirategic repont and the directors’ repart have been prepared m accordance with applicable legal requwernents.

L

In the light of the knewledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of

the audit, we have not identified any materia! misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, in our opinion: We have nothing to report in respect of

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

+  the parent company financial statemants are not in agreement with the acecunting
records and returns

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to repont if in our opinion certain We have nothing to report in respect of
disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not been made. this matter.

Following the recommendation of the M&S Group ple audit committee, we were appointed by the shaieholders on 8 July 2014 to audit
the financial statements for the year anding 28 March 2015 and subsequent financial periods. Tha peried of total uninterrupted
engagement induding previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 5 years, covenng the years ending 28 March 2015 to 30 March
2019,

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additiona! report to the audit committee we are required to prowde in accordance with I5As {UK)

This repart is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's reper and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyane other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audt work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Jome Madealiis
Jane Makiakis FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deioitte LLP

Statunory Auditor

Reading, United Kingdom

% September 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

52 waeks ended 30 March 2019

32 weeks endedt 31 March 2018

Praln bafore Proht belore
adpsting Adpstng sdjuating Adprating
e e Total Hems ttemns Tulal
. - o Ity tm Im m fm fm fm

Revenue B 23 10,3773 - 10,377 3 10,698 2 - 10698 2
Operatng profit 235 401.0 414 5) 1865 670.6 468 3) 2023
Finance income & 318 - 338 241 - 241
Finance costs 6 (1114) - {111.6) {313 8) - {1138)
Proftbeforetax T A 5232 @145 108.7 5809 (468 3) Nn26
Income tax expense 7 {105.1) 545 >0.6) {125.4) BS & (38.8)
Profit for the year 4151 {36008 581 455 5 (3817 738
Attributable to;
Owners of the parent 4143 (360.0) 54.3 4521 {3817 704
Non-controlling interests 38 - 38 34 - 34

418.1 (386C.0) 58.1 455 5 (381 7) 738

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

52 weehs ended 52 wowks ended
0 March 2009 31 March 2018
I Notes im {m
Profit for the year 58.1 738
Cther comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes 10 799 200 %
Tax credit/icharge) on items that will not be reclassdied 14.0 (39.00
’ 659 1619
Herns that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency wanslation differences
- moverments recognised in other comprehensive income (15.4) (23 4)
~ reclassified and reported in profit and loss - 136.2)
Fair value movemertt on available for sale assets - 25
Cash flow hedges and net investment hedges
- fair value movements recognised in other comprehensive income 1320 {208 7}
- reclassified and reported in profit or loss {1609 850
- amount recognised in inventorias - 575
Tax {charge)/credit on cash fiow hedges and net investment hedges (19.0% 19.7
AR (103.6)
Cther comprehensive income for the year, netof 1ax 15.7 583
Total comprehensive income for the year 73.8 132.1
Attributable to.
Owners of the parent 70.0 128 7
Non-controlling interests 38 34
738 132




Marks and Spencer plc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ad at As at
30 Wiarch 2019 31 March 2019
- Notes Em im
Assets T
Non-current assets
Imangble assets 13 4999 599.2
Property, plant 2nd equipment 4 40285 43737
Investment property 155 155
Investrnent in joint ventures 40 7.0
Onther financial assets 15 147 160
Retirement henefit asset 10 s 0.7
Trade and other receivables 16 200.7 2080
Derivative financial instruments 20 198 271
T 57185 6,2384
Current assets
Inventories 7004 7810
Other financial assets 15 26903 2,564 3
Trade and other receivahies 16 3225 3084
Derivative finanda! instruments 20 0.3 71
Cash and cash equivalents 17 285.4 2077
40389 38685
Toral assets %7535 10,106 9
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 1,461.3 1,405 9
Partaership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme H Ny ne
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 19 5131 1254
Derivative financial instruments 20 73 738
Provisions 21 1245 988
Current tax liabikties 26.2 50.0
2,204.3 1,826.0
Non-currest liabilities
Retirerment benefit deficit 10 172 225
Trade and other payables 18 124 3338
Partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 1 200.5 263.6
Bormowings and other hnangiat liablities 19 12795 1,6706
Derivative iinancial instruments 20 28 307
Frovisions 21 2501 1931
Deferred tax habilities 22 22246 256 4
2,295.1 27709
Total liabilities 4,499.4 4599
Net assets 5,254.1 55100
Equity
Issugd share capital 23 7125 7125
Share premium account 3861 3861
Capital redemption reseyve 8.0 80
Hedging reserve 29 65 3)
Foreign exchange reserve (44.7) (29.3}
Retained earnings 4,1952 4,500 5
Total shareholders’ aquity 5254.2 55125
Non-controlling interests in equity o) 25
Tota!l equity 5254.1 55100

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authonsed lor issue on 9 September 2019 The finanaal statements also comprise the notes
on pages 52 to 100

@

Humphirey Singer Chief Firgnoa Officer
Regrstered Number. 00214434
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ordinary Share Caputal Cost o Forexgn Non-
thae  premasm  recemption  Hadging  hedging  machangn  Retamed coatroiling
capital sctount 1esare reserve rosmeve renacve sarnmgs! Total intwrest Totat
m Im im im Em €in fm im Em Em
Aol 2 Aprd X7 H25 B4t 80 173 j oY 45158 5&702 59 56683
Profit for the year - - - - - 04 na 34 738
Other comgnehenawe leapenselincorme
Foregn currency tranalabior
movement gnaed in ather preh
ihtome - - - oz 238 (234} - a4
raclasafied snd reporied in profit and lovs - - - (32 - 3¢ 2) - 132
Remeasuremants of 1abrument beneht schemes - - 2009 09 - 209
Tas charge on wems that will not be reclasyified - - (=] 13904 - 3%a
Revalusiion of avadsbie for 1ale suaat - - - - % 25 - 25
Cash fiow hedges and net investment hedger
- dnir value rovernent recognied 1n ather
COMprehenzive NCOMe - - - @2nao - ?3 Q08 - (208 7)
= 1ectiaibed and repoied v proht o loas - - - 50 - »o 850 50
— #MAunt recagnsed noinyentone: - - - 578 - - 575 - 518
Taz on cash flow hedges and net mveatmant hadges - - - % - - 197 - w7
Cther compreherp® mcomat{exparme| - - - B2.6 - {59.8) 2007 S83 583
Total compratensme income/ieqrnae) - - (B2.4 - 1598 rial) 1287 34 1321
Trarsactions with ormers
Dwidends - - - - a5 0 1305 Oy - (3050}
Cradit for share basad payments - - ee Be - 8
Deferred Lan on share schemes - - - - - - - - - -
As a1 11 March 2018 2125 3861 80 165 3 2% 3 4,505 55125 35 55100
Ordinary Share Capstal Cos! ol Formgn Non-
share premuem redampton Hedging headging exchange Retovied conroling
capaal drcount ToboTYe rerve Teweruy reserve sarmingn! Totat merest Total
im im {m £m {m Em im £m tm im
As sl | April X018 H2E 38461 a0 ibh 3 29y 4,505 55125 25 55100
Adpatment on mited apphcation of IFRS § - - - non W% ) - 05 (3] - 035
Adpasted opering sharehaldars squity n2s 2841 80 2603 Wa?r By 45000 55128 25 55095
Profit for the yem - - - - - - 543 543 as 581
Other comprehenmwe fexprmelncomne
Forergn cunency ranslation
- gnasd n olher o eh
income - - - - 54] 1s54) - 054
Rememuements of retrement banelit schames - - - - - 9 o] - ekl
Tax credit on men that wil not be reclassded - - - - - - “o 1Hp - uo
Cah flew hedges end net nvesiment hedge:
- tair walue movement recogneed i other
camprehensive income - - 1205 1% - - 13zo0 - 1320
- tectarsdied and reportnd r profit or ks - N - nso - eo - (60
Tax on cash flow hedges snd pel invesiment hedges - - - 1B.5 [13) - - (re.00 - {190
Othet comptahenpyvs incomatiexpensa) - - - 960 10 054 659 157 - 15.7
Tutal compehenswe ncome/(eapense) - - 9% 0 10 (154 (315 0 38 738
Cash flow hedgea recognmed i mvantones - - - uz7 - - wzn - a2
Tax an cath flow hedges recogried in nvenwones - - - a1 - - - &1 - B1
Trarsactions with owners
Dradends - - - - - - 360 [0 ] - {3050y
Trarsaclans wih non-contioling thaisholder: {14) a8
Puriheas of shares hek by employee tiult - - N _ B - “8 e - ()]
Credt fo sharg besed pagments - . - - - - 192 192 - 192
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - _ ©8 0 - 048
As at X March 2019 AR 3861 BO (4 4) "7 7 41753 5243 L) 52541

Anounts rechnsled std reponed rprotil o ke’ Kcicdin the revahaston of the ooss carmenty swaps, offseiting the 1ewabuation of the USD bedged Bonds withm inance coms

kH
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

52 weeka 57 meeks
erded 30 ended 31
March 2019 March 2018
I Notes im fn
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 25 1,0410 944 1
_Income tax paid (105.7} ©43
_Net cash inRow from operating activities 9353 B49.8
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on property disposals ' 48.1 32z
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 217.8 (274.9)
Proceeds on disposal of Hong Kong business - 229
Purchase of intangible assets 95.1) 74.3)
{Purchase)/ssle of current financial assets (128.1) 08
Interest received 7.4 &0
Purchase of investment in joint venture @5 .
__Net cash used in investing activities {388.0) (316.3)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid’ (8464} (1122
Cash inflow/ioutilow) from borrowings @s.n 438
Payment of obligations under finance leases B3 268
Payment of hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme ®1.6) (59.6)
Equity dividends paid {3050 (305 O
Purchase of own shares by employee trust 5.5) {31y
Issuance/{redemption) of Medium Term Notes 14 (320.2)
_Movement in parent company loan 21 17
_ Net cash used in financing activities (505.0) {745.2)
_ Net cash inflow/(outflow) from activities 423 231.7)
Effects of exchange rate changes 0z (3.5}
_Opening net cash 1710 406.2
Closing net cash T 2 2131 1710
1 lnchudes rtenem o0 tha partnerhip kbt 10 the Marks § Spencar UK Penmon Scheme
52 weeks 52 weeks
anded 30 ended 3t
March 2019 March 2018
MNotes Em fm
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Opening net debt 7231 417 5
Net cash nflowf{outflow) from activities 423 {2317
Increasefidecrease) in current financial assets 1260 (2 4)
Decrease in debt financing 110.2 6 é
Exchange and other non-cash movements 1.8 16.9)
Movement in net debt 280.3 105 6

_ Closing net dabt ‘ 26 1,0034 7231




Marks and Spencet plc

NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POUCIES

General information

Marks and Spencer plc (the Companylis a public Company imited by shares incorporated m the United Kingdorm under the Companies Act
and is regstered in England and Wales. The address of the Company's registered office s Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London
W2 TNW :

The principal activities of the Group and the nature of the Group'’s operations is as a Clothing and Home and Food retailer.

These financial statements are presented n Sterkng, which 15 the currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the Group operates
and are rounded o the nearest million Foreign operation are included in accordance with the policies set out within this note

Basis of preparation

The {inancial statements have been prepared in sccordance with International Fmancizl Reporting Standards (iFRS) and IFRS Interpretations
Committee {IFRS IC) interpretations. as adopted by the European Union, and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable 1o
companies reporting under IFRS.

in sdopting the going concern basis for prepanng the financial statements, the drrectors have considered the business actvities including
the Group's principal risks and uncertainties Based on the Group's cash flow farecasts and projections, the Board is satisfied that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial staternents for the year ended 30 March 2019. -

The Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership has taken an exemption under paragraph 7 of the Partnership (Accounts) Regulations
2008 frorn the requirement to prepare and delvet financial statements in accordance with the Companwes At

New accounting standards adopted by the Group

There have been sigrificant changes to accounting under IFRS which have affected the Group's financial statements. New standards and
interpretations effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018 and therefore apphcable to the Group's financial statements for
the 52 weeks ended 30 Marcch 2019 are listed below:

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

- Amendmerts to IFRS 4 Insurance contracts regarding the wnplementation of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

- Interpretaton IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration.

- Amendments to IAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property

- Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payments, on clarifying how to account for centain types of share-based payment transactions
- Annual improvements to IFRS _S:andards 20142016 Cydle {centain nems effectve from 1 January 2017)

With the exception of the adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, the adoption of the above standards and interpretations has not led te any changes
to the Group's aceounting policies or had any other material impact on the financial position or performance of the Group

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement. The standard 1s effective for penods
commenang on ar after 1 January 2018 and therefore has been implemented with effect from 1 Apnl 2018 The standard mtroduces changes
to three key areas:

- New requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments
~ A new impairment model based on expected credit losses for recognising provisions
- Simplfied hedge accounting through closer alignment with an entity’s risk management methedology

The adoption of IFRS & has not had a material impact on either the Consolidated income Statement or the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. The Group has adopted IFRS 9 using the modified transition approach and has therefore adjusted opening retained
earnings for the mpact of IFRS 9 on the opening bad debt provision and has not restated the prior penod comparatives The impact of the
adoption of the new standard is shown in note 28 which includes additional disclosures refating 1o hedge accounting {including a new cost
of hedging reserve}, credit risk management and imgairment of financial assets

The Group has an economic interest in M&S Bank which entriles the Group to a 50% share of the profis of M&S Bank sfter appropriate
deductions M&S Bank adopted IFRS ¢ with effect from 1 January 2018 The Group's share of profits for the prior period includes the post
implementation impact of adopting the expected credt loss model for provisioning in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 which
had an immaterial impact in the priar periad.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effectve for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and theretore has been
implemented with effect from 1 April 2018. The standard establishes a principles-based approach for revenue recognition and is based on
the concept of recognising revenue for performance ovdligations only when they are satisfied and the control of goods or services is
transferred In doing so, the standard applies 2 five-step approach to the timing of revenue recognition and applies to afl contracts with
custamers, gxcept thase 10 the scope of other standards. It replaces the separate models {or goods, services and construction cantracts
under the previous accounting standard Due to the straightforward nature of the Group’s revenue streams with the recognition of revenue
at the point of sale and the absence of significant judgernent required n deterrmining the trming of transfer of control, the adoption of IFRS
15 has not had a material impact on the timing or nature of the Group’s revenue tecognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Under IFRS 15 a nght of return 1s not 2 separate performance obligation and the Group is required to recognise revenue net of estimated

returns. A refund liability and a corresponding asset representing the right to recover products from the customer is also recognised There

15 no change to the Group's revenue recognition under IFRS 15. However, the refund provision was prewously recorded on a net basss within

E:srrent Liabilities and therefore on adoption of IFRS 15 the Group was required to adjust inventories and the refund provision to a gross
19,

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the modified transition approach and has therefore not restated the prior period comparatives for the

separate recognition of the refund asset and the increase in the refund provision.

In additon to the changes 10 the accounting policies, the Group s tequired to disclose how the adoption of the new accounting standard
has affected the financial statements. Thare is no impact on the Consolidated Income Statement, however the impact on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Posrtion for the change in accounting for the refund provision is as follows:

At 30 March 2019, the refund provision on the balance sheet was accounted for on the gross basis under (FRS 15 There is a kability of £22 2m
and a related refund asset of £8 9m if accounted for on a net basis, the refund provision on the balance sheet would be £13.3m.

New accounting standards in issue but not yat effective

New standards and intempretations eHective for pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2019 and therefore applicable to the Group for
the 52 weeks ending 28 March 2020 are listed below:

- Annual mprovements to IFRS Standards 20152017 Cycle.

- Amendmenits to IFRS 9 Financial instruments, on prepayment features with negative compensation

- Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in associates, on long term nterests in associates and joint ventures
- Amendments to IAS 19 Employee benefits on plan amendment, curtaiment or settlement

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatrents.

- IFRS 16 Leases.

With the exception of the adopbon of IFRS 14, the adoption of the above standards and interpretations will not lead to any changes to the
Group's accounting polices or have any other material impact on the financial pesition or performance of the Group.

IFRS 16 Leases is effective for penods beginning on or after 1 Janwary 2019. The Group will adopt the new financial reporting standard from
31 March 2019. The financial statements for the 52 weeks ending 28 March 2020 will be the first prepared under iFRS 16. The Group has
decided to adopt using the fully retraspective transition approach meaning the comparative period wil also be restated at this time.

impact of application of IFRS 14 Leases

As a lessee, IFRS 16 removes dstnctions between operating and finance leases and requires the recognition of a right of use asset and
corresponding liability for future lazse payables. The nght of use asset wil! be subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis over the life
of the lease. Interest will be recognised on the lease liabitity. This will result in earler recognition of expense for leases currently dassified as
operating leases, atbough over the Ife of a lease the total expense recognised will not change.

Right of use assets recognised by the Group comprise of property. motor vehicles and equipment, including those in scope under centain
logistics contracts. The Group has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets, and lease
payments associated with those assets will be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basss. In addition, amounts for keases with varisble
consideration, such 83 tumover leases, will continue to be recognised on a straight-lne basis

As 3 lessor, subl previously classified as operating must be reassessed in consideraon of the remaining contractual term and conditions
with reference to the right of use asset arising from the head lease. The Group will reclassify certain sublease agreements as finarce leases
and recognised a net mvestment in lease, resulting in a change in timing of recognition of sublease income.

There will be a significant impact on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019. 1t is expected on a pre-tax basis that a right of use asset of
approximately £1.7bn and lease liabilty of approximately £2.6bn will be recognised, along with the derecognition of onerous lease provisians
of appraximately £0.2bn and other working capitat belances (inchuding lease incentives} of approximately £0.4bn, which results in an overail
adjustment 1o retained eamings of approximately £0.3bn.

Operating profit and EBIT before adjusting items increase due 1o the depreciation expense being lower than the lease expense it replaces.
The overall smpact or, profit before tax and adjusting items depends on the relative maturity of the lease portfalo. Routded to the nearest
£10m, it is estimated that for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2019:

- Profit before tax when applying IFRS 1& is c£10m higher than that reported in these financial statements under current accounting
standlards, including |AS 17 Leases

- Profit before tax excluding adjusting tems is c£10m lower.

- Operating profit before tax and adjusting items s ¢£130m higher

The application of FRS 16 requwes a reclassification of cash flow from operations to net cash used in financing activities, howeves, the inpact
10 the Group 1s cash flow neutral.

The Group has had In place a working group and steering commitlee to sssess the impact and oversee the implementation of the new
standard. The adoption of the new standard & nearing completion, inchuding the implementation of approgpriate internal controls and a
governance framewark to ensure the requirements of the new standard continue to be met including an assessment of new contracts
requiring judgement as 10 whether they are m scope of the standard.
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Alternative Performance Measuras
In reporting financial infarmation, the Group presents ahternative performance measures (APMs), which are not defined or specried under
the requirements of IFRS.

The Group believes that these APMs, which are not considered to be 2 substitute for o superior 10 IFRS measures, provide stakeholders
with additional helpful information on the performance of the business These APMs are consistent with how the busmess performance
planned end reported within the internal management reporting to the Board and Operating Committee Some of these measures ate akso
used for the purpose of setting remuneration targets.

The key APMs that the Group uses include: like-for-hike revenue growth; like-for-like revenue growth adjusted for Easter; management gross
margir; profit before tax and adjusting items, adjusted eamings per share; net debt; free cash flow; and retum on capital employed. £ach of
these APMs, and others used by the Group, are set out in the Glossary including explanations of how they are calculated and how they can
be reconciled to a statutory measure where relevant.

The Group reports some financial measures, pnmanly International sales, on both a reported and constant currency basis. The constant
currency basis, which is an APM, retranslates the previous year revenues at the average actual penodic exchange rates used in the current
fimancial year This measure is preseried as a means of efiminating the effects of exchange rate fiuctuations on the ysar-on-year reported
results

The Group makes cerain adjustments to the statutory profit measures in order to derive many of these APMs. The Group's policy is to
exclude iterns that are considered to be significant in both nature and/or quantumito the financial statement line iterm or applicable disclosure
note of are consistent with tems that were treated as adjusting in prior periods. Treatment as an adjusting item provides stakeholders with
additional useful information to assess the year-on-year irading performance of the Group. On this basis, the following items were included
within adjusting items for the 52-week period ended 30 March 2019

Net charges associated with the strategic programme in relation 10 the review of the UK store estate

Significant restructuring costs and other associated costs arising from strategy changes that are not considered by the Group to be part of
the normal operating costs of the business.

Significant pension charges arising as a resu't of the previous year’s changes to the UK defined benefit scheme practices.

Imparment charges and provisions that are considered to be significant in nature and/or value to the trading performance of the business

- Charges arsing from the write-off of assets and other property charges that are considered to be significant in nature and/or value

Significant non-cash charges relating to the Group's defined benefit scheme arsing from equalisation of guaranteed minimum pensions
{(GMP) and other pension equalisation.

Significant costs arising from establishing the new joint venture with Ocada.

Adjustrents to income from MBS Bank due 10 a provision recognised by M&S Bark for the cost of praviding redress to customers in
respect of possible mis-selling of M85 Bank financial products

Other adjssung items, in the prior year, including profit on sale of Hong Kong and charges {or potential liabilities for employee related
matters In the current year, a credit in relation to the finalisation of charges for certain employee telated matters provided for during
the prior year.

Refer to note 5 for a summary of the adjusting items

A summary of the Company's and the Group's agcounting polces is given below:

Accounting convention

The financial statements are drawn up on the historical cost basis of accounting, except for the revaluation of financial nstruments (inchuding
dervative instruments) and defined benefit pension schemes which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
expiained n the accounting palicies below.

Basis of consalidation

The Group financial staterments incorporate the financial staterments of Marks and Spencer plc and all its subsidiaries made up to the period
end date. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidaries to bring the accounting policies used in line
with those used by the Group

Subsiciaries

Subsidiary undentakings are all entities finduding specral purpose entities) over which the Company has control. Control s achieved when
the Company has the power over the subsidliary; is exposed, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary; and
has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obitains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year are recorded using the
acquisition method of accounting and their results are included from the date of acquisition.

The separable net assets, including property, plant and equipment and mitangible assets, of the newly acquwed subsidiary undertakings are
incorporated into the consolidated financial statements on the basis of the fair value as at the effective date of control.

Intercampany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eiminated

Revenue

2018 {1A5 18) Revenue comprises sales of goods to customers outside the Group less an appropniate deduction for actual anc expected
returns, discounts and loyahty scheme vouchers, and is stated net of value added tax and other sales taxes. Revenue is recognised when
goods are dehvered to our franchise partners or the customer and the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer.
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2012 (IFRS 15): Revenue comprises sales of goods to cuslomers putside the Group less an appropriate deduction for actual and expected
returns, discounts and loyalty scheme vouchers, and s stated net of valse added tax and other sales taxes Revenue is recognised when
performance cbligations are satisfied and goods are delivered to our franchise partners or the custormer and the controt of goods
trarsferred to the buyer.

Under IFRS 15 a nght of return is not a separate performance obligation and the Group is requrred 1o recogrise revenue net of estmated
returns. A refund hability and a corresponding asset in inventory representing the right to recover products from the customer are recognised

The Group enters into agreements which entitle other parties to operate under the Marks & Spencer brand name for certan activities and
operations, such as M&S Bank and M&S Energy These contracts give rise to performance-based variable consideration. Income dependent
on the performance of the third party eperations is recognised when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of incorme
recognised will not occur, and presented as other operating income

Supplier income

in tine with industry practice, the Group enters into agreements with suppliers to share the costs and benefits of promotional actwity and
vohime growth. The Group receives income from its suppliers based on specific agreements in place This supplier income received
recognised as a deduction from cost of sales based on the entitlement that has been earned up 1o the balance sheet date for each relevant
suppher agreement. Marketing contributions, equipment hire and other non-judgemental, fixed rate supplier charges are not included in
the Group's definition of supplier income.

The types of supplier income recognised by the Group and the associated recognition policies are:

A Promotional contribution Includes supplier contributions to promational giveaways and pre-agreed contributions to annual “spend and
save” attivity

Income is recognised as a dedisction to cast of sales over the relevant promotional pefiod Income is calculated and invoiced at the end of
the promoticnal period based on actual sales or accordng to fxed contribution arrangements. Contributions earned but not invoiced are
accrued at the end of the relevant period

B. Volume-based rebates Includes annual growth incentives, seasonal contributions and contributions to share economies of scale resulting
from moving product supply.

Annual growth incentives are calculated and invoiced at the end of the financial year, once earned, based on fixed percentage growth targets
agreed for each supplier at the beginning of the yaar. They sre recognised as a reduction in cost of sales in the yeer to which they relate.
Other volume-based rebates are agreed with the suppiier and spread over the relevant season/contract period to which they refate.
Contributions earned but not invoiced are accrued at the end of the relevant period.

Uncollected supplier income at the balance sheet date is classified within the financial statements as follows:

A. Trade and other payables The majority of income due from suppliers is netted aganst amounits owed to that suppher as the Group has
the legal fight and intention to offset these balances.

B. Trade and other receivables Supplier income that has been earned but not invoiced at the balance sheet date is recognised in trade and
other receivables and primarily relates 1o volume-based rebates that run up to the period end.

In order 1o provide users of the accounts with greater understanding in this area, additional balance sheet disclosure 1s provided i note 16

M&S Bank

The Group has an economic interest in M&S Bank which ertitles the Group to a 50% share of the profits of M&S Bank after appropriate
deductions.

Dividends

Final dividends are recorded in the financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the Company's shareholders.
Interim dividends are recorded in the period i which they are approved and paid.

Pensions

Funded pension plans are in place for the Group's UK employees and some employees overseas.

For defired benefit pension schernes, the difference between the fair value of the assets and the present value of the defined benefit
obligation is recognised as an asset or liability in the statement of financial position. The defined benefit obligation is actuarially calculated
using the projected unit credit methad. An asset can be recognised as in the event of a plan wind up, the pension scheme rules provide the
Group with an unconditional right to a refund of surplus assats assuming a full settlement of plan liabilities. in the ordinary course of business,
the Trustees have no rights to wind-up or change the benefits due to the members of the scheme. As a result, any net surplus in the UK
Defined Benefit (DB} scheme i recognised in full.

The service cost of providing retirement benefits to emplayees dunng the year, together with the cost of any curtailment, is charged to
operating profit in the year. The Group no longer incurs any service cost or curtailment costs related to the UK DB pension scheme as the
schermne is dosed to future accrual,

The net interest cost on the nat retirement benafit asset/lizbility 15 calculated by applying the discount rate, measured at the beginning of
the year, to the net defined benefit asset/liability and is mcluded as a single net amount in finance income

Remeasurements, being actuarial gains and losses, together with the ditference between actual investment retuns and the return implied
by the net interest cost. are recognised immaediately in other comprehensive income.

Dunng the prior year the UK defined benefit pension scheme purchased annutties in order 1o hedge longevity tisk for pensioners within the
scheme. As permitied by IAS 19, the Group has opted to recognise the difference between the fair vakue of the plan assets and the cost of
the polcy as an actuanal loss in other comprehensive income

Payrments to defired cortribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense on an accruals basis
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intangible assets

A. Goodwill Goodwilt arising on consolidation represents the excess of the consideration pard and the amount of any non contraling interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable assets and habilities fincluding intangible assets) of the acquired entity 2t the date of the
acquisttion Geodwill is recognised as an asset and assessed for impairment annuaily or as triggering events occur. Any imparment in vahie
1s recognised within the income statement

B. Brands Acquired brand values are held on the staternent of financial position initially at cost. Definite Ife intangibles are amortised on a
straight-line basis over theit estimated usefu! lives. Brands are tested for impairment as triggering events ocour. Any impairment in value is
recognised within the income statement

C. Software intangibles Where computer software is not an integral part of a related item of computer hardware. the software is treated as
an intanghble asset. Capitalised software costs indude external direct costs of goods and services, as well as internal payroll-related costs for
employees who are directiy associated with the project

Capitalised software development costs ere amortisad on a straight-line basis aver their expected economic lives, normally between 3 and
10 years. Computer software under development is held at cost less any recognised mpairment loss. Ary impairment in value 1 recognised
within the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s policy is to stete property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.
Property is not revalued for accounting purposes. Assets in the course of construction are heid at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Cost indudes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of tangible non-current assets {inchuding investment properties), less estimated resicual values
on & straight hrve basis as follows :

- Freehold land - not depreciated.

- Freehold and leasehold buildings with a remaining lease term over 50 years — depreciated 10 their residual value over their estimated
remaining economic lives.

- Leasehold buildings with 2 remaining lease term of less than 50 years — deprediated over the shoner of ther useful economic lives of the
remaining period of the lease

. Fixturas, fittings and equipment - 3 to 25 years according 1o the estimated economi: life of the asset

Residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed annually Depreciation is charged on all additions 1o, or disposals of, deprecating
assets in the year of purchase or disposal.

Any impairment in value ts recagnisad within the income statemant

Leasing

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements and the risks and rewards are substantially translerred to the Group thnance leases) the
assets are treated as if they had been purchased outright, and the corresponding lisbilty to the leasing company is included as an obligation
under finance leases, Depreciation on leased assets is charged to the income statement on the same basis as owned assets, unless the term
of the lease is sharter Leasing payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest is charged to the income
statermnent

Al other leases are operating leases and the costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straght-line basis over the lease term
The value of any lease incentive received to 1ake on an operating lease {for example, a rent free penod) is recognised as deferred income
and is released over the life of the lease.

Leasehold prepayments
Payments made to acquire leasehold land and buildings are induded in prepayments at cost and are amortised over the life of the lease.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term depasits with banks and other financial institutions, with an inttial maturity of three months o
less and credit card payments received within 48 hours.

Inventories

nventories are valued on & weighted average cost basis and carried at the lower of cost and net realisable valve, Cost includes all direct
expendnure and other attributable costs incurred in bringing inventories to their present location and condition. All inventories are finished
goods. Certain purchases of inventones may be subject to cash flow hedges for foreign exchange risk. The Group apphes a basis edjustment
for those purchases in 2 way that the cost is mitially established by reference to the hedged exchange rate and not the spot rate at the day
of purchase.

Provisions

Provisions. ate recognised when the Group has a present obhgation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be
required 10 settle that obhgation Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
and of the reporting period, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settied share-based payments to certan employees. A farr value for the equity-settied share awards is measured at
the date of grant The Group measures the fair value of each award using the Black-Scholes model where appropriate.

The fair value of each award is recognised as an expense over the vesting period on a straight-line basis, after allowing for an estimate of the
share awards that will eventually vest. The leve! of vesting is reviewed at each reporting period and the charge is adjusted to reflect actuat
and estimated levels of vesting
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Foreign currencies

The results of overseas subsidharies are translated at the weighted average of monthly exchange rates for revenue and profits. The statements
of financial position of overseas subsidiaries are translated at year end exchange rates. The resuhing exchange differences are booked into
reserves and reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Transactions denorinated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting pericd are transiated at the closing balance sheet rate. The resufting exchange gain or
loss is recognised within the income statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges.

Taxation -

Tax expense comprises current and defered 1ax. Tax s recognised in the income statement, except to the extent it relates 1o tems
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related tax is recognised in other comprehensive mcome
or directly in equity.

Provision s made for uncertain tax positions when it 15 considered probable that there witl be a fiture outflow of funds to a tax authornty. The
provision is cakculated using the single best estimate where that outcome s more likely than not and a weighted average probability in other
arcumstances. The position is reviewed on an ongoing basis, to ersure appropriate provision & made for each known tax nsk.

Deferred tax is accounted for using a temporary differerce approach, and is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is calculated based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the catrying
amount of assets and liabilties, applying tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting pericd

Deferred tax habilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax labuitties are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint veniures, except where the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled by the Group and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deterred 1ax liabilties are not recognised on temporary differences that arise from goodwill which is not deductible for tax purposes.

Deferred 1ax assets are recognised o the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible 1emporary
differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferrad tax assets and habilities are not recognised inresped of temporary differences that arise on initial recognition of assets and labilities
acquired other than in a business combination.

Financial instrumants
Financial assets and habilities are recognsed in the Group's statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrurment.

A. Trade and other receivables Trade recevables are recorded initiafly at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. This results
in thew recognition at nominal value less an allowance for any doubtful debts. The allowance for doubtful debts was recognised under an
“incurred koss” model until 1 April 2018 and therefare it was dependent upon the existence of an impairmaent event. From 1 April 2018, the
allowance for doubtful debts is recognised based on management's expectation of losses without regard to whether an impairment trigger
happened or not {an "expected credit loss” model)

8. Other financal assets Other fmancial assets consist of investments in debt and equity securities and short-term investments with 2 maturity
date of over 90 days and are dassified as either "fair value through other comprehensive income” (“available for sale™ for periods before 1
April 2018) or "fair value through profit and loss™. Financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income or available for sale
for the periods before 1 April 2018 are initially measured at fair value, including transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
finanaia! asset. Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss are initially recogrised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed.

Whaere securities are designated a3 “fair vahie through profit and koss*, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are inciuded in the
income staterment for the period

For equity iwestments at “fair value through comprehensive income”, gains or Josses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, until the security is disposed of, at which time the cumulative gain or ks previously recognsed in other
comprehenswve income is included directly in retained earrings and & not recycled to the income statement For the periods before 1 Apnl
2018, the gains or losses accumulated at the time of sale of impairment are recycled to the income statement.

For debt instruments at “fair value through comprehensive income” or “avallable for sale” in the periods before 1 Apnl 2018, gains and
Josses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income, until the security is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss praviously recognised in other comprehensive income 15 induded in the income
statement for the period Until 1 April 2018, debt securities were deemed impaired based on whether an impairment tngger happened and
it resulted in an incurred loss. From 1 April 2018, impairments in debt securities are recognised based on management’s expectation of
losses in each irvestment (“expected credit loss™ model)

Until 1 April 2018, equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose farr value cannot be relably
measured by other means are held at cost. From 1 April 2018, all equity ivestments must be measured at fair value under IFRS ¢

C. Classification of financial liabilities and equity Financial labiities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered o, An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of 1s kabilives
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D. Bank borrowings Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value, which equals the proceeds received, net of
drrect issue costs. They are subsequently held at amortised cost Finance charges, ndluding premiurns payable on setilement or redemption
and direct issue costs, are accounted for using an effective interest rate method and are added 1o the carrying amount of the instrument to
the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise

E. Loan notes Long-term loans are itially measured at fair value net of direct issue costs and are subsequently held at amortised cost unless
the loan is designated in a hedge relationship, in which case hedge accounting treatment will apply.

F. Trade payabies Trade payables are recorded initially at fax value and subseguently measured a1 amortised cost Generally, this results in
their recognition at their nominal value.

G. Equity instruments Equrty instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the consideration received, net of direct issue costs

[erivative financal instruments and hedging activities

The Group primarily uses interest rate swaps, crass-currency swaps and forward foreign currency contracts 1o manage s exposures to
fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates. These instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the trade date and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The method of recognising the rasulting gain or loss is
dependent on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and the nature of the itam being hedged 4

The Group designates certain hedging derivatives as either,

- A hedge of 8 highly probable forecast transaction or change in the cash flows of a recognised asset or liability {a cash flow hedge}
- Ahedge of the exposure to change in the farr value of a recognised asset or liability {a far value hedge).

- Ahedge of the exposure on the translation of net investments in foreign entities (a net nvestment hedge}

At the inception of a hedging relationship, the hedging mstrument and the hedged item are documented, along with the risk management
cbjectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions and prospective effectiveness testing is performed

During the lie of the hedging relationship, prospective effectiveness testing is perfermed (betore 1 April 2018, both prospective and
retrospective tests weve required) to ensure the instrument remains an effective hedge of the transaction. Changes in the fair value of
derwvatve financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised m the income staternent as they arise.

A. Cash fiow hedges Changes in the fai value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash
flows are recegnised in other comprehensive income. From 1 April 2018, the elemant of the change i fair value which relates to the cumency
spread is recognised in the cost of hedging reserve, with the remaining change in fair value recognised in the hedging reserve {in the period
before 1 April 2018, the entire change in far value was recognised in the hedging reserve) and any ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income staternent. if the firm commitment or forecast transaction that is the subject of a cash flow hedge results in the
recogntion of a non-financial asset or hability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the
derivative that had previousty been recognised in other comprehensive income are ncuded in the inital measurement of the asset ox liabilny.

For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a hability, amounts deferred in other comprehensive income are recognsed
in the incorme statement in the same period in which the hedged items affect net profit or koss.

B. Fair value hedges Changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument designated in a fair value bedge, or for non-derwvatives the foreign
curency component of carrying value, are recognised in the income statement The hedged ttern is adjusted for changes in fair value
attributable to the risk.

C. Netinvestment hadges Changes in the fair value of derwative or non-dervative financial instruments that are designated and effective as
hedges of net investments are recognised in other comprehensive income in the hedging reserve and any ineffectiva portion is recognised
immediately in the ncome statement

Changes in the farr value of derwative financial instruments that da not qualify for hedge accounting are recogrised in the income statement
as they arise.

D. Discontinuance of hedge aocounting Hedge accounting 15 dscentinued when the hedging instrument expires or 5 sold, terminated, or
exercised, the hedge relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the forecast transaction is no konger expacted to occur, From 1
April 2018 the Group cannot voluntarily de-designate a hedging relationship.

When a cash flow hedge is discontinued, any cumulatve gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognisad in other comprehensive mcome
s retained in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. Subseguent changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments are recognised in
the income statement. if a hedged transaction is no longer expected teraccur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in comprehensive
ncome is transferred 1o the income statement for the period.

when a fow value hedge 15 discontmued, the farr value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged nem arising from the hedged nisk
1s amortised to the mcome statement from that date.

When a net mwestment hedge s discontinued, the subsequent changes m fair value of 2 denvative (or foreign exchange gains/ losses an
recognised financial habilities) are recognised in the income statement. The gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in other
comprehensive ncome is reclassified to the income statement only on disposal of the net investrnent

The Group does not use derivatives to hedge mcome statement translation exposures

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation unceriainty
The preparation of consclidated financial statements requires the Group to make estamates and judgements that affect the apphcation of
policies and reported amounts

a4
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Criucal judgements represent key decisions made by managerment in the application of the Group accounting polices. Where a signficant
risk of materatly different outcomes exists due te management assumptions or key sources of estrnation uncentainty, this will represent a
key source of estmation uncertanty Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, inchuding expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resuhs may differ from
these estimates

The estimates which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and kabilities within the next 12
months are discussed below

Critical accounting judgements

Adjusting items The directors believe that the adjusted proft and earnings per share measures provide addstional useful information to
shareholders on the perforrmance of the busmess These measures are consistent with how busmess performance s measured intemally by
the Board and Operating Committee. The profit before tax and adjusting iterns measure is not 2 recognised profit measure under IFRS and
may not be directly comparable with adjusted profit measures used by other companies The classification of adjusting items requires
significant management judgement after considering the nature and intentions of a transaction The Group's definitions of adpsting items
are outlined within both the Group accounting polidies end the Glossary. These defmnitions have been applied consistently year on year

Note 5 provides further details on current year adjusting items and ther adherence to Group policy.
UK Defined Benefit pension surplus Where a surplus on a defined benefit scheme arises, the nghts of the Trustees to prevent the Group

obtaining a refund of that surplus in the future are considered i determining whether o s necessary 1o restrict the amount of the sumlus that
is recognised. The UK Defined Benefit scheme is in surplus at 30 March 2019. The directors have made the judgement that these amounts
meet the requirements of recoverability and a surplus of £931 5m has been recognised.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

UK store estate The Group is undertaking a significant strategic programme to review its UK store estate resultng in a net charge of £222.1m
{last year £321 1m) in the year. A significant level of estmation has been used to determine the charges to be recognised in the year. The
maost significant pudgement that impacts the charge is that the stores identified as part of the programme are miore likely than not to close
Further significant dosure costs and impairment charges may be recorded in future years depending on decisions made about further store
closures and the successful delivery of the transformation programme.

Where a store closure has been announced there is a reduced level of estimation uncertainty as the programme actions are to be taken over
a shorter and more immediate timeframe. Further significant estmation uncertainty arises in respect of determining the recoverable amount
of assets and the costs to be incurred as part of the programme. Significant assumptions have been made including:

- Reassessment of the useful lives of store fixed assets and closure dates

Estiration in respect of the expected shorter-term trading value in use, nduding assumptions with regard 1o the period of trading as well
as changes to future sales, gross margin and operating costs.

Estmation of the sale proceeds for freehold stores which is dependent upon location specific factors, trming of likely exit and future
changes to the UK retail property market vatuiations :

Estimation of the value of dilapidation payments required for leasehold store exts, which is dependent on a number of factors including
the extent of modifications of the store, the terms of the lease agreement, and the condition of the property

Esvmation of future contractual lease costs to be incurred indluding uncertainty with regards ta the cost of termination, potential sub-let
(including estimation of nature, timing and value including any potential veid periods and based on assessmant of location speciic retail
property market factors), .

See notes 5 and 14 for further detail.

Property provision The Group has a number of property provisions totalling £345.8m at 30 March 2019 (last year. £233.3m), which include
amounts in respect of onerous leases and sublet shortfalls. The net present value of the future onerous leases and sublet shortfalls has been
provided for based on the contracted future cash flows, assumptions related to sublet mcome (including periods where properties are not
sublet) and lease incentives, and discounted to reflect the time value of money, with adjustments for credit risk where 1t is not included in the
underlying cash flows

Incluged within these provisions is a sublet shortfall of £89.2m for surplus office space in the Merchant Square buikding in London, whech is
sublet for the remaining duration of the lease The valuation of the provision is sensitive to movements in the discountrate, of to an event of
default by the subtenant f an event of defautt had occurred at 30 March 2019 and no ahernatwe sublet income was assumed, the provision
would have increased by £65.2m. In this event, the Group would seek alternatwe subtenants for the property

Across all property provisions, an increase in the discount rate of 25bps would decrease the provision by £5.6m.

Usehul lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment and intangibles Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write down
the cost of property, plant and equipment and certain intangibles to thex estimated residuat values over their estimated useful iives, as set
out above. The selection of the residual values and useful lves gives rise to estimation uncertainty, especially in the context of changing
econamic and market factors, the channel shift from stores 1o online, Increasing technological advancerner and the Group’s ongoing
strategic transformation programmes The useful lives of property. plant and equipment and intangibles ase reviewed by management
annualty. See notes 13 and 14 for further details. Refer to the UK store estate section above for specific sources of estimation uncertainty in
relation to the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment for stores identified as part of the UK store estate programme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

impaiement of property, plant and equipment and intangibles Property, plant and equipment and computer softwate ntangbles are
reviewed for impasment if everts or changes in eifcumstances ndicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Goodwill and
indefinite lived brands are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis When a review for impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount
s determined based on the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. The value in use method requires the Group to determine
appropriate assumptions {which are sources of estimation uncertainty) n selation to the cash flow projections over the three-year strategic
plan period, the long-term growth rate to be apphed beyond this theee-year period and the risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate used to
discount the assumed cash flows to present value. In caloulating the discount rate the Group has taken mto account volatility in the Inputs to
the calculation that are reflective of the market uncertainty for Brexit

The assumption that cash flows contire into perpetuity (with the exception of stores identffied as part of the UK store estate programme) is
a source of significant estimation certainty A future change to the assumption of trading inte perpetuity for any Cash- Generating Unit (CGU)
would result in 2 reassessment of useful economic Ives and residua) value and could give rise to 2 signficant impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangibles particularly where the store carrying value exceeds fair value less cost 1o sell See notes 13 and 14 for further
details on the Group's assumptions and associated sensitivities.

Post-retirenent benefits The determination of pension net interest mcome and the defined benefit cbligation of the Group's defined benefit
persion schemes depends on the selection of certain assumptions which include the discount sate, mflation rate, pensionable salary growth,
mortality and expected return on scheme assets Differences arising from actual experiences or future changes in assumptions will be
reflected in subsequent periods. The fair value of ungquoted investments within total plan assets is estimated with consideration of fair vatue
estimates provided by the manager of the investment or fund. See note 10 for further details on the impact of changes in the key assumptions
and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be «dentified on the basi of internal reporting on components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating deciston-maker to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Operating Committee. The Operating Committee reviews the Group's intemnal
reporting in orcler 1o assess performance and allocate resources across each operating segment. The operating segments are UX and
International which are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Operating Committee.

The UK segment consists of the UK retail business, UK franchise operations, M&S Bark and ME&S Energy. The International segment consists
of Marks & Spencer owned businesses in Europe and Asia and the international franchise operations

The Operating Commitiee assesses the perfarmance of the operating segments based on a measure of operating prolfit referred to as
management group operating prafit. This measurement basis excludes the effects of adjusting tems from the operating segments The
Operating Committee alsc monitors revenue within the segments and gross profit within the UK segment, To increase transparency, the
Group has decided 1o include an additional voluntary disclosure analysing revenue within the reportable segments by sub-category and
gross profit within the UK segment by sub-category.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment

52 weeks anded 30 March 2019 2 weeks ended 31 March 2018 [restated”;
Logaba Adprting Logtics Adpatng
Maragamant' Aclptrnact’ Amrs Statutory  Managemaen Adjustmant? tems Sratutary
im Em im fm Em Em (&3 Em
Clothing & Home revenue 35313 - - 35373 316710 - - 34710
Food ravenue 59034 - - 59034 5,400 - - 5.940.0
UK revenue 9440.7 - - 9.440.7 26110 - - 9,611.0
Franchised 4051 ~ - a0%.4 R ) - - 3804
Owned 5275 - - 5275 7266 - - 726.6
International revenue 936.6 - - 9366 1,087.2 - - 1,087.2
Group revenue 10,3773 - - 10,377.3 10,698.2 - - 10,698.2
Clothing & Home gross 20212
profi? 20706
Food gross profit! 18347 1,854 8
UK grass profit 38559 {384.9) - 347110 39454 (370.0¢ - 35754
UK operating costs {3,409.8) 3849 (376.2) {3,400.9 (34503 3700 (434.3) {3,514.8)
M&S Bank 274 - (209 &7 403 - (347) 56
M&S Energy 0.1 - - 0.1 - - ~ -
UK operating profit 4740 - (397.1) 769 5354 - (4590 664
Internztional operating profit 1270 - {17.4) 10946 135.2 - 07 1359
Group opersting profit 0.0 - {4145 186.5 670.6 - (468.3) 2023
Finance income 338 - - 338 241 .- - 4.1
Finance costs BEARER S - - {111.8) {113 8) - - {113 8)
Profit before 1ax 523.2 - (414.5) 108.7 5809 - [458.3) 1124

1 Managermeni profil exchsches the acprstments Income and charges) made 1o reported profit betore tau tha are sigrrlcant m value and/or nature bee note 5 sdiustng ke Reter to the pocounting
poboy m nate 1 and the glossary for mare detaia on these adpaunents.

2 Managerant grow probl for the UK segment exchuckes cerlern experses trsing 0 sn sdjustment betwaen cost of salos and sethng and sdmirstative sspenses of (386 9m (st yewr (3700my

3 Durng the pear. 2 asesuht ol a change 1o Intetnal manegiryien DoOMmng, the 1#porkng of cards and glt-wiap han been tramilerred fom Clathng & Hore 1 Food for both mevienue and gross
profa The pror peead camparstass have been restated to reflect the. £70 1m of meverue bas een ranslared kom Clothing B Home 1o Food with & comeponding Wansles of gross proft of
[2%1m

Other segmenta| information

019 2018

uk? Internstional Tosl uK! Intetnatonasl Total

tm fm Im im m im
Additions to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets [excluding goodwill) 28231 139 2970 J224 132 33mé
Depreciation and amortisation 6130 131 6261 5725 220 5945
Impairment and asset write-ofls 126.3 146 1279 2283 53 2236
Tota! assets 94534 3001 9.753.5 ?799.1 078 10,1069
Non-qurrent assets 55149 199.7 57144 6,028.4 2100 62384

bUK asvis moude centrally bl asaets lsgerly relatrg 10 T sytterns that support the intematonal busnas of £20 9m flast yese £29 9m)



Marks and Spencer plc

NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

3 EXPENSE ANALYSIS

019 ang

Tonst Yo

im im

Revenue 10,3773 10,698 2
Cost of sales 6547.2) (6,650.9)
Gross profit 38301 4,047.3
Selhng and administrative expenses 3.271.1) {3,426 2}
Other operating income B 420 495
Operating profit before adjusting itams a 4010 470.5
Adjusting items (see note 5¢ @#14.5) 468.3)
Operating profit 1845 202.3

The selling and adminstrative expenses are further analysed below

2019 018

Tota! Total

fm tm

Employee costs’ 1,4500 1.521.0
Occupancy costs 8527 2054
Repairs. renewals and mamtenance of property 876 o877
Depreciation, amortisation and asset impairments and write-offs before adjusting items 5449 580.6
Other costs 5359 524.3
Setling and administrative expenses 33,2791 34262

1 There sce an aciciioral E61 O (st pear (57 9l of employes oosts recorded within cost of sales. These costs are mchsce wth the sggragate semuneraon duckon et note 94

2 The £414 5m adpntysg tevra charges o the ysar ane hrther snahaed aganat the categones of seting and sdminausive eaperse (F418 B test yoar {485 2y and other operating moome I 15 8m,

laat year, £28 9m) accordngy. amployee Ccosts £40 Brr fant yew £47 9mk cotupsncy osts £11146m lest year £124 7010, cepracmtion, smortasbon and anset snpsaments and weie-offs €29 1m (st

you £247 Sm), othar expenses £371.2m (lwat year £18 5Smi and other operatng rcome £15.8m last yeaw £28.9m)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
The following items have been included m arriving at profit before taxation
w1y F
Em £m
Net foreign exchange (gainsi/losses 3.9 oe
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 57654 5,904 1
Write down of inventories to net realisable value 2141 2205
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment
- owned assets 4400 4591
- under finance leases 17 05
Amortisation of mtangible assets 184.4 180.7
Irpairments and write-offs of intangibie assets and property, plant and eguipment 12789 2334
Operating lease rentals payable
- property : 3025 3299
— fixtures, fitbngs and equipment 18 74

ncluded in administrative expenses 15 the auditor's lemuneration, including expenses for audit and non-audit services, payable to the Company's

auditor Deloitte LLP and its assaciates as follows

19 M8

£m im

Annual audit of the Company and the consolidated financial statements 1.3 13
Audit of subsidiary companies 0.6 04
Total audit fees L e R 19 19
Audit-related assurance services 0.2 G2
Transaction related services 0.2 -
Total non-sudit services fees 04 02
Total audit and non-audit sarvices fees 2.3 21

Transaction related services provided by the auditor relate to establishing the Ocado joint venture (see note 5)

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

5 ADJUSTING ITEMS
The total adjusting nems reported for the 52 week penod ended 30 March 2019 is a net charge of £438.6m (tast year £468 3m}
The adjustments made to reported profit before 1ax 1o arrive at adjusted profit are

2019 a8
Noies im im

Strategic programmes - UK store estate 14,21 2221 a
Strategic programmes — UK organisation 14,21 518 307
Strategic programmes - Operational transfonmation 164 -
Strategic programmes - |7 restructure ’ 21 156 155
Strategic programmes — UK logistics 14.21 14.3 131
Strateguc programmes — Changes 1o pay and pensions 21 6.2 129
Strategw programmes — International store ciosures and imparments 21 53 50
UK store impairments and other property charges 14,21 621 17.6
M&S Bank charges incurred in relation to the insurance mis-selling prowsion 209 M7
GMP and other pension equalisation 14, 21 205 -
Establishing the Ocado joint venture s -
Other 21 {24.1) 1.7
Adjustments 1o profit before tax 4145 458.3

Strategic programmes ~ UK store estate (£222.1m)

In November 2016, the Group announced a strategic programme to transform the UK store estate. Dunng 2017/18 the Group anncunced
its intention to accelerate this programme in line with the strategic awn of significantly growmg the anline share of sales, as well as better
than expected levels of sales transfer achieved frorm recent store closures This acceleration of the UK store estate programme resulted in an
acceleration of the timing of recognition of the associated costs, primarily driven by a shortening of the usetul economic life, for mpairment
testing purposes, of those stores identified as pant of the transformation plans.

The Group has recognised a charge of £222.1m in the year which relates in part to the accelerated and expanded store dosure programme
which now ncludes a number of Simply Foods stores The charge primarily relates to accelerated depreciation (due to shortening the useful
economic life) and impairment of buildings and fixtures and fittings Refer to notes 14 and 21 for further detail on these charges.

Further material charges relating to the closure and re-configuration of the UK store estate are anticipated as the programme progresses,
the quantum of which is subjext to change throughout the programme period as decisions are taken in relation to the size of the store estate
and the specific stores affected. Based on current plans, further charges (before restatament to reflect the impact of the adoption of IFRS 14}
are expected to be incurred predominantly i the next two years and are anticipated to be ¢ £100m, bringing total programme costs to
c.£680m.

Strategic programmes — Organisation {£51.8m)
During 2014/17 the Group announced a wide ranging strategic review across a number of areas of the business which induded UK
organisation and the programme to centralise our London Head Cffice functions into one building.

The Group has now conducted a review of the retail field and management team organisetional structure. The proposals will result in a net
reduction of ¢.700 retail roles achieved through a combination of natural attrition and redundancies A charge of £18.6m has been recognised
in the period for redundancy costs associated with these changes

In eddiion, a further £332m of costs have been recognised in the period sssociated with centralising the Group’s London Head Office
functions and rationalisation of Head Cffice functions

As the Group executes the three phases of the transformation strategy hurther matenial organisatianal costs are likely 10 oceur in order to
meet the transformation objective These costs are considered to be adjusting items as the costs are part of the strategic programme,
signdicant m vaiue, and are consistent with the disclosure of other similar charges in prior years

Strategic programmaes ~ Operational transformation (£16.4m)

The Group is undertaking a number of key transformation initiatives with the aim of re-engineering end-to-end supply chain, removing costs,
complexity and working capital. Part of ths transformation has included a fundamental review of the Group's Clothing & Home and Food
end-to-end processes A charge of £16.4m has been recognised primarily for consultancy costs for the transformation and simphfication of
our supply chain and operatons across Clothing & Home and Food.

These casts are considered to be adjusting items as they relate to 3 strategic programme and the total costs are significant in quantum and
a5 a result not considered to be normal operating costs of the business. Further operational transformation initiatives are planned for 2019/206
which wl result in additional related charges within adjusting items

Strategic programmes - IT restructure (£15.6m)

In 2017/18 as part of the five-year transformation strategy, the Group announced a techrology transformation programme to create a faster,
more agile and more comimercial technology funcion. A charge of £15.6m has been recognised in the year relating pimarily to transrion
costs associated with the implementation of a new technology operating model and accelerated depreciation of IT assets which the Group
s retinng early as a result of the transformation strategy. Further charges of ¢ £2m are expected in XN9/20 and 2019/20 i expected to be
the final year of the IT restructure programme.

These costs are cons:dered to be an adjusting tem as they relate to a significant strategic initative of the Group and are signdicant in value,
both in the year and intatal for the programme.
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5 ADJUSTING ITEMS CONTINUED

Strategic programmes - UK Logistics (£14.3m)

In 2017/18 as part of the previously announced long-term strategic programme to transition 10 a single-tier UK gistribution network, the
Group announced the opening of a new Clothing & Home distribution centre in Welham Green in 2019 As a direct result, the Group
announced the closure of two existing distribution centres A net charge of £14.3m has been recognised in the year for redundency,
accelerated depreciation and project costs

The Group considers these costs 1o be adjusting nems as they are significant in value and relate to a significant strategic inrtrative of the
Group Treatrnent of the costs as being adjusting items is consistent with the treatment of charges in previous periods in relation to the
creation of a single-tier logistics network. Further charges are expected in 2019/20 of ¢.£12m

Strategic programmes — Changes to pay and pensions (£6.2m)

In May 2016, the Group announced proposals for @ fairer, simpler and more consistent approach to pay and premia as well as propasals to
close the UK defined benefr (DB) pension scheme to future accrual effective from 1 Apnl 2017, As part of these proposak the Group
committed to making transition payrments tc aflected employees in relation to the dosure of the UK DB scheme, expected 1o be ¢.£25m in
total over the threeyears commencing 2017/18 The charge in the year in relation to these transition payments to employees is £6.2m

As previously disclosed, the Group considers the costs drrectly associated with the closure of the UK DB scheme 1o be sn adusting item on
the basis that they relate to a significant cost, impacting the Group resutts Treatment of the transition payments made in the year within
adjusting fterns is consistent with disclosure of the same costs in 2017418 and the original disclosure of the UK DB scheme closare costs in
201617

Strategic programmes - Intemational store dosures and impairments (£5.3m}

In 2016/17 the Group announced its intention 1o close s owned stores in 10 international markets. A net charge of £5.3m has been
recognised in the year reflecting an updated view of the estimated final closure casts for certain markets and those costs which can only be
recognised as incurred.

The net charge s considered to be an adjusting item as it is part of a strategic programme which over the three years of charges has been
significant in both value and nature to the results of the Group Ne further significant charges are expected.

UK store impairments and property charges (£62.1m}

The Group has recognised a number of charges in the year associated with reductions to the carying value of items of property, plant and
equiprent.

In response to the ongoing pressures impacting tha retail industry, as well as reflecting the Group's strategic focus towards growing online
market share, the Group has revised future projections for UK stores {exduding those stares which have been captured as part of the UK
store estate programeme). As a resuh, UK stare impairment testing has identif.ed stores where the current and anticipated future pedormance
does not support the carrying value of the stores A charge of £52.8m has been incurred primarily n respect of the imparment of assets
associated with these stores. Refer 10 note 14 for further detads on the impairments

tn addnion, the Group has entered in to propenty arrangements impactmg 10 stores The Group has recognsed 2 net charge of £33m
associated with the sale and leaseback or lease surrender costs for these stores

The charges have been classified as an adjusting item on the bas's of the significant value of the charge in the year to the resuts of the Group.

M&5 Bark charges incurred in relation to the insurance mis-selling provision (£20.9m)

The Group has an economic interest in M&S Bank, a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC, by way of a Relationship Agreement that entitles the
Group to a 50% share of the profits of M&S Bank after appropriate deductions. The Group does not share in any losses of M&S Bank and is
not obliged to refund any profit share receved from HSBC, although future income may be wnpacted by significant one-off deductions

Since the year ended 31 December 2010, M&S Bank has recognised in its audited fmancial statements an estimated hability for redress to
customers in respect of possible mis-selling of financial products The Group’s fee income from M&S Bank has been reduced by the
deduction of the estimated habilty in both the current and prior years The deduction i the year is £209m The Group considers this cost to
be an adjusting item, despite As recurring nature, as the charges are significant in nature and value in each year 1o the results of the Group.
The estimated hability for redress will continue to be reviewed in 2019/20 to ensure it reflects the best estimate of likely settlement, which
could lead 1o kurther charges or releases

GMP and other pension equalisation {£20.5m)

The Group has recogmised a non-cash charge of £20.5m in respect of the Group's defined benefit pension hability arsing from equalisation
of GMF foliowing a high court ruling in October 2018 and other pension equalisation charges. Additional detail on the Group's GMP
assessment is detailled in note 10

The armounts recogrised in relation to GMP and other pension equalisation charges are considered to be adusting items as they are
significant in nature and value to the results of the Group in the current period.

Establishing the Ocado joint venture {£3.4m)

In February 2019 the Group announced the creation of a new 50/50 joint venture (V) with Ocado Group Pic {Ocade), the UK's leading pure
play digital grocer, that will transform onfine grocery shopping for UK consumers Transaction costs of £3 4m were incurred dueing the period

The Group considers the costs directly associated with the Ocado transaction to be an adjusting tem on the basss that they relate to a major
transaction and as a result are not cons.dered to be normal operating costs of the Group Further costs of ¢.£30.0m will be incurred in 2019/20,
the majority of which will be capalised within the cost of investment upon completion o included within the cost of equity as pant of the
rights-issue.
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5ADJUSTING ITEMS CONTINUED

Other (£24.1m)

inthe prior year, a provision was recorded as charge to cover the potential tosts of probable liabilities for certan employee related matters.
Buring the year, the methodology for calculating the liability for these employee related matiers has been clarified and the project finalisad,
resulting in a £24.1m refease of the provision.

Other in'the prior year included the profit on the disposal of our retail business in Hong Kong and charges for probable habiltes for certan
employee related matters. These amounts were considered to be adjusting iterns as they were significant in nature and value 1o the resuls
of the Group in the prior period

The prior year profit on disposal 1s analysed as follows

019 e

£m rn

Proceeds - 319
Disposal costs - 09
Net disposal proceeds - 310
Fair value of net assets disposed - (28 &)
Provision for transiton services - 0.8)
Net foreign exchange amounts recycled from reserves - 22
Profit on disposal - 58

6 FINANCE INCOME/COSTS

e 2018

im im

Bank and other interest receivable 14 60
Other finance income 04 D4
Pension net finance incomne (see note 10F) 258 11.7
Finance income 3.8 24.1
Interest on bank borrowings 0.5) 1.2}
Interest payable on syndicated bank faciity 2.3 2.3
Interest payable on medium-term notes @7.4) {90.0)
interest payable on finance leases .n [y}
Ineflectiveness on financial instrurrenpts 3.5} 2.3
Unwind of discount on prowsions (17.3 {5.2)
Unwind of discount on partnarship liability to the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme [see note 11} (6.8) (10.9)
Finance costs {t11.6} (113 8)
Net finance costs 77.8 {89.7)
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
A Taxation charge

019 2018
im m
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year at 19% (last year, 19%)
- current year 784 654
~ adjustments in respect of prior years (4.8) 75
UK current tax 738 729
Overseas current taxation
- current year 8¢ 03
- adjustments In respect of prior years 0.8} 02
Total current taxation 819 B83.0
Delerred tax
- origination and reversal of temporary differences {328 {36 4)
- recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - (1.4)
~ adjustments in respect of priot years 23 (31
- changes in tax rate 0.8 (3.3
Tota! deferred 1ax {see note 22) 23 #4.2
Total income tax expense 504 388
B. Taxation reconciliation
The effective tax rate was 46 6% (last year 34 4%) and is explained below.
1% 2018
fm £m

Profit before tax 108.7 1126
National taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% (last year: 19%) 207 214
Depredation and other amounts in relation to fixed assats that da not qualify for tax relief 12 30
Othet income and expenses that are not taxable or allowable for tax purposes 150 148
Retranslation of deferred tax batances due to the change in statutory UK tax rates (A} 23
Overseas prohts taxed at rates different to those of the UK 08 (34)
Overseas tax losses where there is no rehief anticipated in the foreseeable future %2 -
Adjustmerts to the current and deferred tax charges in respect of prior periods 3.1 42
Adyusting items
- debrecnation and other amounts n relation to fixed assets that do not qualify for tax relief - 8Q
- UK store and strategic programme impairments where no tax relef is available 140 {1.2}
- International store closures and impairments 08 83}
- ather strategic programme income and expenses that are not taxable or aflowable for tax purposes 8¢ 34
~ other 0.4) 02

50.6 388

Total income tax expense
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE CONTINUED

After excluding adustiments to underlying profit, the underlying effective tax rate was 20.3% {last year:

21.6%).

On 15 September 2016, the Finance Bili received Royal Assent to enact the previously announced reduchions n the rate of corporation tax

10 19% from 1 April 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020. The Group has continued to remeasure its UK deferred 1ax assets and liabilities at the

end of the reporting period at the rates of 19% and 17% based on an updated expectation of when those balances are expected to unwind.
This has resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax credit of £3:8m i the income statement and the recognition of a deferred tax charge

of £2.3m in other comprehensive income.
C. Current Tax Recondiliation

The current tax reconciliation shows the tax effect of the mamn adjustments made to the Group's accounting profits in order to arrive at its
taxable profits The reconciling items differ from those in note 7B as the effects of deferred tax timing differences are ignored below

019 2018
im fm
Profit before taxation 108.7 1126
Notonal taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% (last year: 19%) 207 21.4
Disallowable accounting depreciation and other similar items 68.0 78.7
Deductible capital sllowances {59.4) 70 &)
Adjustments in relation to empioyee shere schemes 27 28
Adjustments in relation to employee pension schemes 10.7 9.2
Overseas profits taxed at ratey different to those of the UK o8 34
Overseas tax losses where there is no tax relief antiopated in the foreseeable future (1.4 -
Other income and expenses that are not taxable or allowable 44 05
Adjusting iterns
- depraciation and other amounts in relatian 10 fixed assets that da not qualify for tax relief - 9.5
- UK store and strategic programme impairments where no tax rehef is available 20 353
- International store closures and impaiments 08 6.2}
- other strategic programme income and expenses that are not taxable or aliowable for tax purposes 124 5%
- other .65 34
Currant tax charge 67.3 757
Rapresented by:
UK current year current tax - 784 654
Overseas culrent year current 1ax 8% 103
87.3 757
UK adjustments in respect of prior years 4.8) 75
Overseas adjustments in respect of prior years 08 0.2)
Total current taxation {note 7A) 1R 80
8 DIVIDENDS
201 2018 219 218
por thae pershwre Em im
Dividends on aquity ordinary shares
Pad final dividend b.8p 6.8p 1938 1938
Paid intenim dividend 39 39 111.2 1112
10.7p 10.7p 305.0 3050

The directors have approved a final dividend of 4. 1p per share {last year: 4.8p per share) which in line with the requirements of IAS 10 ‘Events

after the Reporting Period’, has not been recognised within these results
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9 EMPLOYEES

A. Aggregate remuneration
The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Group emplayees {ncluding Operating Committee) were:

19 DB
Towl Tatal
im £m
Wages and salaries 1,2932 1,3597
Social security costs as0 917
Pension costs 774 76.7
Share based payments (see note 12) 192 189
Employee welfare and other personnef costs 538 S6&
Capitalised staffing costs {17.6) (24.7)
Total aggregate remuneration! 1,511.0 1.578.9
1 Exthudes amounts recognised within adpsting derms of £40.8m last ymar £47 9m) bae notes 3 and 5 3uch s the tansiton pay the Group has to 11 respect of removd of premi,
rechmdancy cotts amoomed with the LK and ruage piog and GMP and other pa q cons
Details of key management compensation are given in note 27
B. Average morithly aurnber of employees
ol 2018
UK stores
- management and supervisory categories ' 5,480 6.004
- other 83,957 66,540
UK head office
- management and supervisory categories 2,948 3,088
- other . 832 854
UK operations
- management and supervisory categornes B1 87
- othet 1,066 1,153
Overseas 5,713 6,891
Tota! average number of employees 80,097 84,621

H the number of hours worked was converted on the basis of a normat working week, the equivalent average number of hull-time employees
would have been 55,440 {last year: 58,928)

1019 2018
o0 1000
Highest paid director 14673 11200
Aggregate ermoluments of alt other directors 1,568.6 1,266 0

Two chrectors flast year twol accrued retrament benefits under a defined benefit scheme.
Two directors {last year none} exercised share options in relation to the Group's bong-term incentive plans

Four directors (last year three) were awarded share options in relation te the Group’s long-term incentive plan

10 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (a defined
benefit {DB) amangement)] and Your MBS Pension Saving Plan (a defined contribution {DC) arrangement)

The UK DB pension scheme operated on a final pensionable salary basis and i governed by a Trustee board which is independent of the
Group. The UK DB scheme dosed to future aceruzl om 1 April 2017. On closure of the UK DB scheme, all remaining active members moved
to deferred status which resulted in 2 curtailment charge of £127.0m in 2016/17. There will be no further service charges relating to the
scheme and no future monthly employer contributions for current service. At year end the UK DB pension scheme had no active members
{last year nil}, 58,079 deferred members {last year 40,402) and 52,217 pensioners {last year 51,802}

The most recent actuanial valuation of the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scherme was carried out as at 31 March 2018 and showed a funding
surplus of £652m This is an #mprovement on the previous position at 31 March 2015 (statutory surplus of £204m), primardy due to iower
assumed lfe expectancy The Company and Trustee have confirmed, in line with the current funding arrangement, that no further
contrbutions will be required 1o fund past service as a result of this valuation [other than those akready contractually commutted under the
existing Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership arrangements - see note 11}

The DC plan 15 a pension plan under which the Group pays contnbutions to an independently admnistered fund. Such contributions are
based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay The Group has no legal or constructive obhgations 1o pay further contributions 1o the
fund once the contributions have been paid Members' benefits are determined by the amount of contributions paid by the Group and the
member, together with the investment returns earned on the contnbutions arising from the performance of each individual's investments
and how each member chooses 1o receive their retirtement benefits As a result, actuanal risk {that benefits will be lower than expected) and
wnvestment risk {that assets invested i will not perform n line with expectat:ons) fall on the employee At the year end, the defined
contribution arrangement had sorme 53,536 active members {last year: 54,001} and some 26,709 deferred members (last year. 19,984).
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10 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

The Group also operates a small funded DB pension scheme in the Republic of Ireland  Thes scheme closed to futyre accrual on 31 Catober
2013 Other retirement benefits alsc incdude a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retirement benefits

The total Group retirement benefit cost was £67.5m (last year: £58.9m) Of this, income of £4.5m {last year. income of £14 7m} relates to the
UK DB pension scheme, costs of £68 7m {last year: costs of £68.8m) to the UK DC plan and costs of £5.3m {last year, costs of £4 8m) to other
retremnent benelt schemes

In March 2018, the UK DB pension scheme purchased pensioner buy-in policies with two insurers covering £1.4bn of UK pensioners’ liabilities
which is approximately one-third of the pensioner portfolo. A further buy-in taok place subsequent to year end for an additional £1.4bn
{note 29). Together with the two policies purchased in March 2018, the DB pension scheme has now, in tota!, hedged its longevity exposure
for approximately two thirds of the pensioner cash flow liabilities for pensions in payment. The buy-ins transfer longevity risk 1o the insurers
and reduce the pension risks being underwritten by the Group.

On 26 Octaber 2018, the High Court issued a judgement in a claim involving Lloyds Banking Group’s DB pension schemes. This judgement
concluded the schemes should be amended in order to equalise pension benefits for men and women in relation to guaranteed mnimum
pension benefits The issues determined by the judgement have resulted in an ncrease in the liabifites of the Marks & Spencer UK DB
Pension Scheme of £18.0m. This increase has been reflected in the results as a past service cost.

A, Pensions and other post-retirement labilities

xns o8
im £m
Total market value of assets 10,2247 9.989.3
Present value of scheme habilities .301.3) {9.029 &)
et funded pension plan asset 9234 959.7
Unfunded retiremen benefits (3.5 {3.9)
Post-retirement healthcare {5.6) 79
Net retirernent benefit surplus 214.3 948.2
Analysed in the statement of financial position as:
Retirement bensfit asset o35 9707
Retirement benelit deficit N3 {22.5)
Net retirement benefit surplus 914.3 9482

in the event of a plan wind-up, the pension schame rules provide ME&S with an uncondibanal night to a refund of surplus assets assuming the
full settlement of plan liabilities. In the ordinary course of business, the Trustees have no rights to wind up or change the benefits due 1o
marmbers of the scheme. As aresult, any net surplus in the UK DB pension scheme is recognised in full.

B. Financial assumptions

The financial assumptions for the UK DB pension scheme and the most recent actuarial valuations of the other post-retiremnent schemes have
been updated by independent qualfied actuaries to take account of the requirements of IAS 19 'Employee Benefits’ in order to assess the
habilities of the schemes and are as follows:

09 718

% %

Rate of increase in pensions in payment for service 21-33 2032
Discount rate 245 265
Inftation rate 3.25 315
Long-term healthcare cost increases .25 715

C. Demographic assumptions

The UK demographic assumptions are in line with those adopted for the fast formal actuanal vakiation of the scheme performed as at 31
March 2018. The UK post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the pensioner martality trends under the scheme for
the periad to March 2018. The specific montality rates used are based on the VITA Itte tables The life expectancies underlying the valuation
are as follows

9 2018

Current pensioners (at age &5) - male 220 22.3
~female FL K . 5.2

Future pensioners — currently in deferred status {at age 65) - male 238 24.1
~ female 267 270

D. Sensitivity analysis
The table below summarises the estimated impact of changes in the principal actuanal assumptions on the UK DB pension schemne surphus:

a9 018

im fm

Decrease in scheme surplus caused by a decrease in the discount rate of 0.25% 0.0y {70.0}
Decrease in scheme surplus caused by a decrease in the inflation rate of 0 25% 25.00 {25.0}
Increase in scheme surplus caused by a decrease in the average life expectancy of oneyear 5.0 3050

The sensitivity ana]ysus above 15 based on a change mn one assumption while holding all others constant Therefore interdependencies
between the assumptions have not been taken into account within the analysis
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10 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

E. Anatysis of assms '
Yhe investment strategy of the UK DB pension scherme is driven by its kability profile, including its inflation-Iinked pension benefits.

In addition to its imerest n the Scottish Limited Parinership (refer to note 11), the scheme invests in different types of bonds (inchiding
corporate bonds and gilts) and derivative instrumants {including inflation, interast rate, cross-currency and total return swaps) in order 1o align
movements in the value of its assets with movements in its habilites arsing from changes in market conditions Broadly the scheme has
hedging that covers 26% of interest rate movements and 94% of inflation movements, as measured on the Trustess’ funding assumptions
which use a discount rate derived from gilt yields.

By funding its DB pension schemes, the Group is exposed to the risk that the cost of meeting its obligations 1 higher than anticipated. This

could occur for several reasons, for example

- Investment returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falis in asset values are not matched by similar
falls in the value of the schemes’ liabilities.

- The level of price inflation may be higher than that assumed, resuttng in higher payments from the schemes.

- Scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to acdvarces in healthcare. Members may also exercise (or not
exercise) options in a way that lead to rxreases in the schemes’ liabilities, tor exampie through early retrement or commutation of
pension for cash.

- Legislatve changes could also lead 10 an increase in the schemes” Liabilties.

In addition, the Group is exposed to additional risks through its obligation to the UK DB pension scherne wia 1ts inferest in the Scottish Limited
Partnership {see note 11). In particular, under the legal temms of the Partnership, a default by the Group on the rental payments 1o the
Partnership or a future change in legsslation could trigger earler or higher payments to the pension scherne, or an increase in the collateral
to be provided by the Group.

The fair value of the total plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category 15 as follows:

2019 ane
Quoted Unquated Toul Quoted Unquoted Tow
Em Im £m fm im m

Debt investments
- Government Bonds net of repurchaese agreernents! 43739 72 47411 4,4729 494 484213
- Corporate Bonds 6.1 78 7379 59 6854 6913
- Asset backed securities and structured debt - 2906.6 298.4 - 392 3392
Scottish Limited Partnership Interest (see note 1) - 2785 2785 - 3454 M54
£quity investrnents
~ Develaped markets 3980 51.9 455.9 460.8 102.8 5636
- Emerging markets 1037 - 103.7 1517 - 1517
Growth Asset Funds
- Global Property - 3284 3284 - 2740 2740
- Hedge and Reinsurance 243 4124 438.7 182 406 2 424 4
- Private Equity and Infrastructure . 2233 2733 - 2225 2225
Derivatives
- Interest and mfation rate swaps 159 1484 1643 77 64 141
- Foreign exchange contracts and other derivatives 01 127.5 127.6 a1 1548 1549
Cash and Cash equivalents 511 1222 1733 418 925 1343
OCther
~ Buy \n Insurance - 31,2737 12737 - 1,2779 127179
-~ Secure Income Asset Funds - 8422 8422 - 4667 456 7
- Other 415 - 415 870 - 87.0

50146 52101 10,224.7 52461 4.743.2 9.98%.3

1 Repurchsse agreaments were £1,02 T flast year £920.2m)

The fair values of the above equity and debt investrants are based on publicly available market prices wherever available Unquoted
mvestments, hedge funds and reinsurance funds are stated at fair value estimates provided by the manager of the investment or fund.
Propedty includes both quoted and ungueted investrments. The fair value of the Scottish Limited Partnership interest is based on the expected
cash flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads. It is the palicy of the scheme to hadge a proportion of interest rate and inflation risk
The scheme reduces its foreign currency exposure using forward foreign exchange contracts.

At year end, the UK schemes (UK DB pension scheme and post-retrement healthcare) indirectly held 41,841 (Jast year' 41,046) ordinary shares
i the Company through its investment in UK Equity Index Funds.
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10 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

F. Analysis of amounts charged against profits
Amounts recognsed in comgrehensive income in respect of defined benefit retremert plans are as follows:

e XNE
im im
Current service cost 0.2 a3
Adrmumistration costs 39 35
Past service costs 180 -
Net interest incorne 5.8 (17.7)
Total X)) (139
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit surplus.
Actual return on scherme assets excluding amounts included in net interest income 283.8) 8.2
Actuarial gain - demographic assumptions - 0.2 {85.1}
Actuarial loss/{gain) -~ experence 192 263
Actuarial lossf{gain) - financial assumptions 4347 {230.3)
Components of defined benefit income recognised in other comprehensive incoms 199 (200.5)
G Scheme assets
Changes in the farr value of the scheme assets are as follows
ane xns
£m fm
Fair value of scheme assets at start of year 2.9893 19,1351
Interest incormne based on discount rate 259.5 2514
Actual return on scheme assets exduding amounts included in net interest income? 2838 88 2)
Employer contrbutions 420 407
Benefits paid B4s.2) {3539
Administration costs [<ey] {33)
Exchange movement - 55
Fair value of schemne assets at end of year 10,224.7 2,989.3
1 The sctuslreturn on scherme asseis wan & gan of £513 3m Kt e gawn of 1168 by
H. Pensions and other post-rativement liabilities
Changes in the present value of retirement benefit obligations are as follows:
e 218
(L] fm
Present value of obligation at start of year 2.041.1 4423
Current sarvice cost 0.2 03
Administration costs 02 02
Past service cost 18.0 -
Interest cost 2337 2357
Benefits paid {346.2 (35399
Actuarial loss - experience 19.2 253
Actuarial {ga:n) - demographic assumptions {90.2) 851)
Actuarial (gan)loss - hnancial assumptions 4347 (230 3)
Exchange movement 0.3 sS4
Present value of obligation at end of year 23104 9,041.1
Analysed as:
Present value of pension scheme labilities 2.301.2 9,029.46
Unfunded pension plans 35 34
Post-retirement healthcare 54 7.9
Present value of obligation at end of year 93104 9.041.1

The average duratian of the defined benefit obligation at 30 March 2019 is 19 years (last year. 19 years)
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11 MARKS AND SPENCER SCOTTISH LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Marks and Spencer plc is a general partner and the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme is a limited partner of the Marks and Spencer
Scottish Limited Partnership (the Partnersthup). Under the partnership agreement, the imited partners have no ongoing involvernent n the
management of the business and shall not take any part in the control of the partnership. The general partner s responsible for the
management and control of the partnership and as such, the Partnership is consolidated into the resubs of the Group.

The Partrership holds £1.4bn {last year. £1.5bn} of properties which have been leased back to Marks and Spencer pk. The Group retains
contral over these properties, including the flexiility to substitute alternative properties into the Partnership. The first limited partnership
interest (held by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme), entitles the Pension Scheme to receive an annual distribution of £71.9m unti
June 2022 from the Partnership. The second limited partnership interest {also held by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme}, entitles
the Pension Scheme 1o receive a further annual distribution of £36.4m from June 2017 until June 2031, All profits generated by the Partnership
in excess of these amounts are distributable to Marks and Spencer plc

The partnership liabifity in relation to the fwst imerest of £272.4m (last year: £335.5m) 15 valued at the net present value of the future expected
distnbutions from the Parnership and s included as a labiltty in the Groups’ financial statements as it a transferable financial instrument.
During the year to 30 March 2019 an interest charge of £8.8m {last year: £10.9m) was recognised in the incorme staternent representing the
unwinding of the discount induded in this obligation. The first Imited partnership interest of the Pension Scheme is included within the UK
DB Pansion Scheme assets, valued at £278.5m {last year: £345.4m}.

The second partnership interest is not a transferable financial instrument as the Scheme Trustee does not have the nght to transler it to any
party other than a successor Trustee. i is therelore not inciuded as a plan asset within the UK DB pension scheme surplus reported in
accordance with 1AS 19. Similarly, the associated liability is not Included on the Group's statement of financial position, rather the annual
distribution is recognised as a contribution 1o the scheme each year.

12 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

This year a charge of £19.2m was recognised for share based payments {last year. charge of £18 9m) Of the total share-based payments
charge, £9.2m {last year: £11.0m) relates 1o the Save As You Eam share option scheme and a charge of £4 1m {last year charge of £2.3m)
relates 1o the Performance Share Plan. The remaining charge of £5.6m (last year £5.6m) is spread over the other share plans Further details
of the operation of the Group share plans are provided in the Remuneration Report on pages 63 to 75 of the Marks and Spencer Group phc
Annual Report 2019 which does not form part of this report These shares refate to the shares in the parent company, Marks and Spencer
Group ple, rather than the Company.

A. Save As You Eam Scheme

The SAYE scheme was approved by shareholders for a further 10 years at the 2017 AGM. Linder the terms of the scheme, the Board may
offer options to purchase ordinary shares in the Company once in each financial year to those employees who enter into Her Majesty's
Revenue & Customs (HMRC) approved SAYE savings contract, The Company has chosen to cap the maximum monthly saving amount at
£250 which is below the £500 per month aliowed under HMRC Approved Schemes The price at which options may be offered s 80% of the
average mid-market prce for three consecutive dealing days preceding the offer date. The options may normally be exercised during the
six-month period after the completion of the SAYE contract.

e 218

Weghted Weightad

Numberof  average sxorcse Numbaiof  average exercss

oplon. price oEbons prce

Qutstanding at beginning of the year 43,731,657 285.4p 43294094 3104p
Granted 10,337 468 247.0p 13,351,790 261 0p
Exercised 241,813 2601p (29,5001 269 7p
Forfeited {10,455,905) 274.0p {7.758,295) 307 1p
Expred (5,347.906) 58.7p (5,126,432) 402 5p
Outstanding at end of year 38.023,501 2679p 43,731,657 285 4p
Exercisable at end of year 2,542,320 421.0p 4978777 32.3p

For SAYE share options exercised during the period, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 290:8p {last year 314 8p).
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12 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
The farr values of the options granted during the year have beer calculated using the Black: Scholes model assuming the inputs shown below:

209 018 018
Jpras plan

FA1

3y plan 3.year plan modihed

Gramt date Nov 18 Nov 17 Nov 17
Share price at grant date 0 298p 298p
Exercize prce 247p 281p 42p
Option lile in years Ayears Iyears Iyears
Risk-free rate 0.8% 0.5% 05%
Expected volatiliny 279% 27 8% 27.8%
Expected divdend yield 41% 6.3% 5£3%
Fair value of option 54p 42p 2p
Incremental fair value of option N/A N/A 10p

1 i the prior peat, there bas been x modification 10 the 2016 scheme arimng 10 smployees canceling awards from previous pesrs n substiulics for swarck granted under the 2018 scheme The fav
value of the modfed mwards wil be simortsed based of the FHaw vabon The e ) {ax vatue » the dierence batowen the (ov vilue of the X8 aptons, beng 42p, snd the b vilug
ol e et prisous st bawsg 1p, cakculated uting 018 sward assampnons, lrapang the rvbs! g uercme price consistent The rremental far vakoe of the modvied options, being 10p for the
2Nt modied opoons e already recogrned i operasng profi.

Volatility has been estimated by takng the historica! volatility in the Marks and Spencer Group plc share price over a three-year period.

The resuling fax value is expensed over the service period of three years on the assumption that 10% (last year: 10%) of options will lapse
ovar the service pericd as employees leave the Group.

Outstanding options granted under the UK Employees SAYE Scheme are as {ollows:

Optaons granted Number of options Weighted average remaining contractual ife fyean)
2000 8 2019 28 Option grce
January 2015 - 4,703,165 03 0.2 36%
January 2016 2,436,408 3,397,156 03 1.2 432p
January 2017 17,140,686 22925562 13 23 260p
January 2018 B,711,023 12,705,774 23 33 261p
January 2019 9,735,404 - a3 - 247p
38,023,501 43,731,657 19 2.2 268p

B. Performance Shace Plan

The Performance Share Plan is the primary long-term incentive plan for approximately 120 of the most senior managers within the Group It
was first approved by shareholders at the 2005 AGM and again at the 2015 AGM. Under the Plan, annual awards, based on a percentage of
salary, may be offered. The extent to which an award vests is measured over a three-year period against a balanced scorecard of financial
measures which for 2017/18 inckude Eamings Per Share [EPS), Return on Capita! Employed {ROCE), and Total Shareholder Retum (TSR}. The
value of any dividends eamed on the vested shares during the three years will also be paid on vesting. Further details are set out in the
Remuneration Report on pages 63 to 75 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report 2019 which dees not form part of this report.
Awards under this scheme have been made in each year since 2005

During the year, 8,006,094 shares {last year. 7,880,779) were awarded under the plan. The weighted average fair value of the shares awarded
was 264 2p (last year 268 4p). As at 30 March 2019, 17,296,405 shares (last year: 17,624,385} were outstanding under the scheme.

C. Deferred Share Bonus Plan*

The Deferred Share Bonus Plan (DSBP) was first mtroduced in 2005/06 as part of the Annual Bonus Scheme. It is now operated for
approximately 40 {last year 500) of the most senior managers within the Group. As part of the plan, the managers are required to defer 2
proportion of any bonus paid into shares which will be held for three years. There are no further performance conditions on these shares,
other than continued employment within the Group and the value of any dividends earned on the vested shares during the deferred period
will also be paid on vesting Move information is available in relation to this scheme within the Remuneration Report

During the year, nc shares {last year: 1,892,215) have beer swarded under the Plan in relation to the annual bonus, The farr value of the shares
awarded last year was 343.3p. As at 30 March 2019, 2,595,137 shares (last year: 4,248,291} were outstanding under the plan.

D. Restrictad Share Plan*

The Restricted Share Plan (RSP) was estabished in 2000 as part of the reward strategy for retention and recruitment of senior managers who
are vital 1o the success of the business The plan operates for senior managers below executive director level. Awards vest at the end of the
testricted pericd {typically between one and three years) subject 1o the participant still being in employment of the Company on the relevant
vesting date Yhe value of any dividends earned on the vested shares during the restricted period will akso be paid on vesting More
information is available in relation to this scheme within the Rermuneration Report

During the year, 1,710,368 shares {last year 1,105428) have been awarded under the plan. The weighted average far value of the shares
awarded was 295 2p (last year. 314 0p) As at X0 March 2019, 2,364,783 shares {last year: 1,555,748) were cutstanding under the plan.
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12 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

E. Repubiic of reland Save As You Eam Schame

Sharesave, the Company’s Save As You Eam scherne was introduced in 2009 to all employees in the Republic of keland for a 10 year period,
after approval by shareholders at the 2009 AGM. The scheme is subject to Insh Revenue rules which limit the maxmum monthly saving to
€500 per month The Company chose in 2009 to set 2 monthly savings cap of £320 per month 10 align the maximum savings amount to that
allowed within the UK scheme. The price at which options may be offered 15 BO% of the average mid-market price for three consecutive
dealing days preceding the offer date. The options may normally be exercised during the six-rmanth period after the completion of the SAYE
contract The Company wiil be seeking shareholder reapproval of this scheme on similar terms to those outlined above at this year's AGM

During the year, 169,422 options (last year. 210,486) were granted, at 5 far value of 536p {last year- 41 5p). As at 30 March 2019, 672,203
options {last year: 644 325) were cutstanding under the scheme

F. Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Employee Benebit Trust {the " Trust") holds 1,712.522 llast year: 2,247 837) shares with a book value of £5.1m flast
year: £9.8m) and a market value of £48m {last year: £6.1m) These shares were acquired by the Trust in the market and are shown as a
reducuon in retained earnings n the comsclidated statement of financial position. Awards are granted to employees at the dscretion of
Marks and Spencer ple and the Trust agrees to satisfy the awards in accordance with the wishes of Marks and Spencer plc under senice
executive share plans described above. Dividends are waived on all of these shares.

G. SharaBuy

ShareBuy. the Lompany's share intentive plan enables the paricpants 1o buy shares directly from then gross salary This scheme does not
attract an {FRS 2 charge

* AN pwearch s peac wors conckional shares, last year 2l DSBP and 297,114 RSP swards wrte svarded an il cost aptom with the remander beng awarded st condtrnal shaws For the purposes of
chculatng the nombe of srares s ded, the hane pnor taed is the 3vesage of the mid maket prce ko the ive comscve Sesng days preceding the gram date
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Lomputer
software
wrder
Goodwll Computer  derglepmen
im Brands fm Software £m tfm Tota fm
At 1 April 2017
Cost 1319 23 1,368 3 825 16950
Accumulated amortisation and impairments (53.5) 989 BO?.H 237 986 )
Net book value 784 13.4 558.4 58.8 090
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book value 84 13.4 558 4 568 090
Additions - - 02 74.1 743
Transfers and reclassifications - - 942 89.2) 50
Asset Impairments - - - - -
Assat write-offs - - 58 (1)) 75
Amortisation charge - (53 {175.4} - (180 7)
Exchange difference .0 - 03 02 09
Clesing net book value 774 B 49 41.8 599.2
At 31 Morch 2018
Cost 1309 112.3 1,400 C 658 1,206 8
Accumulated amortisation, impairments and write-offs {53.5) {104.2) 525.1) 238 {1,105.6)
Net book value 774 8.1 4719 4318 599 2
Yeoar anded 30 March 2019
Opening net book value 174 8.1 Lran 418 599.2
Additions - - 103 848 95.1
Tramshers and reclassifications - - 81.0 @50 5.3
Asset write-offs - - 59 8.4) (143
Amortisation charge - 6.3 {179.%) - {184.4)
Exchange diference 0.1 - [LA)] - 1.0
Closing net book value 775 28 3771 425 499.9
At 30 March 2019
Cost 1310 112.3 1,402.2 74.6 1,720.%
Accumulated amortisation and impairments and write-offs {53.5) {109.5) (1,025.1) 32.1) (1,220
Net book value 775 28 kYA 42.5 499.9
Goodwill relate to the following groups of cash generating units (CGU's):
par una Frn W £m UK fm M‘;"::
Net book value at 31 March 2018 69.5 7.2 o7 774
Exchange difference - 01 - 0.1
Net book value at 30 March 2019 69.5 7.3 0.7 775

Impairment testing
Goodwill 1s net amortised but s tested annually for impairment with the recoverable amount being determined from value in use calculations.

Goodwill for India and the UK is monitared by management at a country level, induding the combined retail and wholesale businesses for
each location, and have been tested for impairment on that bas:s

The per una brand is a definite life imangible asset amortised on a straight-ine basis over a period of 15 years The brand intangible was
acguired for a cost of £80.0m, and 15 held at a net book value of £2.8m (last year: £8.1m} The per una goodwill and brand are considered
together for impairment testing purposes and are therefore tested annually for impairment

The cash flows used for impawment testing are based on the Group's latest budget and forecast cash flows, covering a three year penod,
which have regard to historic performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group’s views on the future achievable
growth and the impact of committed cash flows. The cash flows include ongoing capital expenditure required to maintain the store network,
but exclude any growth capital initiatives not committed. The latest budget and three-year plan reflect a more conservative view of the shant-
term future performance of the UK and per una businesses,

Cash flows beyond this three-year peniod ate extrapolated using a long-term growth rate based on the Group's current view of achievable
long-term growth. The Group's aurrent view of achievable long-term growth for the UK and per una is 2 3%, which combines the long-term
inflation rate of 1.8% with a 0.5% real uplift for growth. This s higher than the rate used in the prior year, reflecting our confidence in the
ability of the strategic programme to transform the business and achieve a higher terminal grewth rate. The Group’s current wew of
achuevable long-term growth for India is & 5%
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Management estimates discount rates usng pre-tax rates that reflect the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to each asset or CGU. The pre-tax discount rates are derived from the Group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital adjusted
for the specrfic risks relating 1 each asset or CGU. and were 9.1% for the UK and per una (last year: 8 6%) and 17 3% for India (last year:
14.8%}).

Management has performed sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions in the impairment mode! using reasonable possible changes in these
key assumphions, both ndividually and in combination Management has considered reasonably possible changes in key assumptions that
would cause the carrying amounts of goodwill or brands to exceed the value in use lor each asset,

For Indha and the UK, there s no ressonably possible change in key assumptions that would lead to an impairment and the assumptions do
not give 11se to a key source of estimation uncertainty

Per una
The assumptions appled to the impairment test for per una give rise to @ key source of estimation uncertainty, and the management’s
sansitivity anatysis has identified a reasonably possible change in key assurnptions that would lead to a material impairment charge

The future cashflows applied in the per una calculation reflect the Group's plans ta grow the per una brand over the next three years The
success of these plans will determine the strategic role of the brand within the Group.

Inthe medium to long-term, the key assumption driving the value in use is the ability to generate proftable growth in the context of significant
change in the UK retall market. The model assumes growth into perpetuity, as set out above which given uncertsin market conditions 15
considered sensiive. If a shorter trading period was assumed then this could result in an impairment

The outcome of the value in use calculation supports the carmying value of the asset, with a headroom of £39.0rm.

As disclosed in the accounting palicies (nate 1), the cash flows used within the impainment model are based on assumptions which are
sources of estimation uncertainty and srall movements in these assumptions, given the level of headroom, could lead to an impaikment

The following key assumpiions would have to change in order to eliminate the headroom within the Impairment test.

- The cash flow forecasts in each of the years covered by the three-year forecast would have 10 be 35% below forecast;
- The long-term growth rate of cash flows would have to decline to -2.2% per annum; or

- The pre1ax discount rate would have (o increase 1o 12 9%

Management has performed sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions in the imparrment modei using reasonable possible changes in these

key assumptions, such as assuming that forecast growth is not achieved.

- Inthe scenano where per una sales declined by 2.5% 1n each of the 3 years forecast, combined with no growth inte pempetuity, headroom
would reduce to nit

+ Inthe scenano where per una sales declined by 15% in each of the 3 years forecast, combined with no growth into perpetuity an impairment
of £22.7m would result
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ftures, Assets i the

fureept and course of
Land and squYmEDT SO Lruction

_ buldings £m im [N Toral £m
At 1 April 2017 oo
Cost 3,008 4 1,750 3 %0 10,854 7
Accumulated depreciation, impairments and write-ofs 461.4) {5,581 2% (179 {6,062 7)
Net book value 25468 21621 781 47920
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book value 2,546 8 21671 781 47920
Additions 02 565 045 2613
Transfers and reclassifications 162 1856 {2008} Ao
Disposals 2.0 {15.4) - {17.5)
Asset impairments {104 8) {(103.3) - (208.1)
Asset write offs (165} 15 30 {18
Depreciation charge 18 8 {3950 - 4138
Exchange difference 2.9 0.8} 01} 2.0
Closing net book value 2417.9 1,897.2 78.8 . 4,393.9
Ax 31 March 2018 )
Cost 2.963.4 70590 9.8 10,119.2
Accumulated depeeciation, mpairments and write-offs {545.5) {5.161.8) {18.0) {5,725.3}
Net bock value 24179 1,897.2 78.8 4,393.9
Year ended 30 March 2019
QOpening net book value 24179 18972 8.8 43919
Additions 09 309 1701 .0 B
Transfers and reclassificatons B2 1667 {148.8) (5.3}
Disposals 2.5 04 - 2.9
Asset imparments {11.5) 58.2) - {69.7}
Asset write-offs (353 8.6} - 439}
Depreciation charge @aw.7n {352.0 - {441.7)
Exchange difference .7 un - (3.9}
Closing net book value 2,2739 16745 80.1 4,028.5
At 30 March 2019 :
Cost 29239 57291 98.1 _8,751 Al
Accumulatec depreciation, impairments and write-offs {$50.0} {4,054.8) {18.0) {4,722 .6)
Net book value 2,2713% 1,46745 80.1 40285

Asset write-offs in the year include assets with gross book value of £1,467 9m {last year £784.9m) and £nil (last year: £nil) net book value that
are no longer in use and have therefore been retved.
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

The net book value above incksdes land and buildings of £31 1m {last year £41.6m) and equipment of Enil {fast year: £nil) where the Group is
alessee under a finance lease

Addtions to property, plant and equipment during the year amounting o £nil {last year. £nil) were financed by finance leases.

Impawment of property, plant and equipment .
For impawrnent esting purposes, 1he Group has determined that each store 1s a separate CGU, with the excepuon of outlet stores, which
are considered together as one CGLI. Shop Your Way [SYW) sales are included in the cash flows of the relevant CGU

Each CGU is tested for impaument at the balance sheet date if any indicators of impairment have been identified Stores identified within
the Group's UK store estate programme are automatically tested for imparment {see note 5)

The value in use of each CGU is calculated based on the Group’s latest budget and forecast cash flows, covering a thrae-year penad, which
have regard Lo historic performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on the future achievable growth
and the impact of committed initiatives. The cash flows include ongoing capital expenditure required to maintain the store network, but
exclude any growth capital initiatives not committed Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapolated using a long-term growth
rate based on management Auture expectations, with reference to forecast GOP growth These growth rates do not exceed the long-term
growth rate for the Group's retail businesses in the relevant territory. Iif the CGU relates to a store which the Group has identified as part of
the UK store estate prograrnme, the value in use calculated has been modihed by estimation of the future cash flows up to the point where
it is estimated that trade will cease and then estimation of the timing and amount of costs asscciated with diosure detailed fully in note 5.

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations are the growth ratas of sales and gross profit margins, changes in the operating cost
base, long-term growth rates and the risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate. The pre-tax discount rates are derived from the Group's weighted
average cost of capital, taking into account the cost of capital and borrowings, 1o which spedific market-related premium adpstments are
made for each territory The pre-tax discount rates range from 9% to 21% (last year: 8% to 15%) If the CGU relates to a store which the Graup
has identified as part of the UK store estate programme, the additional key assumptions in the value in use calculations are costs associated
with closure, the disposal proceeds from store exts and the timing of the store exits.

Impaiments - UK stores (excluding store estate programme)

During the year the Group has recognised an impairment charge of £52.8m and no impairment reversals as a result of UK store impairment
testing unrelated to the UK store estate programme (year ended 31 March 2018: £11.9m). These impairments have been recognised within
adsting items {see note 5)

For UK stores, cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using the Group's cutrent view of achievable long-term growth of
2.3%, adjusted to 0% where management believe the current trading performance and future expectations of the store do ot support the
growth rate of 2.3%. This rate combines the fong-term inflation rate of 1.8% with a 0.5% real uplift for growth. This is higher than the rate
used in the pror year, reflecting our confidence in the ability of the strategic programme ta transform the business and achieve a higher
termina! growth rate. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows for UK stores is 9.1%.

As disclosed in the accounting policies [note 1), the cash flows used within the impasment model are based on assumptions which are
sources of estimation uncertainty and small movemants in these assumptions could lead to further iImpairments. Management has performed
sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions in the impairment model using reasonably possible changes in these key assumptions across the
UK store portfolio.

A reduction in sales of 2% from the three.year plan would result in an incease in the wnpairment charge of £7 1Tm and 3 20 bass pont
reduction in gross profit margin would increase the impairment charge by £2.2m. In combination, a 1% fall in sales and a 10 basis point fall
in gross profit margin would increase the impawment chasge by £4.7m. Reasonably possible changes of the other key assumptions, nchuding
reducing the long 1erm growth rate to 0% across alf stores, would not result in an increase to the impairmen charge

impairments — UK stores store estate programme

During the year, the Group has recognised an impairment charge of £16.9m retating to the on-going UK store estate programme [year ended
31 March 2018 £196.2m). The impairment charge relafes to the accelerated and expanded store closure programme and has been
recognised within adjusting items (see note 5)

Where the planned dosure date for a store is outside the three year plan period, no growth rate is applied The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows for UK stores 15 % 1%

As disclosed in the accounting polcies {note 1), the cash fiows used within the impairment models for the UK store estate programme are
based on assumptions which are sources of estimation uncertainty and small movements in these assumptions could lead to further
impairments. Management has performed sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions in the impairment model using reasonably possible
changes in these key assumptions across the UK store estate programme.

A delay of 12 morths in the probable date of each store extt would result in a decrease in the impairment charge of £31.4m. A 2% reduction
in the year 1 sales growth would result in an increase in the impawment charge of £4 9m1. Neither a 25 basis pont increase in the discount
rate, a 20 basis point reduction in management gross margin during the period of rading nor a 2% increase in the costs associated with
exiting a store would result in a significant increase 1o the impairment charge, individually or In combination with the other reasonably
possible scenarios considered
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15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2019 e
fm fm
Non-current
Unfisted mvestments 29 29
Other investments! 48 61
14.7 160
Current
Short-term investments? 1418 137
Amounts owed by parent company 2,548.5 25504

2,690.3 25643

1 Other svestrants rapresent. shares in Marks snd Spencer Group plc halkd for msue agarut vested ermployee schames
2 nchudes £50m (last year €9 B} of money market deposa held by Marks and Spenoss plc m an racrow account. es pert of the Group's sel funded captem wriorance scheme

Non-curent unhsted investments are carried as fair value through other comprehensive income {availlable for sale assets before 1 Apnl 2018)
Other financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in their value taken to the income statement

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

me 018
£Em fm

Non-current
Other receivables 0 23
Prepayments and accrued income 198.7 2067
2007 209.0

Current

Trade recevables 28 $14.3
Less provision for impairment of receivablas 3.2 04
Trade receivables - net 1186 139
Other recevables 315 0%
Prepayments 1441 1342
Accrued income 28.3 294
3225 3084

Trade and other receivables that were past due but nat impaired amounted to £7 2m (last year: £21.3m} and are mainly sterhng denominated
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value. These balances are subject to
an assessment of expected credit losses (see note X)). Included in accrued income is £21.9m (last year_ £28.2m) of acoued suppher income
relating to rebates that have been earned but not yet invoiced. Supplier mcome that has been invoicad but not yet settled against future
trade creditor balances is indluded within trade creditors where there is a right 1o offset. The remaining amount is immaterial. The impact on
inventory is immatenal as these rebates relate to food stock which has been soid through by the year end,

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents are £285.4m (last year £207 7m) The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value

The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits is (.74% {last year: 0.40%) These deposits have an average maturity of 7 days {last
year: 23 days}

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

09 018
fm fm
Current

Trade and other payables 911.2 8729
Social security and other taxes 437 571
Accruals 452.0 4259
Deferred income 54.4 50.0
14613 14059

Nor-curment
Other payables 30 46
Accruals 439 48.1
Deferred income 2755 2811

3224 333.8
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES CONTINUED

Under IFRS 15, disclosure of contract liab lities held on the balance sheet at the start and end of the period and reverue recognised during
the perod which relates to the contract liabilrties heid at the start of the period is required. Gift card liabiltties/voucher schemes are contract
habilities as payment has been received for a performance obligation which will be performed at a later point in tims. Included within trade
and other payables are gitt card/voucher scheme kabilities.

fm
Year ended 30 March 2019 - T

Opening balance 1994
Issues 4136
Released 10 the ncome staterment “26.1)
Closing balance 186.9

Fhe Group operates a number of supplier financing arrangements, under which suppliers can obtain accelerated settlement on wwoices
from the finance provider. The Group settles these amounts in accordance with each suppliers agreed payment terms. The Group's trade
creditors balance includes £200.0m (last year. £212.0m) relating to payments due to M&S supplers under these arrangements. During the
year ended 30 March 2019 the arrangements were used by 183 suppliers, with a maximurn facility available of £381.0m

19 BORRCWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL UABILITIES

2017 08
fm fm
Current

Bank Isans and overdrafts? 723 884
Finance lease liabilities 03 03
6.125% £400m medium-term notes 2019%* 3998 -
Interest accrued on medium-term notes 30 349
Revaluation of medium-term notes 37 -
» 5131 1254

Non-current -
6 125% £400m medium-term notes 201945 - 4001
6 125% £300m medium-term notes 20217 298.7 298.2
300% £300m medium-term notes 2023 297.4 %69
4 75% £400m medium-term notes 20257 390.3 3975
7 125% US$300rm medium-term notes 203734 1921 192.0
Revaluation of medium-tersn notes 458 382
Finance lease liabilities 442 477
1,279.5 16706
Total 1,792.4 1.796.2

1 Bark boans and overckahs i the prior yea ichude s £50m loan hom the | ledge End Park Limited porert vantune that was repasd during the yesr e note 27)

2 Thaese notes we assed under Marks and Spencer pl's £ 3om Evropean medium.term note programme and off pay interes! annually

3 wrax on thea bonc & payabie semeannuslly

4 LSS50 and USSXI0M medkrn-term notet. # xponse swappes 16 sterling ied-to-fued oross cureency intenest rate swaps

5 The Group occasonally enters it mierest Swaps (o marage ntere rate exposure At poar end. the £375n last year £425m) was swapped from fized to floating rate

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fal due as shown n the table on the following page The weighted average lease term
for equipment is nif years {last year two years) and 91 years {last year 93 years) for property. Interest rates are lixed at the contract rate, All
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arangements have been entered nto for contingent payments. The Group's obligations under
finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Treasury policy
The Group operates a centralised wreasury function to manage the Group's funding recrairemants and financial risks in ne with the Board-
approved treasury poheies and procedures, and their delegated authorities

The Group's financial instrurments, other than derivatives, comprse borrowings, cash and liquid resources and various items, such as trade
receivables and trade payables that arse directly from #ts operations The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the
Group's operations

The Group treasury function also enters into derivative transactions, principally intetest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and farward currency
contracts The purpose of these transactions is to manage the interest rate and foreign currency rsks arlsing from the Group's operations
and fnancing

&7
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

i remains the Group's policy not to hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where finanaal constraints necessitate
the need to hquidate any outstanding investments The treasury function is managed as a cost centre and does not engage in speculative
trading

Financial risk management .

The principal finandial risks faced by the Group are liquidity and funding, interest rate, foreign currency and courterparty nsks The policies
and strategies for managing these risks are summarised on the following pages:

{a} Liquidity and funding risk

The rk that the Group could be unable to settle or meet its obhgations at a reascnable price as they fall due

- The Group's funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering sufficent headroom, maturity and flexibility and cost-
effectiveness 1o match the requirements of the Group

- Marks & Spencer plc is financed by 8 combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and a committed syndicated
bank facility.

- Operating subsidiaries are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings and intercompany loans

Atyear end, the Group had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit facifity of £4.1bn sat to mature on 15 Apnl 2023, The facilty contains
only one financial covenant, being the ratio of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable; to interest plus
rents payable. The covenant is measured semi-annually The Group akso has a number of uncommitted facilities available to it At year end,
these amounted to £100m {last year. £100m), all of which are due to be reviewed within a year. At the balance sheet date, a sterling equivalert
of £nit {ast year: £nil) was drawn under the committed facilities and £nil {last year: £45m) was drawn under the uncommitted fadlities

In addition to the existing borrowings, the Group bas a Euro Medium Term Note programme of £3on, of which £1.4bn (last year £1.4bn)was
In ssuance as at the balance sheet date.

The contractual maturity of the Group's non-dervatwve financial liabilities {excluding trade and other payables (see note 18)) and derivatives
5 a5 follows:

Pacinarshp
Labdity to the Totdl
Marks & borrowings Total
Bank loans Finance Spancer snd cther Deorvatre
arvd Madim fware UK prapon financal Deerative aysets and
overdrafty term notes habidilies? irote 11} lub ikt s Ciervative labihues’ habikties
m [2) m im im ausata’ fm fm [
Timing of cash flows
Within one year (88.4) 86.1) 2.3 719 (248.7) 300 £82) L2 0]
Betwaen one and two
years - {4B6.1) 2.3) [TRRY] (560 3 219 {18 1) 38
Betweern two and five
yaars - 1466.3) 6.9 {215.5) (488 7) 2700 (248 5) 215
More than five years - (1,207.2) (168.9} - {1,376 1) 2231 (198 %) 246
(88.4} 22457 (1804} (359.3} {2,8731.8} 5450 (553.3) {8.3)
Effect of discounting - 585.9 1324 238 7421
At 1 April 2018 (88.4) {1.659.8) {48 0} (335.5) {2.131.7)
Timing of cash flows
Within one year 2.3} {487 2} 2.3 [FAR/] 633 580 (20.4) 374
Between one and two
years - 62.7) ’.3 [ea k] (1369 242 1622 a0
Between two and five
years - 751.3) (5.8) (143.4) 901.7) 2824 (241.4) 410
Mare than five years - (B95.5) {160.3) - 1,055.8) 2308 (191.5 393
2.3 {2.1946.7} {171.h (287 4) (2,728.1) 595.4 469.7) 125.7
Effect of discounting - 522% 125.2 150 663.1
At 30 March 2019 72.3) {1,673.8) {44.5) (272.4) (2.065.0)
1 Dativatee cash kv e gaciowd based on actual Al c are settiod net, axoept for Lumency Beapt

~N

The cosh Rows relatng 1o france iase kabdimes ceflect the remaning maumum lease paymeres whch weie fised al ncagtion and therefore are rebected within the prescent vohue o finarce koe
habxltws 21 30 March 2019 the 1ol vabe of sddtonal commated contnge rents are £352 6m which will be axpermed s woured In the yrar enching X) March 2015 contngent rents of £350m
et tecogninad within the operstrng lease rentals pyabie i, note 4

The present value of finance lease habildies s as follows.

2019 w8

tm [
Within one year 0.3 0.3)
Later than one year and not later than five years {1.1) (4]
Later than five years B e (45.1) {44.6)
Total 46 5) {48 0)
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
{b} Counterparty risk

Counterparty tisk exists where the Group can suffer financial loss through the defaul or non-perdformance of the financial insttutions with
whom it transacts.

Exposures are managed n accordance with the Group treasury policy which limits the value that can be placed with each approved
counterparty to minimise the risk of loss. The minimurm tong-term rating for all counterparties is long-term Standard & Poot's (S&PYMoody's
A-/A3 (BBB+/Baal for committed lending banks] In the event of a rating by one agency being different from the other, reference will be
made to Fitch to determine the casting vote of the rating group In the absence of a Fitch rating the lower agency rating will prevail. Limis
are reviewed regularly by senior management. The credit risk of these financial instruments 1s estimated as the fair value of the assets resulting
from the contracts

The table below analyses the Group's short-term mvestments and derivative assets by credn exposure exciuding bank balances, store cash
and cash in transit.

AnA. AR AA AR As A 'y BEB Total

im im im im im {m fm Em Em

Short-term investments’ - - 26 98 336 79 27 15 58.1
Derivative assets? - - - - - 8.0 - 29 109
At 31 March 2018 - - 24 9.8 336 159 2.7 44 69.0
AbAY ARA AA AR As A A RBB+ Total

£Em im Em m fm Em £m dm [m

Short-term investments’ - - - 164 1683 839 - 07 2623
Derivative assets” - - - 169 21.0 1.8 - 0.3 50.0
A1 30 March 2019 - - - 333 18%.3 957 - 10 319.3

1 Inchudes cash on depout and manay rmarket hundh hetd by Marks & Spence Scotteh Lrmited Parinenshp, Marks & Spencer plc and Marde & Spencer General nsuvance bxchudes oash n hand and
trarak £157 9m (last your E449 4
2 Stewderd B Poor's equivalent rating shown st reference 10 the mapsfy cracdt rating of the countip sty from erher Standatd & Poor's, Moody's or Froh where sppicahie

The Group has a very low retail credit risk due to transactions principally being of high volume, low value and short maturity.

The maximum exposure 10 credit nsk at the balance sheet date was as follows: rade recewvables £121 8m (lost year: £114.3m), other
recevables £33 5m (last year: £33.2m}, cash and cash equivalents £285.4m (last year. £207 7m) and derivatives £60. 1m (last year: £34.2m),

Impairment of financial assets
From 1 Apnl 2018, the Group's financial assets subject 1o the expected aredit loss (ECL) mode! are pnmarily rade and other receivables.

The credit nsk managemant practices of the Group include internal review and reportmg of the ageing of trade and other recevables by
days past due by a centralised accounts receivable funetion, and grouped by respective contractual revenue stream, along with liaison with
the debtors by the credit control function,

Fram 1 April 2018, the Group apphes the IFRS 7 smplified approach in measuring expected credit losses which use a lfetime expected credd
loss aflowance for all trade receivables and contract assets

To measure expected credrt losses, trade receivables have been grouped by shared credit risk characteristics along the lines of differing
revenue streams such as intemational franchise, food, UK franchise, corporate and sundry as well 2s by geographical location and days past
due.

The expected loss rates are determined based on the average write-offs as a proportion of average debt over a penod of 36 months pnor
to the reporting date. The historical loss rates are adjusted for current and forward-looking information where significant. The Group
considers GDP growth, unemployment, sales growth and bankruptcy rates of the countries in which goads are sold to be the most relevant
factors, and where the impact of these s significant adjusts the historical ioss rates based on expected changes in these factors

The Group considers credit risk to have significamtly increased for debts aged 180 days or over. The Group has incomporated this mio the
expected loss model through a uniform loss rate for ageing buckets below 180 days dependent on the revenue stream and country, and
providing for 100% of debt aged over 180 days past due Where the Group specifically holds insurance or holds the legal right of offset with
debtors which are also creditors, the loss provision 1s applied only to the extent of the uninsured or net exposure.

Trade recenvables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation ol recovery. Indicators that there may be no reasonable expectation
of recovery include the failure of the deblor to engage in a payment plan, and failure to make contractual payments within 180 days past
due

Impairment losses on rade receivables are presented as net imparment losses withm operating profit and subsequent recoveries are
credited to the same line item

Upte Wetays 3140 dayrpast 61 90 days past 91180 duys 181 days o
Curternt paat dus chae due past due  more pest dua 1otal
£m Im £m £m £m fm fm
Gross carrying amount - trade recewables me 39 08 1.6 17 19 1218
Expected loss rate a51% 2.69% 6 49% 11.34% 2041% 100.0% 2462%
Lifetime expected credrt loss 0.5 01 01 02 04 19 32
Net carrying amount o ma 38 07 REN 1.3 - 1186
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The closing koss allowances for rade recevables as at 30 March 2019 reconciles 1o the opening loss allowances as foliows.

Trade receivables expected loss provision i
31 March 2018 - calculated under 145 39 04
Amounts restated Through opening retained eamings 0.6
Opening loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 calculated under iFRS 9 190
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit and loss during the year 24
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable [0.2)
At 30 March 2019 32

In relation to other financial assets not formmg part of trade recevables, a simplified approach is utiised where lifetme expected credit
losses are calculated rather than 12 month expected credit losses. For ex-employee debt the average write-offs are dwvided by the average
debtor balance to determine a write off rate, fees from colection agencies used to collect the balances are factored into the loss allowance
based on the size of the ndwidual debt and future unemployment rates are factored into the calaulation of allowance as well 25 the impact
of discounting of the aged debt.

The loss aliowance for other receivables is recognised within provisions within current liabilties in the consolidated statemem of financial
position The closing loss allowance as at 30 March 2019 reconciles to the opening loss allowance as follows:

Other receivables expected loss provision £m
37 March 2018 - caleylated under 1AS 39 04
Amaunts restated through opering retained earmings o.n
Opening loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 caleulated under IFRS ¢ 03
Increase n koan loss allowance recognised in profit and loss during the year 0.8
Receivables written oif during the year as uncollectable ©.6)
At 30 March 2019 03

In the prior year, the impairment of trade and other receivables was assessed on an incurred loss model basis. Indwidual receivables that
were considered 10 be uncollectable were written off by reducing the carrying value directly. Individual recewvables were assessed 1o
determine if there was evidence of impairment, and losses were recogrised in 2 separate provision for impairment. The Group considered
the following to be indicators of evidence of impairment:

- Significant financial difficulties of the debtor.
- Probabilty that the debtor would enter bankruptey.

- Default of late payments, the extent to which they were overdue being determined on a case-by-case basis with reference to the
knowledge and communication with the debtor and ther refationship with the business.

The impairment loss provision i the prior year opened at £1 7m and closed at £0.4m Where an impairment provision was frecognised,
receivables were written off against the provision when there was no expectation of recovering any further debt.

{c} Foreign asmency risk

Transactional foreign currency exposure arses primarily from the import of goods sourced from overseas suppliers and also from the export
of goods from the UK 1o overseas subsidiaries. The most significant exposure is to the LS dollar, incurred in the sourcing of Clothing & Home
products from Asia.

Group Freasury hedges these exposures principally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively based on dynamic forecasts
from the business Hedging begins around 15 months ahead of the stant of the season, with between 80% and 100% of the risk hedged nine
months before the start of the season

Crther exposures arsing from the export of goods to overseas subsidiaries are also hedged progressively over the course of the year befare
they are incurred As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value in sterling terms of {orward foreign exchange sell or buy contracts
amounted to £1,755.6m (last year, £1,962.8m) with a weighted average maturity date of seven months {last year: six months)

Gans and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts designated in cash flow hedge relationships as at 30 March 2019 will be
released 1o the income statement at varous dates over the following 17 months {last year' 17 months) from the balance sheet date

The FX forwards are designated as cash flow hedges of highly probable forecast transactions. Both spot and forwerd ponts are designated
in the hedge relationship, under IFRS 9 the currency basis spread may be excluded from the hedge relationship and recognised in other
comprehensive ncome (QC1) - cost of hedging reserve. The change i the faw value of the hedging instrument, to the degree effective, is
retained in OCI and racycled to inventory as part of the “basis adjustment”. This will be realised in the mcome statement onge the hedged
ternvis sold There have been no discontinued or restarted hedges, and no ineffectiveness in the FX forwards has been reported this inancial
year or last

The FX forwards are recognised at therr fair value (IFRS 13 level 2 measurement). The Group has considered and elected not to apply
aredit/debd valuation adjustments, owing to therr 1elaively short dated nature The risks at the reporting date are representative of the
financial year

The Group previously used a combination of foreign currency debt and foreign exchange contracts to hedge its net balance sheet translation
exposure by currercy arising from investment in overseas opetations. The treasury policy was changed during the previous financial year and
the Group no longer hedges these and all contracts cutstanding were terminated in the prior year.
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The Group also hoids a number of cross—currency swaps to designate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate steding debt These are
reported as cash flow hedges

The change in the fair value of the hedging nstrument, to the degree effective, is retained in OCH, segregated by cost and effect of bedging.
Under IFRS % the curmercy basis on the crass-currency swaps are excluded from the hedge designation and recognised in OCI - cost of
hedging reserve Effectiveness is measured using the hypothetcal dervative approach The contractual terms of the cross-currency swaps
include break clauses every five years which allow for the interest rates to be reset {last reset December 2017) The hypothetical derivative is
based on the onginal critical terms and so ineffectiveness may result.

The cross-currency swaps are recognised at their fair value {IFRS 13 level 2 measurement), the Group has considered and eiected to apply
credit/debit valuation adjustments, owing to the swaps’ relative mateniality and longer dated nature

The Group also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the
hedging of the Group's foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with fair value movements being recogrised
in the ncome statement The commesponding fair value movement of the intercompany loan batance resulted in a £3.9m gain (last year £3.3m
gain} in the income statement As at the balance sheet date, the gross notionat value of intercompany loan hedges was £129.0m (last year:
£217.2m).

Aher 1aking #to account the hedging derrvatives entered into by the Group, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Group’s inancial
habilities, exduding short-term payables and the liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme, 1s set out below.

e 018

Fined nie Floating Total Fixed rate Floatmng Tatal
o o im rate I Em im e Lm fm

Currency
Sterling 1,334 447.0 1.786.6 1.216.2 S511.¢ 1,787 8
Euro &0 - &0 65 - 45
Other . - - - D1 1.8 19
1,345.6 447.0 1,792.6 1,2828 5134 1,796.2

The fioating rate sterling borrowings are linked to interest rates related to LIBOR, mainly for penods of six months

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, post-hedging the GBP and USD fixed rate borrowings are at an average rate of
4.8% [last year: 4.7%) and the weighted average time for which the rate is fixed is five years (last year- six years)

Other than the termination of net investment hedges and the separation of the cost of hedging in the statement of changes in equity and
statement of comprehensive income, there were no other significant changes in hedge accounting when compared with the prior year.

{d) Interast rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate nsk in relation to sterling, US dollar and eurc variable rate financial assets and liabihties.

The Group's policy is to use dervative contracts where necessary 1o maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage this risk
The structure and maturity of these derivatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as fair vaiue or cash flow
hedges as appropriate

Al the balance sheet date, fixed rate borrowings amounted to £1,345.6m (last year. £1,282 Bm) representing the public bond ssues and
finance leases, amounting to 75% (last year. 71%) of the Group’s gross borrowings.

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows

2009 208

% %
Committed and uncommitted borrowings - 10
Medium-term notes 48 47
Finance leases 43. 43

The merest rate swaps are recognised at ther farr value (IFRS 13 level 2 measurement). The Group has considered and elected to apply
wredit/ debrt valuation adjustments, owing to the swaps’ relative materiality and longer dated nature The contractual terms on £150m of the
£175m national of interest rate swaps relating 1o the 2025 debt allow for early termination every five years {next optional termination date
April 2023) Vatable interest periods an the pay legs are six monthly compared with twelve monthly on the receive fixed legs and related
debt

Il
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Derivative financiel instruments

The below table llustrates the effects of hedge accounting on the conschdated statement of financia! position and consotidated income
staternent through detailing separately by risk category and each type of hedge the details of the associated hedging instrument and hedged

nern
30 Warch 2019
Custant Mon Curent
Formard foregn Forward loragn Intorestrate  Crom-curtency Forsward Roremgn interan rate
.:3:;:?. aachange comract wape swaps  exchange contracts RpL
im Im fm £m £rn £rr
Cash flow Held for Fair value Cash flow Cash flow Fair value
Hedging risk strategy hedges trading hedges hedges hedges hedges
Notional / currency tegs 14236 1290 2000 1935 2030 1750
Carrying amourt assets { {lab:hties] 274 03 53 40 (3.6} 146
Maturity date to Mar 2020 to Mar 2020 Dec 2019 Dec 2037 10 Sep 2020 Jun 2025
Hedge ratio 100%' 100% 100% 100% 100%’ 100%
Highly probable Hughly probable
temraachanal FX Inter.compeny  GBP fized 1ate  USD fned rata warpactona! FX - GBP hued rave
Description of hedged item exporures loans/ depants borowny boriewng tpoTre barrowing
Change in fair value of hedging
instrument? 959 (15} (50 79 z0 s
Change in fair value of hedged item
used to determine hedge effectiveness? 5.9 54 5.0 4.4 2.0 {04
Weighted average hedge rate for the GBP/EUR 1.12, GBP/EUR 1.12,
year GBP/USD 135 NSA 3.4% 73% GBP/AUSD 132 32%
Amounts recognised within finance
costs in profit and loss® - 39 - 359 - o
Balance on cash flow hedge reserve st
30 March 20n9 nza N/A N/A 8.4) 17 N/A
Balance on cost of hedging reserve at
30 March 201% - N/A N/A (14.8) - N/A

1 Parcentage of the smour permrdied under Reasy palcy n reation 10 layeced hedges an 8 robng bases
2 Thv[lSmlc-'rvahnd-uangerepoesemed-nthefm-m.nmcmmen!niﬁnlwmrduxmmduihereldlmmdngmmm-adtoxmulyhedgelwc-ﬂmrl-vauvybs&depmu

which we represented n e T54m ans the net lorgn exchangs giens and losses undes ths strategy
3 Amount m aclabon 10 0S8 CUiTENCy Swaps Tepi esents evefircTveness

2
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Darivative financial instrurnents continued

M March 2018
Notionat value Fau Vahie
Assons Liabilives Asats Listuhues
fm Em fm Em
Current
Forward loreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 3436 12134 5.1 73.6)
) - held for trading 149 8 67.4 20 02
Interest rate swaps - fair vatue hedges - - - -
- 4934 1,280.8 71 738)
Non-current
Cross currency swaps - cash llow hedges - 1935 - (26.7}
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cah flow hedges 480 14G.6 04 4.0
interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 425.0 - 267 -
4730 3349 271 (30.7)
30 Mharch 2019
National Vakw Fait Value
Assats Liabi e Ameis Lisbilrhes
im £m fm tm
Curent
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 1,073.8 34938 343 “9
- held for trading 539 751 07 0.4
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 2000 - 5.3 -
1,327.7 424.9 40.3 7.3
Non-current
Cross currency swaps « cash flow hedges - 193.5 a7 0.7
Forward loreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 848 118.2 05 2.1
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 1750 - 144 -
2598 311.7 1.8 2.8

The Group's hedging reserves disclosed in the consohdated statement of changes in equity. relate to the following hedging instrurnents

Costal  Costol  Dafared Tatal Hedge Hedge Hedge Hodge  Droforred Total
hedging  bedgng ln  costol  rmeve X seserve  rmseve  reseme - hedge
reserve FX reacnve hadging darivelves CCIRS gilt bocks 37 reserve
decratives CCRS! resqrue debt
[2 £m frm [ m im fm im Im im
1A5 39 closing balance - - - - 583 a8 04 8 15 4; 65.3
Adjustment on adoption of FRS 9 08 (139 24 (109) ©8) - - 1% R4 107
Opening Balance 1 April 2018
unde IFRS 9 08 1139 24 (107 575 (88) 04 447 (78 760
Add. Change in foir value of
hedging instrument recagnised in
ocl - - - - ana - e - (1305
Add Costs of hedging deferred
and recognised in OCI 0.8} 0.7) - (1.5 - - - - - -
Less. Reclassified to the cost of
inventory - - - - 427 - - - - 427
Less' Reclassified from OCl 1o
profit or loss - - - - - - - 158 - 158
Less. Reclassified from OCI to
profit or loss - included in finance
costs - - ~ - - 04 02 - 0.2
Less Deferred tax - - 05 0.5 - - - - 104 10.4
Closing Balance 30 March 2019 - (14.4) 29 (11.7} 1.1 B4 02 413 7.4) 144

1 Cross-cuency mefes rate sviaps

73
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Derivative financial instruments continued

There were na reclassificatons from the cashfiow hedge reserve ta profit and loss dunng the peniod in relation to forward currency contracts

The Group holds a number of interest rate swaps to re-designate its sterling fixed debxt 10 fioating debst These are reported as faw value hedges
The ineffective portion recogrised in the profit or loss that arises from fair value hedges amounts to a £0.1m gain {last year: £0 4m gain) as the gain
on the hedged itermns was £4.4rm flast year £150m gar) and the movernent on the hedging instrurnents was £4.5m loss {last year: £14.4m loss)

Mcrvemend in hedged items and hedging instuments

9 Z2NE
_— tm im

Net loss in fair value of interest rate swap 4.5 {14.6)
Net gan on hedged nems 4.6 150
Inefifectveness 01 04

The Grouwp holds a number of oross-aurmency nterest rate swaps 1o re-designate its U'SD to GBP fixed debt. These are reported as cash fiow hedges
The ineffactve portion recognised in the profit and loss that arises from the cash flow hedges amounts to 8 £3.5m loss (last year. £2.3m loss) as the
gain on the hedged nerns was £4 4 {last year. £24 $m gaind and the movement on the hedgng instruments was £7 9m loss {last year £27 2m loss}

Movament in hedged items and hedging insruments

2009 18

im £m

Net gain n fair value of cross-currency interest rate swap a4 249
Net loss on hedged items [tR7] 27.2)
B35 23

Ineffectiveness

Sensitivity analysis

The table below illustrates the estmated impact on the income statement and equrty as a result of market movamants in foreign exohange and
nterest rates in relation to the Group's financial instruments The directors consider that a 2%+/- {last year: 2%) movement in interest and a 20% +/-
{last year: 20%) movement in sterfing agamst the relevant currency represents a reasonably possible change. However this analysis is for ilustrative
purposes only

The tabie exdudes finandial ingtruments that expose the Group 10 mterest rate and foreign exchange risk where such a risk is fully hedged with another
financial imstrument Also excluded are trade receivables and payables as these are either sterling denominated or the foreign exchange risk is hedged

Interest rates The impact in the income statement due to changes in interest rates reflects the effect on the Group's floating rate debt as at the balance
sheet date. The impact in equity reflacts the fair value movernent in relation to the Group's transactional foreign exchange cash flow hedges at the
balance sheet date. The impact in equity reflects the fair value movemnent in relation to the Group's cross-cunency swaps

Foreign exchange The impact kom foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the fair value of the Group's transactional foreign exchange
cash flow hedges at the balance sheet date The equity impact shown for foreign exchange sensitivity relates to derivatives. This value 15 expected to
be materially offset by the re-transiztion of the related trarsactional exposures

2% decresse a0 2% ncress 2% weakwning X% sirengtherng
nterenl ratas. ninteradt rales ) atethng o aterling
fm fm Em fm
At 31 March 2018
Impact on income statement gain/(loss) B [CR} - -
Impact on ather comprehensive income. {oss)/gain (15.6) 10.6 21587 o {222.4)
Ar 30 March 2019
Impact on income statement. gain/(loss) 54 4.0 - -
Impact on other comprehensive income loss)/gan . 4.3 25 2268 (226.8)




WMarks and Spences pic

NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilties

The lollowing tables set out the knancial assets and financial habilites which are subject to offsetting, enfarceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements Amounts which are set off against financial assets and habilties in the Group's balance sheet are set out below For frade and
other receivables and trade and other payables, amounts not offset in the balance sheet but which could be offset under centain drcumstances are
also set out To reconcile the amounts shown in the tables below to the Staternent of Financial Position, fterns which are not subject to offsetting
should be induded.

To reconcile the amount shown in the 1ables below 10 the Staterment of Financial Position, items which are not subject to offsetting should be included
Net nancial aseets! '

Gross lnancsl Crross bnancual fhab hitsen) per  Relsted smounts ot
asaty/ {iabationlf  statement of fnancest set off in the Batemont
{habhtios) axsmis ami off position of hnancisl poston HNat
_ im fm im im m
At 31 March 2018
Trade and other receivables N3 29.9} 14 - 14
Derivative financial assets 342 - 342 342 -
Cash and cash equivalents . 453 {44.0) 0.3 - 03
118 se 159 347 13
Trade and other payables (276 4) 299 {244.5) - (246.5)
Derivative financial habihities (104.5) - (104 5) K2 (703}
Bark loans and overdrafts (82.5) 460 (365 - (36.5)
(4463 4) 759 {387.5) 34.2 {353.3)

Mot finsnciul assets/

Groas fancat Gros linancial {nboiltties) et Ralated amaunts not

et/ (habdisesy  statement of fnancsl et off in the statement
(Labil tes) aaats 20l off positon of hnanaal position Net
[{d im im im £m

At 31 March 2019

Trade and other recewvables 249 2.7 32 . 32
Derivative binancial assets &0.1 - 801 {10.1) S0.0
Cash and cash equivalents 38 (34 8} - - -
1198 (56.5) 633 {10.1) 532
Trade and other payables (264.5) 217 2429 - a2
Dervative financial liabilities (10.1) - {10.1} 101 -
Bank loans and overdrafts . (107.1) 348 {72.3) - 723
(381.8) 565 3253 0.1 (315.2

The gross financial assets and labilities set off in the balance sheet primarily relate to cash pooling amangements with banks. Amounts which do not
meet the criteria for offsetting on the balance sheetbut could be settied net in certain cricumstances principatly relate 1o derivative transactions under
ISDA {International Swaps and Derivatives Assaciation) agreements where each party has the option to settle amounts on 2 net basis in the event of
default of the other party

Fair Value Hiararchy
The Group uses the following huerarchy for determining and disdosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuaton technique
Level 1. quated (unadiusted) prices in active markets for identicsl assets and lisbilities

Leve! 2 not traded 11 an active market but the fair values are based on quoted market prices or alternatve prang sources vath reasonable levels
of price trarsparency The Group’s level 2 financial instruments indudes interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives Fawr value is calculated
using discounted cash flaw methodology, future cash flows are estimated based on farward exchange rates and interest 1ates {from observable
market curves) and contract rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of the various counterparties for those with a long matunity

- Level 3 techniques that use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded farr value that are not biased on observable market data
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At the end of the reportmg period, the Group held the following financial instruments at fair vahse.

my 018
Levol 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Totsl Levat 1 Lewal 2 Lews! 3 Total
im im (48 £m m im fm im

Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
- trading derivatives - o7 - 0.7 - 20 - 29
Derwvatives used for hedging - 59.4 - 59.4 - 322 - 22
Short- term investments - ALIE:] - 8 - 137 - 137
Unlisted investments’ - - 2.5 LA - - ?9 9.9
Liabilitiss measured at fair value
Financial habifities at fair value
through profit or loss
- trading derivatives - 0.4 - ©4 - 02 - 0.2)
Derivatives used for hedging - ©.7) - 8.7 - (104 3) - (104 3;

1 Thare were no traraten betwaen the level of the (ns value heessrchy The Group holds §% 9m i uiksted equsty seasmes messuied st bar vk thvough othes comprehensas noome (lat yess £9 9m
rrasured 43 avadable for-ale) fsee note 15} which » & lovel 3 nstrument Tha far value of ths nvestment b determined with reference 10 the ret axset value of the sty m whech the rvestment s held,
which in 1 dermaps the msgonty of &s net saset vakse Bvaugh s thrd party property valustion

The Marks & Spencer UK DB Pension Schemes holds a number of financial instruments which make up the pension asset of £10,224 7m {last year,
£9.989.3m) Lavel 1 and Level 2 financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to £7,008 6m (last year:
£7,152 4m) Addrionally, the scheme assets indude £3,216 1m flast year £2.835 9m) of Level 2 financial assets. See note 10 for information on the
Group's retirement benefits.

The follownng table represents the changes in Level 3 instruments held by the Pension Schemes:

2019 18

£m £m

Opening balance 283469 14449
Farr value floss)/gain recognised in other cormprehensive mcome 1363 749
Additronal investment 2429 1466 9
Closing balance 32161 2.836.9

Fair value of financial instrurments

With the exception of the Group's Medium Term Notes and the Partnership habikty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (note 11), there were
no material differences between the carrying value of non-derivative financial assets and financial habilities and their fair values as at the balance sheet
date

The carrying value of the Group's Medum Term Notes was £14738m (last year £1,6599m), the fair value of this debt was £1,724.0m (kast year
E1,761.00m).

Capital policy

The Group's objectives when managing capital (defined as net debt phus equity) are to safeguard its ability to continue as a gowig cancern in order 1o
provide optimal returms for sharehalders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In doing so the Group's strategy is to maintam a capital structure commensurate with an investment grade credit rating and to retain appropriate
leveis of haquidity headroom to ensure financial stability and flexibility To achieve this strategy, the Group regulardy monitars key credit metics such
asthe gearing ratio, cash flow 1o net debt and fixed charge cover ta maintain this position In addition, the Group ensures a combination of appropriate
committed shart-term liquidity headroom with a diverse and balanced long-term debt maturity profile As at the balance sheet date, the Group's
average debt maturtty profite was five years (last year six years) Durmg the year the Group maintained an investment gracde credit ratng of Baal
{stable) with dMoody's and BBB- {negatve cutlook [revised from stable during the year)} with Standard & Poor's

in order to mainiain or realign the capital structure, the Group may adyust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce delbst
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Property Reslructuning Othier g 2018
m Em im Em fm
At 1 April 2018 23313 284 30.2 1.9 2607
Provided in the year 15 292 36 2143 187.0
Released in the year 22.8) 2.4 (25.5) {50.7 28 8)
Utiksed dunng the year $63.3) B32.3) 1.0 (94.8) {133.0)
Exchange differences 0.1 0y - 04 22
Discount rate unwind 173 - - 173 52
Reclassification from trade and other payables ©.1) (1.1 - 1.2 (1.4}
At 30 March 2019 3458 215 7.3 744 2919
7Ana lysed as.
Current 124.1 9B 8
Non-current 250.1 1931

Property provisions relate to onerous lease contracts and dilapidations primarily arising as a result of the dosure of stores in the UK, as part
of the UK Store Estate strategic programme, together with the centralsation of the London Head Office functions into one buildng These
provisions are expected to be utilised over the period to the end of each specific lease.

Restructuring provisions relate to the esumated costs associated with the International Exit strategy and the strategic programme to transition
to a single tier UK distribution network These provisions are expected 10 be utilised within the next year

Cnher provisions include amounts in respect of potential liabilities for employee-related matters The utiisation durng the year primanly
related 1o the payment of transition amounts in respect of pay and premia. The release during the year relates to the finalisation of charges
for certain employee related matters provided for during the prior year.

_ Please see note 5 for further information on these provisions

22 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax 15 provided under the balance sheet hability method using the tax rate at which the balances are expected to unwind of 19%
and 17% as apphcable fast year- 19% and 17%) for UK diffecences and local tax rates for overseas differences. Details of the changes to the
LK corporation tax rate and the impact on the Group are described innote 7.

The movements in deferred tax assets and habilities {after the offsetting of balances within the same junsdiction as permitted by IAS 12 -
‘Incorme Taxes) duning the year are shown below.

Deferred tax assets/(habilities)
Land and Capital Othar shert
buildirgs alhowences Pension e
lemprorary " encem of temporary temporary Total UK Cvenam
diMerences depreaatio differences diierences detered tax deferrad tan Tatat
fm nfm im Em fm im im
At 2 Apnl 2017 {433 62.2) {169 4} 27 (272 2 94 {281 8)
Credited 1o income stztermnent 80 220 12 13 425 17 447z
Credited/(charged} to equity/other
comprehensive income - - {398) 199 (19.9) 05 119 4)
Other Balance Sheet movement 14 - - - 14 {1.2) 02
At 31 Maich 2018 (339 {30.2) {208 ) 239 {248 2) (8 4} (256.6)
At 1 April 2018 339 202 {206.0) 239 {2482 @4 [256.8)
Credited/{charged) to income statement as 24t (1.6} 0.3 260 53 N3
Creditedf(charged) to equity/other
Emprehensive income - - 144 {11.5) 29 {0.2) 27
At 30 March 2019 130.1) e (195.2) 121 R19.3) 3.3) {222.6)

Other short-term term temporary differences relate mamly (o employee share options and financial instruments

The deferred tax hability on land and buildings temporary differences 1s reduced by the benefit of capital losses with a gross value of £321 7m
{last year: £283.2rm) and a tax vahue of £61 1m {last year: £53.8m}. Due to uncertainty over therr future use, no benefit has been recognised in

respect of trading losses carried forward in overseas jurisdictions with a gross value of £70.5m (last year: F80 1m) and a tax value of £14.5m
{last year £16.9m).

No deferred tax 1s recognmsed in respect of undistributed eamings of overseas subsichiaries and jont ventures with a gross value of £44.5m
{last year: £48. 4m) unless & material liability 15 expected to anse on distribution of these earnings under applicable tax legislation Theve is a
potential tax hability in respect of undistributed earmings of £2 7m (last year: £11.5m) however this has not been recogrused on the basis the
distribwtion can be controlled by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

23 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL
9 2na
Shates fm Shares fm
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
of 25p sach 2.850,039,477 712.5 2850,039.477 7125
24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
A. Capital commitments
19 xe
im Em
Commitments in respect of properties in the course of construction ’ 901 1218
Software capital commitments 5.8 17.2
96.9 139.0

B. Other material contracts

In the event of termination of our trading arrangements with certain warehouse operators, the Group has a number of options and
commitments to purchase some propenrty, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value, which are
currently owned and operated by the warehouse operators on the Group's behatl.

See note 11 for details on the partnership arrangement with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

C. Commitments under operating leases
The Group ieases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have
varying 1erms, escalation dauses and renewal rights.

019 2018
Em Em

Totat future fimmum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Within one year 2961 2885
- Later than one year and not later than live years 1,083.7 1,0261
- Later than five years and not later than ten years 8712 B4 B
- Later than ten years and not later than 15 years A99.5 5038
- Later than 15 years and not later than 20 years 2801 3046
- Later than &0 years and not later than 25 years 124.8 149.4
- Later than 25 years 9645 1,026.8
Total 40099 4,196.0

The tota! future sublease payments to be receved are £214.6m llast year £27 din}

Of the total commitments under oparating leases disclosed above, £308.5m {last year. £172.5m) is already provided for on the balance sheet
as onerous leage provisions with regatds 1o stores identified as part of the UK store estate programme

]
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

25 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS GIVEN IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
2019 Fall
R _ im im
Proft on ordinary activities after taxation 581 738
income tax expense 50.4 388
Frnance costs 114 1138
_Finance income {33.8) {24.1)
Operating profit 186 5 202.3
Decreasef{increase) in inventories 738 38.2)
(increasel/decrease in recevables . (1.0} 288
Decrease in payables {13.7 (87.4)
Adjusting items net cash cutflows (124.4) {153 1}
Mon-cash share-based payment charges 92 189
Depreciation, amortisation and write-offs 544.9 580.6
Defined benefnt pension funding 37.9 (at.4)
Adjusting iterns M&S Bank 0.9} (34.7)
Adjusting operating profit items 4145 468.3
Cash generated from operations 1,010 Q441

Adjusting items net cash outows relate 1o the utilisation of the prowisions for international store closures and impairments, strategic
programme costs associated with both the UK store estate, organisation, operational transformation, UK logistics, IT restructure, changes to
pay and pensions, UK store impairments and property charges; GMP and other pension equahisation and establishing the Ocado joint
venture Adjusting items M&S Bank relates to M&S Bank income recognised in operating proftt offset by charges incurred in relation to the
insyrance mis-selling provision, which is a non-cash item.

26 AMNALYSIS OF NET DEBT
A Recondliation of maovement in net detst.
Exchangs
and other
noncash AL 31 March
AL 2 Apel Cash Ao movements 28
2017 tm £m tm fm
Net cash
Bark ioans, overdrafts and syndicated bank lacilty (see note 29) 703 ngn - (88.4)
Less amounts treated as financing {see beiow) 79 438 - 51.7
{62 4) 257 - 36.7)
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 17) 448.5 {257 .4} {3.5} 2077
Met cash per statement of cash Rows 406 2 {231.7) {3.5} 1710
Current financial assets (see note 15) 2,564.7 (2.4) - 2,564.3
Debt financing
Bank loans, and overdrafts weated as financing (see above) 7.9 (43.8) - BG1.n
Medium-term notes {see note 19} {1,911 4) 3282 (1.5 (1.584.7)
Finance lease liabulities {see note 19) 48 7) 28 19 a0
Partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scherme {see note 11) {387 4) 59.6 - {327 8)
Debt financing (2,355 4) M6 [34) 20122
Net debt 6175 1125 69 7231

9




Marks and Spances plc

NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Exchange
and other
nan-cash At 30 March
At April Cash flow movemeants 0
2018 £m fen 4] fm
Net cash
Bank loans, overdrafts and syndicated bank facility (see note 29) (88.4) 111 5.0 72.3)
Less; amounts treated as financing (see below) 51.7 (46.7) {5.0} ~-
(36.7} {35.6) - (72.3)
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 17} 207.7 77.9 (0.2} 285.4
Net cash per staternent of cash flows 1710 423 (0.2} 2131
Current financial assets (see note 15) 25643 1260 - 246903
Debt financing
Bank loans, and overdrafts treated as financing (see above) (51.7) 46.7 50 -
Medium-term notes (see note 19) (1,584.7) (.4} (1.2) (1,587.3)
Finance lease liabilities (see note 19) (48.0} 33 {1.8) {44.5)
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scherme (see note 11) {327.8} 61.6 - {266.2)
Debt financing {2,012.2) 110.2 20 {1,900.0}
Net debt 7231 278.5 18 1,003.4
B. Reconciliation of net debt to statement of financial position
019 2018
im fm
Statement of financial position and related notes
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 17} 285.4 207.7
Current financial assets (see note 15} 2,690.3 2.564.3
Bank loans and overdrafts {see note 19) 72.3) (88.4)
Medium-term notes — net of hedging derivatives {1,624.3) {1.621.7)
Finance lease liabilities (see note 19} (48.5) (48.0)
Partnership liability to the Mark}. & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 11 and 20) 272.4) {335.5)
960.2 6784
Interest payable included within related borrowing and the partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK
Pension Scheme 432 44.7
Total net debt 1,003.4 7231

27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A. Subsidiaries
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company's separate financial statements.

8. Hedge End joint venture

A loan of £50m was received from the joint venture on 9 October 2002. tt was repayable on five business days notice and was renewed on
31 December 2017. Interest was charged on the loan at 2.0% until 31 December 2009 and 0.5% thereafter. The loan was extinguished on B
March 2019 through a capital reduction of the investment in the joint venture by £5.0m.

C. Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set out in notes 10and 11.

D. Key management compensation

The Group has determined that the key management personnel constitute the Board and the members of the Operating Committee. For
the prior year, the members of the Board were considered to be key management personnel for the whole year, and members of the
Operating Committee with effect from November 2016 when the terms of reference of the Operating Committee were ratified.

20019 2018

im £m

Salaries and short-term benefits ] 70 69
Share-based payments 1.1 04
Total 8.1 7.3

E. Other related party transactions

There were no related party transactions during the year to 30 March 2019 {last year: nil).

F. Transactions with parent company -

During the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group plc of £305.0m {last year: £305.0m) and has

decreased its loan to its parent company by £2.1m (last year: decrease of £1.6m). The outstanding balance was £2,548.5m {last year:
£2 550.6m} and was non-interest bearing There were no other related party transactions.

80



Marks and Spencer plc

NOTES TO THE AINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

28 IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTED IN THE YEAR

IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 were new accounting standards adopted in the year and effective for the Group from 1 April 2018. IFRS 15 has not had a
matertal impact on the financial statements of the Group and the impact of adopticn is disclosed within note 1. As IFRS 9 has a more extensive
impact on the opening balances of the financial statements of the Group on adoption the impact has been disclosed in detail below.

IFRS ¢

IFRS 9 was adopted using the modjfied transition approach without restating comparative information. The reclassification and adjustments
in relation to the new impairment rules are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 April 2018 and not reflected in the comparative
balance sheet.

The table below shows the amount of adjustment for each financial statement line impacted by the adoption of IFRS 9.

As at 31 March 1 April 2018
2018 IFRS 9 Adjustment restated

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position £m im Em
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 16.0 - 16.0
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 3084 0.5) 307.8
Current liabilities
Provisions 98.8 0. 98.7
Equity
Retained earnings 4,471.2 [0.5) 4,470.7
Hedging reserve - {65.3) 0.9 76.0)

Cost of hedging reserve - 10.7 10.7

B8
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

28 IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTED iN THE YEAR CONTINUED

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. The total impact on the Group's retained earnings is as follows:

fm
Closing retained earnings as at 31 March 2018 44712
Increase in provision for trade receivables 0.4
Decrease in provision for other receivables o
Adjustment to retained earnings from adoption of IFRS 9 an 1 April 2018 0.5
Cpening retained earnings on 1 April 2018 4,470.7

Classification and measurement

On 1 April 2019, the Group's management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets held by the Group and has
classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories being fair value through profit and loss {FVPL), fair value through
other comprehensive income {FYOC1) and amortised cost. Available for sale {AFS) category allowable under IAS 39 is not an allowable IFRS
9 categorisation. The main effects resutting from this classification are as follows:

FYPL VO Avanlable lor saie Amoetised cost
fm fm fm fm
Financial assets at 31 March 2018 479 - 16.0 1765
Reclassify available for sale financial assets to FVOCI - 160 {16.0) -
Opening balance at 1 April 218 479 1460 - 1765
The impact of the changes on the Group's equity is as follows:
AFS reserve FVOC) reserve
£m £m
Cpening balance at 31 March 2018 under 1AS 39 6.9 -
Reclassify available for sale financial assets to FVQOCI 6.9 69
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 under IFRS 9 - 69

On the date of initial application, 1 April 2018, the Group's financial instruments were as foflows with any reclassifications noted:

Original classification

New classification

Original careying

Diflerance in carrying

A5 39) HFRS 9 amount  New currying asmount amount
fm frm fm
Non-current financial assets
Trade and other receivables Amortised cost  Amortised cost 23 2.3 -
Available for -
Other financial assets sale FVOC 160 16.0
Derivative financial instruments FVPL FVPL 271 271 -
Current financial assets
Other financial assets FVPL FVPL 137 a37 -
Trade and other receivables Amortised cost  Amontised cost 174.2 1734 ©.6)
Derivative financial instrurments FVPL FVPL 741 71 -
Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables Amortised cost  Amortised cost 1,355.9 1,355.9 -
Borrowings and other financial liabilities Amortised cost  Amortised cost 125.6 125.6 -
Derivative financial instruments FVPL FVPL 738 738 -
Non-current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables Amortised cost  Amortised cost 852.7 52.7 -
Borrowings and other financial liabilities Amortised cost  Amortised cost 1,670.6 1,670.6 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

28 IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTED IN THE YEAR CONTINUED

Derivatives and hedging activities

IFRS ¢ more closely aligns the hedge accounting with financial risk management methodology. All hedge relationships were regarded as
continuing hedge relationships, as all which were designated hedges under 1AS 39 as at 31 March 2018 met the criteria for hedge accounting
under IFRS 9 as the Group's risk management strategies and hedge documentation were aligned to the new standard.

Under IAS 39 the Group included the cost of hedging within the hedge relationship. On transition, IFRS 9 allows the choice to separate
aspects of the costs of hedging from the designation within 2 hedge relationship as part of the hedging instrument. Similarly under IFRS 9 in
relation to cross-currency interest rate swaps, the currency basis is separated into the cost of hedging reserve and separated from the hedge
refationship.

On transition to IFRS 9, a classification change between the hedging reserve and cost of hedging reserve within equity of £10.7m debit to
hedging reserve and credit to cost of hedging reserve was recognised.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group holds the following types of financial assets subject to IFRS 9's new expected credit loss model:

- Trade receivables

- Other receivables.

The Group was required to revise its impairment methodology under IFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets. The impact of the change in
impairment methadolagy on the Group's retained earnings and equity is Hlustrated above, while a detailed description of the methodclogy
is included with the credit risk disclosures in note 20.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss allowance

for all trade receivables. This resulted in an increase in the loss allowance on 1 April 2018 by £0.6m for trade receivables and a decrease of
£0.1m for other receivables.

29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year end, the UK Defined Benefit pension scheme purchased additional pensioner buy-in policies with two insurers for
approximately £1.4bn. Together with the two policies purchased in March 2018, the Defined Benefit pension scheme has now, in total,
hedged its longevity exposure for approximately two thirds of the pensioner cash flow liabilities for pensions in payment. The buy-in policies
cover specific pensioner liabilities and pass all risks to an insurer in exchange for a fixed premium payment, thus reducing the Group's
exposure to changes in longevity, interest rates, inflation and other factors.

In July 2019 Marks and Spencer pk issued £250,000,000 Notes due 10 July 2027 under the £3,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note
Programme.
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Company statement of comprehensive income

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
W March 2019 31 March 2018
{Restated")
fm Em
(Loss)profit for the year S {19.3) 3924
Other comprehensive {expense)/income:
lterns that will not be dassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes (150.8) 220.3
Tax credit/{charge} on retirement benefit schemes 26.0 37.7)
(124.8) 182.6

iterns that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fair value movement on available-for-sale assets - 2.5
Cash flow hedges
- fair value movements in other comprehensive income 129.6 (197.9)
— reclassified and reported in net profit {16.0) 54.0
— amount recognised in inventories - 59.5
Tax {charge)/credit on cash flow hedges (18.4) 20.2

95.2 61.7}
Other comprehensive {expense)/income for the year, net of tax {29.6) 120.9
Total comprehensive {expense)/income for the year {48.9} 5133

'Refer to note C22 for more details on restatements.

The loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year is £19.3m (last year profit of £392.4m).
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Company statement of financial position

As at
Asat 3 Mach 2018
30 March 2009 Restated!)
Notes fm £m
Assets

Non-current assets
Intangible assets c7 4129 516.9
Property, plant and equipment ca 2,519.0 2,713.6
Investments in group undertakings o 923.7 923.7
Investment in joint ventures 34 59
Other financial assets cio 147 15.9
Retirement benefit asset c4 1,402.2 1,517.7
Trade and other receivables cn 96.2 1.2
Derivative financial instruments ci15 19.8 271

5.391.9 5,812.0

Current assets

inventories 647 .2 7420
Other financial assets cio 135.6 58
Trade and other receivables i 3,1405 6,360.1
Derivative financial instruments 15 40.7 7.2
Cash and cash equivalents C12 217.0 130.4
4,181.0 7.,245.5
Total assets 9,572.9 13,057.5
Liabilities ’
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables c13,¢22 27715 57828
Borrowings and other financial liabilities c1a 512.9 123.6
Derivative financial instruments C15 14.4 770
Provisions Ccié 104.9 92.4
Current 1ax labilities 4.6 27.2

et e 3,408.3 61030
Non-current liabilities

Retirement benefit deficit ca 8.1 104
Trade and other payables c13 526.9 548.3
Borrowings and other financial liabilities c14 1,273.4 1,664.2
Derivative financial instruments c15 2.8 308
Provisions Ci6 2401 187.3
Deferred tax liabilities o S ci7 2556 2861
2,306.9 2,727.1
Total liabilities 5,715.2 8,830.1
Net assets 3,857.7 4,227 .4
Equity
Issued share capital 18 nas 7125
Shareg premium account 386.1 386.1
Capital redemption reserve 8.0 8.0
Hedging reserve {6.2) {67.3)
Retained garnings c22 2,757.2 3.188.1
Total equity 3,857.7 4,227 4

1Refer to note C22 for mare details on restatements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on ? September 2019, The financial statements also
comprise the notes on pages 105 to 143,

Humphrey Singer Chef Finance Officer
Registered number:
00214436
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Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Cost of Retained
Ordwry pversnh:r: redaﬂcap‘::': Hedging P:ig'mng earnings
share capital account reseive reserve im (Restated") Todal
fm £m fm fm fm £m
Al 2 April 2017 {Restated") 712.5 386.1 8.0 18.4 - 28757 4,000.7
Profit for the year - - - - - 3924 3924
Other camprehensive income: ) - ‘_ .. o
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes
{As previously stated") enett sc 1839 1839
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes 364 36.4
{Restatement") - i
&gzigr’?ments of retirement benefit schemes - - - - - 2203 2203
Tax charge on retirernent benefit schemes - - - - - (37.7} {37.7)
Fair value movement in equity on available-for-sale - - - - - 2.5 25
Cash flow hedges - _
if:::fo::‘iue movements in other comprehensive 219.4) 215 1979,
—  reclassified and reported in profit or loss - - - 54.0 - - 54.0
—  amount recognised in inventories - - - 59.5 - - 59.5
Tax on cash flow hedges - - = 20.2 - - 20.2
Other comprehensive income (Restated") - - = (85.7) - 206.6 120.9
Total comprehensive income (Restated") - - - {85.7) - 599.0 5133
Transactions with owners: ) ‘
Dividends - - - - - {305.0) (305.0)
Credit for share-based payments - - - - - 18.1 18.1
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 0.3 0.3
At 31 March 2018 (Restated"} 712.5 386.1 8.0 {67.3) - 31881 4,227 .4
At 1 April 2018 (Restated") 712.5 386.1 8.0 (67.3) - 3,188.1 4,227.4
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 - - - (10.%} 10.7 (0.5) 0.5
Adjusted opening shareholders equity 7125 386.1 B.0 (78.0) 10.7 31876 42269
Loss for the year - - - - - (19.3) (19.3)
Other comprehensive {expense)/income: R
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes - - - - - (150.8) (150.8)
Tax credit on retirement benefit schemes - - - - - 260 260
Cashflow hedges
—  fair value movements in other comprehensive _ _ _ 128.1 15 B 129.6
income _
- reclassified and reported in profit or loss - - - (16.0) - - (16.0)
Tax on cash flow hedges ' - - - {17.9) {0.5) - {18.4)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income - - - 942 - 10  (124.8) (29.6)
Jotal comprehensive (expense)/income - - - 94.2 1.0 nad) {48.9)
Cash flow hedges recognised in inventories - - - (42.2) - - (42.2)
Tax on cash flow hedges recogniééd in inventories - - - 81 - - 81
Transactions with owners:
Dividends ' - - - - - (305.0) (305.0)
Credit for share-based payments - - - - - 194 19.4
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - {0.6) {0.6)
At 30 March 2019 712.5 386.1 8.0 {17.9) 1.7 27573 3,857.7

'Refer to note C22 for more details on restatements.
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Company statement of cash flows

52 weeks anded

52 waeks ended

0 March 2018 31 March 2018
Notes fm Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations C20 894.3 1,017.3
Income tax paid . (97.3) (86.5)
Net cash inflow from operating activities T 7910  930.8
Cash flows from investing activities ’
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {211.4) (236.2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 431 32
Purchase of intangible assets {95.0) {85.4)
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets - -
Sale of non-current financial assets 25 -
Sale/{purchase) of current financial assets 17.0 {0.5)
Interest received 15 84
Net cash used in investing activities (237.3) {310.5)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {89.6) (104.6)
Cash (outflow)/inflow from borrowings {50.0) 450
Issuance/(redemption) of Medium Term Notes 1.4 {328.2)
Movement in intercompany loans treated as financing (57.5) (400.2)
Decrease in cbligations under finance leases {2.5) (2.3)
Equity dividends paid (305.0) {305.0)
Purchase of shares in ultimate parent company held in employee trust "{5.5) (3.1}
Net cash used in financing activities (5087)  (1.098.4)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from activities 51.0 (478.1)
Opening net cash 938 571.9
Closing net cash Cc12 144.8 93.8
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General information

Marks and Spencer plc (the Company) is a public company limited by shares incarporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act
and is registered in England and Wales. The address of the Company's registered office is Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London
W2 INW. .

The principal activities of the Company and the nature of the Company’s operations is as a Clothing and Home and Food retailer.

These financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates and are rounded to the nearest million.

The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out in note 1 of the Group financial statements, except as noted below.
Investrments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

Loans from other Group undertakings and all other payables are initially recorded at fair value, which is generally the proceeds received.
They are then subsequently carried at amontised cost. The loans are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The Company's financial risk is managed as part of the Group's strategy and policies as discussed in note 20 of the Group financial
statements.

In accordance with the exemption allowed by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own income
statement The loss for the year was £19.3m (last year profit of £392.4m).

The prior year balance sheet has been restated for a capital withdrawal not previously accounted for and recognition of the second
partnership interest. Refer to note C22 for further details.

New accounting standards adopted by the Company
Impact of application of IFRS 16 Leases

There will be a significant impact on the Company balance sheet as at 31 March 201%. It is expected on a pre-tax basis that a right of use
asset of approximately £2.3bn and lease liability of approximately £3.6bn will be recognised, along with the derecognition of onerous lease
provisions of approximately £0.2bn and other working capital balances (including lease incentives) of approximately £0.6bn, which results in
an overall adjustment to retained earnings of approximately £0.4bn.

Operating profit and EBIT before adjusting items increase due to the depreciation expense being lower than the lease expense it replaces.
The overall impact on profit before tax and adjusting items depends on the relative maturity of the lease portfolio. Rounded to the nearest
£10m, it is estimated that for the 52 weeks ended 30 March 2019 profit before tax when applying IFRS 16 is c£80m lower than that reported
in these financial statements under current accounting standards, including IAS 17 Leases.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgements that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts.

Critical judgements represent key decisions made by management in the application of the Company accounting policies. Where a
significant risk of materially different outcomes exists due to management assumptions or sources of estimation uncertainty, this wil
represent a key source of estimation uncertainty. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based an historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Impairment of investments in subsidiary undertakings Investments in subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When a review for impairment is conducted, the recoverable
amount is determined based on the fair value prepared on the basis of management’s assurmptions and estimates.

in addition, the estimates which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within
the next 12 months are discussed in note 1 of the Group financial statements.

C2 DMIDENDS

2019 2018 2019 2018
per share per share £m £m

Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dividend 4.8p &.8p 193.8 193.8
Paid special dividend - - - -
Paid interim dividend 3% 3.9 111.2 111.2
10.7p 10.7p 305.0 305.0

In addition, the directors have proposed and paid a final dividend of 4.1p per share {last year 68p per share) amounting to a dividend of
£1169m in respect of the year ended 30 March 2019. In line with the requirement of 145 10 ‘Events after the reporting period,” this dividend
has not been recognised within these results.
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C3 EMPLOYEES
A. AGGREGATE REMUNERATION

The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Marks and Spencer plc employees were:

2019 2018
Total Total
£m fm
Wages and salaries 1,133.0 1,17715
Social security costs 7.6 746
Other pension costs £9.9 68.5
Share based payments 19.1 187
Employee welfare and other personnel costs 48.6 514
Capitalised staffing costs {17.4) {(24.7)
Total aggregate renumeration 1,324.6 1,366.0
B. AVERAGE MONTHLY NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2019 2018
Stores
- management and supervisory categories 5,480 6,004
- othet 63,957 66,540
Head office
- management and supervisory categories 2,968 3,088
- other 832 856
Operations
- management and supervisory categories 81 89
_-other e e 1066 1153
Total average number of employees 74,384 77,730

If the number of hours worked was corwerted on the basis of a normal working week, the equivalent average number of full-time employees
would have been 50,578 {last year 53,273).

CA4 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
{a defined benefit {DB) arrangement) and Your M&S Pension Saving Plan (a defined contribution {DC) arrangement).

The UK DB pension scheme operated on a final pensionable satary basis and is governed by a Trustee board which is independent of the
Company. The UK DB scheme closed to future accrual on 1 April 2017. On closure of the UK DB scheme, all remaining active members
moved to deferred status which resulted in a curtailment charge of £127.0m in 2016/17. There will be no further service charges relating to
the scherme and no future monthly employer contributions for current service. At year end the UK DB pension scheme had no active members
(last year nil}, 58,079 deferred members (last year 60,402) and 52,217 pensioners (last year 51,802).

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2018 and showed a funding
surplus of £652m. This is an improvement on the previous position at 31 March 2015 (statutory surplus of £204m), primarily due to fower
assumed iife expectancy. The Company and Trustee have confirmed, in line with the current funding arrangement, that no further
contributions will be required to fund past service as a resuit of this valuation {other than those already contractually committed under the
existing Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership amangements — see note C5).

The DC plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays contributions te an ndependently administered fund. Such contributions are
based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions to the
fund once the contributions have been paid. Members’ benefits are determined by the amount of contributions paid by the Company and
the member, together with the investment returns earned on the contributions arising from the performance of each individual’s investments
and how each member cheoses to receive their retirement benefits. As a result, actuarial risk (that benefits will be lower than expected) and
investment risk (that assets invested in will not perform in line with expectations) fall on the employee. At the year end, the defined
contribution arrangement had some 53,536 active members {last year 54,001) and some 26,709 deferred members {last year 19,984).

The total Company retirement benefit cost was £33.4m [last year £54.3m). Of this, income of £32.7m {last year £14.7m} relates to the DB
pension scheme, £64 9m (last year £68.8m) to the DC plan and £1.2m {last year £0.2m) relates to other retirement benefit schemes.

In March 2018, the UK DB pension scheme purchased pensioner buy-in policies with two insurers covering £1.4bn of UK pensioners’ liabilities
which is approximately one-third of the pensioner portfolic. A further buy-in took place subsequent to year end for an additicnal £1.4bn
{note 29). Together with the two policies purchased in March 2018, the DB pension scheme has now, in total, hedged its longevity exposure
for approximately two thirds of the pensioner cash flow liabilities for pensions in payment. The buy-ins transfer longevity risk to the insurers
and reduce the pension risks being underwritten by the Group.

On 26 October 2018, the High Court issued a judgement in a claim involving Lioyds Banking Group's DB pension schemes. This judgement
conchsded the schemes should be amended in order to equalise pension benefits for men and women in relation to guasranteed minimum
pension benefits. The issues determined by the judgement have resulted in an increase in the liabilities of the Marks & Spencer UK DB
Pension Scheme of £18.0m. This increase has been reflected in the results as a past service cost.
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
A. PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT LIABILITIES

2019 2018
fm £m
Total market value of assets 10,577.0 10,4250
Present value of scheme liabilities {9,174.8) (8,207 .3}
Net funded pension plan asset 1,402.2 1,517.7
Unfunded retirement benefit (2.5) 2.5
Post-retirement healthcare {5.6) {7.9)
Net retirement benefit asset 1,394.1 1.507.3
2019 2018
£m fm
Analysed in the statement of financial position as:
Retirement benefit asset 1,402.2 1.517.7
Retirement benefit deficiy 8.1 (10.4)
B 1,394.1 1,507.3

In the event of a plan wind.up, the pension scheme rules provide Marks and Spencer plc with an unconditional right to a refund of surplus
assets assuming the full settlement of plan liabilities. In the ordinary course of business, the Trustees have no rights to wind up or change the
benefits due to the members of the scheme. As a result, any net surplus in the DB pension scheme is recognised in full.

B. FINANCIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The financial assumptions for the DB scheme and the most recent actuarial valuations of the other post-retirement schemes have been
updated by independent qualified actuaries to take account of the requirements of 1AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ in order lo assess the

liabilities of the schemes and are as follows:

2019 2018

% %

Rate of increase in pensions in payment for service 2.1-33 20-3.2
Discount rate 245 245
Inflation rate 325 315
Long-term healthcare cost increases 7.25 7.15

C. DEMOGRAPHIC ASSUMPTIONS

The UK demnographic assumptions are in tine with those adopted for the last formal actuarial valuation of the scheme performed as at 31
March 2018. The UK post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the pensioner montality trends under the scheme for
the pericd to March 2018, The specific mortality rates used are based on the VITA lite tables. The life expectancies underlying the valuation

are as follows:

2019 2018
Current pensioners {at age 65) - males 220 22.3
) - females 249 25.2
Deferred pensioners (at age 45) - males 238 24.1
-- females 26.7 27.0
D SENSITIVITY ANALYSHS
The table below summarises the estimated impact of changes in the principal actuarial assumptions on the UK DB pension scheme surplus:
2019 2018
fm fm
Decrease in scheme surplus caused by a decrease in the discount rate of 0.25% 0.0 {70.0)
Decrease in scheme surplus caused by a decrease in the inflation rate of 0.25% (25.0} {25.0)
Increase in scheme surplus caused by a decrease in the average life expectancy of one year 3150 305.0

The sensitivity analysis above is based on a change in one assumption while holding all others constant. Therefore interdependencies

between the assumptions have not been taken into account within the analysis.
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
E. ANALYSIS OF ASSETS
The investment strategy of the DB pension scheme is driven by its liability profile, in particular its inflation-linked pension benefits.

In addition tc its interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership {refer to note C5), the scheme invests in different types of bonds (induding
corporate bonds and gilts) and derivative instruments (including inflation, interest rate, cross-currency and total return swaps) in order to align
movements in the value of its assets with movements in its liabilities arising from changes in market conditions. Broadly the scheme has
hedging that covers 96% of interest rate movements and 94% of inflation movements, as measured on the Trustee's funding assumptions
which use a discount rate derived from gilt yields

By funding its DB pension schemes, the Company is exposed to the risk that the cost of meeting its obligations is higher than anticipated.
This could oceur for several reasons, for example:

—  lnvestment returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially i falls in asset values are not matched by similar
falls in the value of the schemes’ liabilities.

—  The level of price inflation may be higher than that assumed, resulting in higher payments from the schemes.

—  Scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to advances in healthcare. Members may also exercise (or not
exercise) options in a way that lead to increases in the schemes’ liabilities, for example through early retirement or commutation of
pension for cash.

- Legislative changes could alsc lead to an increase in the schemes’ liabilities.

In addition, the Company is exposed to additional risks through its obligation to the DB pension scheme via its interest in the Scottish
Limited Partnership (see note C5). In particular, under the legal terms of the Partnership, a default by the Company on the rental
payments to the Partnership or a future change in legislation could trigger earlier or higher payments to the pension scheme, or an
increase in the collateral to be provided by the Company.

The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting pericd for each category, are as follows:

2019 208
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Ungquoted Total
£m fm £m 1) fm fm

Debt investments
- Government Bonds net of repurchase agreements’ 4,366.7 367.2 4,7339 4,460.8 369.3 4,630.1
- Corporate Bonds - 73138 731.8 - 485.4 4854
- Asset backed securities and structured debt - 266 29646 - 339.2 3392
Scottish Limited Partnership iInterest {see note C5) - 749.4 749.4 - 8%2.1 892.1
Equity investments :
- Developed markets 351.0 57.9 408.9 412.3 1028 515.1
- Emerging markets 1013 - 1013 1447 - 1447
Growth Asset Funds
— Global Property - 3284 3284 - 2740 2740
- Hedge and Reinsurance - 4124 4124 - 406.3 406.3
- Private Equity and Infrastructure - 2233 223.3 - 2225 2225
Derivatives
- Interest and inflation rate swaps - 1484 148.4 04 64 68
- Foreign exchange contracts and other derivatives 0.1 1275 127.6 01 154.8 1549
Cash and Cash equivalents 364 1222 158.6 298 925 122.3
Other
~ Buy In Insurance - 1,273.7 1,273.7 - 1,2779 1,277.9
~ Secure Income Asset Funds - 842.2 842.2 - 455.7 466.7
— Other 40.5 - 405 87.0 - 87.0

4,896.0 5681.0 105770 5,135.1 5,289.9 10,425.0

+ Repurchase agreements were £1,025.1m [Isst year L920.2m).

The fair values of the above equity and debt investments are based on publicly available market prices wherever available. Unquoted
investments, hedge funds and reinsurance funds are stated at fair value estimates provided by the manager of the investment or fund.
Property includes both quoted and unquoted investments. The fair value of the Scottish Limited Partnership interest is based on the
expected cash flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads. It is the policy of the scheme to hedge a proportion of interest rate
and inflation risk. The scheme reduces its foreign currency exposure using forward foreign exchange contracts.

At year end, the DB pension scheme indirectly held 41,841 {last year 41,046) ordinary shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc through
its investment in UK Equity Index Funds.

L2l
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
F. ANALYSIS OF AMOUNT CHARGED AGAINST PROFITS

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of defined benefit plans are as follows:

2019 2018
{Restated")
£m fm
Current service cost - -
Administration costs 37 33
Past service costs (18.0) -
Net interest income (54.3) {(50.6}
Total {68.6) (47.3)
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit surplus:
Actual return on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest income (209.2} 76.8
Actuarial gain - experience 191 272
Actuarial loss - demographic assumptions (90.2) (85.1}
Actuarial gainflioss) — financial assumptions 431.1 {239.2}
Components of defined benefit gain recognised in other comprehensive income 150.8 220.3)
Refer to note C22 for more details on restatements.
G. SCHEME ASSETS
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows:
2018
01% {Restated")
fm fm
Fair value of scheme assets at start of year 10,425.0 10,56%.6
interest income based on discount rate 285.6 2838
Actual return on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest income 209.2 {76.8)
Employer contributions 5.0 39
Benefits paid {344.1) (352.2)
Administration costs (3.7) (3.3)
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 10,577.0 10,425.0
Refer to note C22 for more details on restatements.
H. PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT LIABILITIES
Changes in the present value of retirement benefit obligations are as follows:
2019 208
£fm fm
Present value of obligation at start of year 8,917.7 ?9,332.7
Current service cost -
Past service cost 18.0 -
Interest cost 2313 233.2
Benefits paid (344.1) (352.2)
Acquisition of Canadian pension liability - 11
Actuarial loss - experience 19.1 272
Actuarial gain ~ demographic assumptions {90.2) {85.1)
Actuarial loss/{gain} - financial assumptions 4311 (239.2)
Present value of obligation at end of year 92,1829 8.N27
Analysed as:
Present value of pension scheme liabilities 92,1748 8,907.3
Unfunded pension plans 25 25
Postretirement healthcare o 5.6 7.9
Present value of o(,h;a_t.}'m at end of year 91829 8,917.7

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 30 March 2019 is 19 years (last year 19 years).
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C5 MARKS & SPENCER UK PENSION SCHEME INTEREST IN THE SCOTTISH UMITED PARTNERSHIP

The Company is a general partner and the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme is a limited partner of the Marks and Spencer Scottish
Limited Partnership (the Partnership). Under the partnership agreement, the limited partners have no involvernent in the management of the
business and shall not take any part in the control of the partnership. The general partner is responsible for the management and contro! of
the partnership and as such, the Partnership is consolidated into the results of the Group.

The Partnership holds £3.4bn {last year £1.5bn) of properties which have been leased back to Marks and Spencer plc at market rates. The
Company retains control over these properties, including the flexibility to substitute alternative properties into the Partnership. The first
limited partnership interest (held by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme), entitles the Pension Scheme to receive an annual
distribution of £71.9m until 2022 from the Partnership. The second partnership interest {also held by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension
Scheme), entitles the Pension Scheme to receive a further £36.4m annually from 2017 until 2031. All profits generated by the Partnership in
excess of these amounts are distributable to Marks and Spencer plc.

The partnership liability in relation to the first interest of £2724m (last year £335.5m} is valued at the net present value of the future expected
distributions from the Partnership. During the year to 30 March 2019 an interest charge of £8.8m (last year £10.9m} was recognised in the
income statement representing the unwind of the discount included in this abligation.

The first limited partnership interest of the Pension Scheme is included within the DB Pension Scheme assets, valued at £278.5m {last year
£345.4m). tt is also included as a liability on the Company’s statement of financial position as it is a transferable financial instrument. The
second partnership interest included within the DB Pension Scheme assets, valued at £470.9m {last year £547.1m} is not a transferable financial
instrumnent and therefore is not included as a plan asset in accordance with LAS 19 on consolidation, though is included on the Company's
Statement of Financial Position. Similarly, the asscciated liability is not inchuded on consotidation, rather the annual distribution is recognised
as a contribution to the scheme each year.

Cé6 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Disclosures for the Company are not provided here as the impact on the income statement, and the assets and liabilities of the Company
are not materially dissimilar to that of note 12 in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

C7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software
Computer under
software development Toual
fm Em £m
At 1 April 2007
Cost or valuation 1,312.6 708 1.3834
Accumulated amortisation (759.1) (6.4} (765.5)
Net book value 553.5 64.4 617.9
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book value 5635 64 4 417.9
Additions - 741 74.1
Transfers 100.5 (89.2) 1.3
Disposals - - -
Asset write-offs and impairments (3.8} (1.6) (5.4)
Amortisation charge (181.0) - (181.0)
Closing net book value 469.2 47.7 516.9
At 31 March 2018
Cost or valuation 1,315.5 55.9 137114
Accumulated amortisation . (B483) (8.2) (854.5)
Net book value 4469.2 47.7 5169
Year ended 30 March 2019
Opening net book value 469.2 47.7 5169
Additions 10.2 848 95.0
Transfers 65.3 (70.5) 5.2)
Disposals - - -
Asset write-offs and impairments {5.9) (8.4) {14.3)
Armortisation charge {179.5) - {179.5)
Closing net book value 35%.3 53.6 4129
At 30 March 2019
Cost or valuation 1,308.7 618 1,370.5
Accurmulated armortisation 949.4) 8.2) (957.6)
Net book value 359.3 53.6 4129
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fiatures, Assets in the
Land and fthings and course ol
buildings equipment conatructan Total
frn £m fm fm

A1 April 2017
Cost 1,088.0 7.,0835 80.2 8,251.7
Accumulated depreciation and write-offs (194.8) (5,040.5) (1.3) (5,236.6)
Net book value 893.2 20430 789 3,015.1
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book value 893.2 2,0430 78.9 3,015
Additions - 507 196.5 247.2
Transfers 75 174.2 193.0) (11.3)
Disposals {2.1) (5.3} - (7.4)
Asset impairments (58.2) (79.6) - {(137.8)
Asset write-offs {5.7) (11.2) (3.0) {19.9)
Depreciation charge (10.5) (361.8) - {372.3)
Closing net book value 824.2 1,8100 79.4 2,713.6
At 31 March 2018
Cost : 1,054.7 6,388.0 837 7.526.4
Accumulated depreciation and write-offs (230.5) {4,578.0} 4.3) {4,812.8)
Net book value 824.2 1,8100 79.4 2,713.6
Year ended 30 March 2019
Opening net book value 824.2 1,810.0 794 27136
Additions 36.2 27.2 165.5 228.9
Transfers B.é 1405 {143.9) 5.2
Disposals (26.3) (0.5} - (26.8)
Asset impairments ‘ (10.5) (25.4) - (35.9)
Asset write-offs (29.2) (13.0) - (42.2)
Depreciation charge (107.7) (216.1) - {323.8)
Closing net book value 695.3 1,722.7 1010 2,519.0
At 30 March 2019
Cost 1,043.0 5,096.7 105.3 6,245.0
Accumulated depreciation and write-offs (347.7) (3.374.0) (4.3) (3.726.0)
Net book value 5553 17227 1010 2,519.0

The net book value above includes land and buildings of £27 7m {last year £34.1m) and equipment of £nil {last year £nil) where the Company
is a lessee under a finance lease,

Additions to property, plant and equipment during the year amounting to £nil (last year £nil} were financed by new finance leases.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

For impairment testing purposes, the Group has determired that each store is a separate CGU, with the exception of outlet stores, which
are considered together as one CGU. Shop Your Way (SYW) sales are included in the cash flows of the relevant CGU.

Each CGU is tested for impaiment at the balance sheet date if any indicators of impairment have been identified. Stores identified within
the Group's UK store estate programme are automatically tested for impairment (see note 3).

The value in use of each CGU is calculated based on the Group's latest budget and forecast cash flows, covering a three-year period, which
have regard to historical performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group’s views on the future achievable growth
and the impact of committed initiatives. The cash flows include ongoing capital expenditure required to maintain the store network, but
exclude any growth capital initiatives not committed. Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapolated using a long-term growth
rate based on management future expectations, with reference to forecast GDP growth. These growth rates do not exceed the long-term
growth rate for the Group's retail businesses in the relevant territory. If the CGU relates to a store which the Group has identified as part of
the UK store estate programme, the value in use calculated has been modified by estimation of the future cash flows up to the point where
it is estimated that trade will cease and then estimation of the timing and amount of costs associated with closure detailed fully in note 3.

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations are the growth rates of sales and gross profit margins, changes in the operating cost
base, long-term growth rates and the risk-adiusted pre-tax discount rate. The pre-tax discount rates are derived from the Group's weighted
average cost of capital, taking into account the cost of capital and borrowings, to which specific market-related premium adjustments are
made for each territory. The pre-tax discount rates for the UK was 9.1% (last year 8.6%). If the CGU relates to a store which the Group has
identified as part of the UK store estate programme, the additional key assumptions in the value in use calculations are costs associated with
closure, the disposal proceeds from store exits and the timing of the store exits.
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
Impairments — UK stores (excluding the UK store estate programme)

During the year the Group has recognised an impairment charge of £26.8m and no impairment reversals as a result of UK store impairment
testing unrelated to the UK store estate programme. These impairments have been recognised within adjusting items {see note 3).

For UK stores, cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using the Group’s current view of achievable long-term growth of
2.3%, adjusted 1o 0% where management believe the current trading performance and future expectations of the store do not support the
growth rate of 2.3%. This rate combines the long-term inflation rate of 1.8% with a 0.5% real uplift for growth. This is higher than the rate used
in the prior year, reflecting our confidence in the ability of the strategic programme to transform the business and achieve a higher terminal
growth rate. The rate used to discount the forecaslt cash flows for UK stores is 9.1%.

As disclosed in the accounting policies (note 1), the cash flows used within the impairment model are based on assumptions which are
sources of estimation uncertainty and smalt movements in these assumptions could lead to further impairments. Management has performed
sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions in the impairment mode! using reasonably possible changes in these key assumptions across the
UK store portfolic.

A reduction in sales of 2% from the three-year plan would result in an increase in the impairment charge of £3.4m and a 20 basis point
reduction in gross profit margin would increase the impairment charge by £1.4m. In combination, a 1% fall in sales and a 10 basis peint fali
in gross profit margin would increase the impairment charge by £2.4m. Reasonably possible changes of the other key assumptions, including
reducing the long term growth rate to 0% across all stores, would not result in an increase to the impairment charge.

Impairments — UK store estate programme

During the year, the Group has recognised an impairment charge of £9.1m relating to the on-going UK store estate programme. The
impairment charge relates to the accelerated and expanded store closure programme and has been recognised within adjusting items {see
note 3).

Where the planned closure date for a store is outside the three-year plan period, no growth rate is applied. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows for UK stores is 9.1%.

As disclosed in the accounting policies (note 1), the cash flows used within the impairment models for the UK store estate programme are
based on assumptions which are scurces of estimation uncertainty and small movements in these assumptions cauld fead to further
impairments. Management has performed sensitivity andlysis on the key assumptions in the impairmertt madel using reasonably possible
changes in these key assumptions across the UK store estate programme.

A delay of 12 months in the probable date of each store exit would result in a decrease in the impairment charge of £6.1m. A 2% reduction
in the year 1 sales growth would result in an increase in the impairment charge of £2.5m. Neither a 25 basis point increase in the discount
rate, a 20 basis point reduction in management gross margin during the period of trading nor a 2% increase in the costs associated with
exiting a store would result in a significant increase to the impairment charge, individually or in combination with the other reasonably
possible scenarios considered.
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C% INVESTMENTS
A. INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

Shares in Loans to
Group Group
underakings undertakings Totat
£m fm Em

At 1 April 2017
Cost 1,324.4 05 1,3249
Prévi;iqp for impairment S (378.3} - {378.3)
Net book value 946.1 05 9466
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book value 9461 0.5 946.6
Additions - - -
Provision for impairment 22.9) - (22.9)
Closing net book value 523.2 0.5 923.7
At 31 March 2018 ’
Cost 1,153.9 05 1.154.4
Provision for impairment (2307 - (230.7)
Net book value ' 9232 05 9237
Year ended 30 March 2019
Opening net book value 923.2 0.5 923.7
Additions 45.0 - 46.0
Provision for impairment (46.0) -~ (45.0)
Closing net book value 9232 0.5 9237
At 30 March 2019
Cost 1,199.9 0.5 1,200.4
Provision for impairment (276.7) - (276.7)
Net book value 923.2 0.5 923.7

For impaiment testing purposes the carrying value of the investment held by the Company is compared to the net assets of the subsidiary
companies adjusted for impairments of fixed assets held by the subsidiaries calculated on the same basis as note CB.

B. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of related undertakings, the country of incorporation and the effective
percentage of equity owned, as at 30 March 2019 is disclosed below.

Proportion of shares held by.

Registerad Country of Share Class

address . ‘corporation Company # subsidiary

Watersido
House, 35,
Amethyst Leasng [Holdmngs) Lented Nasth Wharl United Kingdom £ Orchnguy 00% -
. - Road, London,

Amethysr Lessing [Fropertwsl Limted Nosth Wharl Unned Ringdom ~ £1 Orchnasy . 100%

Ande SAR & Antin 25000 France €1,060 Ordanary - wox

24-2% Mary
Aprell Liwled Swool, Dublin 1, Fepuble of €125 Ordenary 100%
odeled
Watenide
Houne, 35,
Busyaxpornt Limied North Whart Urnted Kiegoom £Y Orchiusy 100% -
Raed, London,
w2

Founders
Factory,
. Nonhelffe
House, Young
Streel, London
W8 SEH

£00001 Ordinary D 00d%

Foundurs Fauksry Retal Lermied Unied Karngdom

£O001 Preferted 100%

I3 Hobom, .
Hedqe End Park Limned London, ECIN Unitad Kingdom {1B Ordinary 0%
2"

Haritaga Hall,
Lo Marcham

ignara | imied Steeel, 51 Peter Guernsoy 1 Ordinary - w9 TR
Pory, GY1 4HY,

Guanagy
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B. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Regetered
Ak

Countyof

Won
w P

Share Class

Froportion of shaves hekd by.

Company

A subsichary

Caly Fugncatrel
M&S (Spaus) S 1 No 119, 28010,
Madid, Span
Watersicle
House, 35,
ME&S (wined North Whaf
Ruad, London,
W2 INW
UL Marymanka
11, % pegtro

MES Palard s 20 O i quedated ® May 2019 02474 Warsaw,
Potand -

Vykocilova
14814, 14000
Maiks and Spencet Servces SRO Jraha 4, Machle,
Crach Repubhc
Watersade
House, 15,
Mankoed {Textles) Limited Mowth Whaf
Road, London,
W2 thaw

Marks & Spencer {Partugal) Lda 250143,
Labson, Porugsl
Wateiscle
Houe, 35,

Marks and Spancer Company Archive CIC Nuath Wit

Road, Loncdon,
W2 I

Maks B Spercar Ine Suute 1700,

Marks & Sparcer Outiet Lenuted Notth Whal

Watarside
Hourse, 35,

Maiks wid Sparks Lanted North Wharl
Road, London,
W2 INW

. Linwood, A ey
Marks and Spencer [Akdorhay} Lrmited s Fees,
Aldartney

Asprcra Place, RB
Marks and Spencer (Austiaka) Py Limied Phalip St;:se\:v

2000, Austraba

4th floor, 97 Rue
Royate, 1000
Brussek,
Halghum
Watursde

Marks and Spencer {Balgimn) SPRY

Wacks and Spencet fBradiond) Landed Neorth Wharl

Mark.s and Spencer (Hong Kong) Investments Lwsuted Canton Road,

Fehéevin 0t 50
Marks and Spencer {Hungary) KH 52,1197 .
Hungary
Tower C, RN
Maltgnies, 4th
Floos, Inchs Lake
Marks and Spencer findia) pet Limiced Wing, 11
Murphy Road
Banqgalode.
S40008, Inchy

24 27 My
Muarks and Spences (Ihelend) Lmited” Street, Dubbn 1.
Iictand

31, Ahad Hawm

Masks arud Spencer lsreel) Lemtegt Streel, Tel Ay
#5202, 1srael

15 Esplanade,
Marks and Spancer Uersey] Lwnied S Halwr, B 1
1RB, Jorsey

Prms
Bernhardpken
Murks seid Spance (Nederdland) Bv 200 109718
Amswerdam
Netharlanch

B, Laganbank
Marke and Spancer {Nonhen helaxd) | rmted Rond, Belast,
BT AR

Span

Unnod Kingdom

Peland

Crech Republic

Unned Kingdom

Postugal

Unied Kingdom

Canada

Unized Kingdom

Univercd Kingehown

Guermsey

Austrada

Belguam

Unsted Kingdom

Hong Kong

KRepublic of
ireland

Iwael

Jdwtsay

The Nothetlands

Unnard Ringdom

&1 Orchnaty

£ Chknary

PLN 5000
Ouichrary

Reqistered
Capral

11 Chdinary

€) Orcnaty

Mombership

CAC 1 Comman

EY Onchmvary

£1 Orebinaey

1 Crchnary

ALD 2 Ordinary

€178 Ordmary

11 Ondmary

HKDY Ovdhmney

HUF 780,500,000
Quota

INRIQ Crlirary

€175 Ondinary

NIS Ordirvnry

1 Ordmary

€450 Oty

F1 Onednaey

a11¥%

100%
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

B. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Regmterad
address

Country of
incorporation

Share Class

Proportion of shares held by:

Company A subsiciary

Marks and Spencer (Proper ty Ventures) Limutect

Marks and Spencer {Shanghai) Lmited

Murks and Spencer (Sangapore] bvestments Pia Lid

Mowhs s Spece: 2005 (Brocklands Store) Linmod

Muorks and Spencer 2005 (Chester Satelkite S1ore) Limaied

Marks and Spencer 2004 (Chester Store) Limited

Marks and Spencet X5 {Fie Koad Kngston Store) Limned

Masks and Spencet 2005 {Glasgow Sauchichalk Store) Limited

Marks and Spencer 2005 Hadge End Stoe) Limied

Marks and Spencer 2005 (Kermington Store) Lemitec

Warks a0d Spencer 2605 (Kingaton o Thames Satelitn Siore) Lunated

Manks gl Spencer 2008 (Kngston-on- Thamaos Store) Lemited

Marks and Spencer 200% (Parman House Kingston Stove} Lemnad

Marky and Spercer 2005 Mudsey Store) | rmited

Mainks and Spencer 2005 (Waeringion Gt Stora] Lamited \

Marks and Spencer Chester Limiled

Marks and Spencer Clothing Texide [radng LLC

Marks and Spercer {Commeraal Shanghar) Lmied

Maiks atd Spenoe Crech Rapubhc a o

Markt and Spencer Gueinsey imestments | 1P

Waterscle
House, 35,
North Wharf
Road, London,
W2 INW

Una 0304, &F,
ECO oty 1788
1783 West Nan

W2INW
Havalani Korshi
Istanbul Dunya
Ticaratl Merkezi,

. Jmanbul, Furkey

Room X190,
Block 1, HKRI
laikoo Hui, 283
Shiman No Ona
Road, Jing'An
District,
Shanghaei, China

Peaha 4, Michke,
WVyskocitova
1481/4, Crech
Republx,

Urited Kingdom

Chna

Lirtoed Kenggeboms

Unrted Kingrlom

Uniad Kingdom
Uniled Kingdom
United Kingadom

United Kingdom

Uniied Kingdom
Uniled Kingdom
Unhad Kingdom

Unned Kingdom

lurkey

China

Crech Repubh

Linited Kingdom

01 Oednasy

Regntered
Capitad

No Pa Vale
COrdmary

{1 Oy
{1 Crabnary
£1 Ordanary
£3 Ordmnary
£1 Ordwary
1 Orchinary
1 Ordmaty
1 Orchmaey
11 Ovdwnary
£1 Ovdinary
£1 Orclmary
(1 Ovdnaey

£1 Ouclmaey

TRL 750G
Oxetiniary

Registered
Capital

LK 1,600
Oredinary

2K 100,00
Cndinasy

CTR 1,600,000
Onchramy

Pattreishy
wiletest

W%

jlees
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

B. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS broporton of chares haid by:

Registered Country of

address incorporation  ohare Class Company A subaidiary

Watarside
House, 35,
Marks and Spences Hongary Limied North Wharf Unied Kingdom ¥ Qrchnary - 100%
Road, Lordon,
W2 INW
W atersice
Howse, 35,
Marks and Spencer Investmants North Wharl Unitod Kingdom E1 Onclmany - s
Road, Landon,
W2 INW
FPram.
Bernhardplen
Marks and Spencer By 200, WRIA The Netharlands €100 Ovdinary 0%
Anaterdan,
Netheilands

33 35 Erou
Matks and Spencer Manmopoukes Gieece SA Street, Athens., Greece €3 Orchnaty - s
Grewoy -

No 264
Temmcara

RON 18 30

Muarks and Spencer Romana SA (in hquidanon} e Flooy Romana Ord

Marks and Spence: Proporty Developments Limuted North Whart United Kingdom £1 Orchinmy 100%
Raac], Lovadon,
W2 INW
Watessnie
House, 35, R
Marks and Spence: {Propecty Invostmenta) Liruted Novth Whatl United Kmodkwn £1 Orchnary - 100%
Rowd, London,
W2 INW
Warerside

Marks and Spencer Property Hokimngs | mdad North Whast United Kingdom £ Orcmary woe

NR 10 Class A 1%

Marks arwd Spencet Reliarnce ncha Pot L1 . s N
Maig. Dhoby INR 10 Clas 8 100

INR 10 Class C5 0%

278 5t Nucholas
Partnershp

Marks and Spencet Scottish Lavited Martnershp s,"l ":"ﬂn aBip  UnaedKingdom  Mannen E -
180

Wakerafe
Houan, 35,
Masks and Spencer Shaed Servees Limnted Nocth Wha! Lruteed Kingdnm M Ohdmary o, -
Road, London,
W2 W
Prms
Berohardplain
Marks and Spence Sinrgs BV 200, 107718 The Nathetlands €450 Oedinary 10N
Amaterdam,
Nethetlands
Herlacn Hall
Le Maichant
M5 Gereeral bosurance 1 P Srowat, 5t Pater  Guestey r'::(r::lshnp
Port, GY1 4HY,
Gusminsay
Woobvorths
toua, 93
Maiks and Spericer SA FTY) Lmited IS:'::““‘C[:“')L Scuth Africa ZAR 2 Ondinary Lt
Towen, 3001,
South Atca
Prms
Barnhardplen
Marks and Spences Nedorland (Retail) BY 00, 109018 Netherlands MO0 Ordinary 1
Arrsierdam,
Nethetlarcts
Priny
Herrbhaidplesr:
MAS Mode Internananal BY 200, 1097JR The Natherlands €100 Ordwiary - 100%
Amsterdam,
Netherland:
hearaka cesta b
WSF Sloveke 5 R €3 (Liquedated 28 April 2019) (el P Slovakia e 100%
Slovakie
Watersiche
House, 35,
Marks and Spencen France Limoted North Whatd tnied Kingdom €1 14 Ocdinary 100% -
Hand, {ondon,
W2 INW
MHatarsiie
Howar, 35,
Mintes lon Seveas [muted North Whad United Kinggckons 1 Ordwnary 100% -
Road. {ondon
W2 1IN

Pakdwki mat 102,
Ou MS | s1000a Talhn. 13527, triona
Estona

Reqisiered
capiral
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
B. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Proportion of shares held by:
Registered Country of "
address coporation  hare Class Company A subsidiary
Via Giotto 25
Per Una haka SR (in rquidatont 59100 Prazo, haty £ Quots 100%
Valy
Weiwnida
Housa, 35,
Rty Proopras turs {0 b i} Lamirtecd North Wharf Unitad Kingdom £1 Ordmary 1007% -
Rulry Propertwes (Enhokd) Limited (Stike ol requesied) Unaed Kingdom E1 Onchinary 100% -
Ruby Praparios (Hacheick) L mmited Uimted Kingdoim £1 Onchinaey 100 -
Rukry Propests (Long Eaton) Limuted Unuted Kingdom 1 Ordwnary 100% -
Ruby Properiics (1 hormcibie} Lirated United Kingdom 11 Orchnary 100%
Ruby Froperties (Tunbodge} Limied Unitard Kingodonm §1 Qudwnary 100% -
Sunply Food [Property Investmants} Uniterd Kingedom 1 Oedwnaty - 100%
Simply Food (Property Ventures) Lmsed Unitad Kingdom {1 Ordnary W00% -
House, 35,
St Michae! {Teatiles} Limited North Whart Unitd Kingdom 11 Oednary v 100%
Raxd, London, .
. WRNWL
Waterside
House, 35,
St Mchae! Finance phk North Whaf Unied Kingdom [1 Ovdnary 100% -
Road, Londan,
W2
First 1400r,
Anand Bhawan,
Suptame Tradelnks Proate Limned Samssr Chandss indis INR 10 Orchinary - 100%
Road, foipur,
o= 30200 Indla,
Horitage Hall,
Le Marchant
T s Linwted Sueot, St Pater Guernaey F1 Ovdinary - 1co%
Pon, GY'Y 44H,
oo . Suoweny |
A Goftavto .
UABR MSE Lithuama 408, vilinlaus Lithwiania LTL 100 Owdinauy - 100%
., Lithuania

The Company has guaranteed all of the lisbilites and commitments referred to in Section 35713} (b} of the Companies Act 2014 in respact of the whote of the financisl year ending
30 March 2019 for Marks and Spencar {ireland) Limited and Aprell Limted. These subsidiaries are availing of the ption under Section 357 of the Companies Act 2014 nat te file
their statutory financial statements :

The company (s & Community Imterest Carmpany, not established or conducted for prvate gain i i limited by guarantee of its members and does not have any share copital

The designated membuers of the LLP ate Terans Limited, Ignazia Limited, Aprel! Limited and Marks and Spencer {Ireland) Limited

INR 10 Class C shares 100% owned by JV parmer,

Marks and Spencer plc is the general partner

[E I N

C. UK REGISTERED SUBSIDIARIES EXEMPT FROM AUDIT

The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 4794 of the Cornpanies Act 2006 for the year
ended 30 March 2019. Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings listed below are registered at Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road,
London, W2 INW, United Kingdom, and all have a single class of ordinary share with 8 nominal value of £1.

Proporuon of shares held by.
Name Registered address Share Class Company number Company A subsidiary
Marks prid Sponcer Senply Fooch Lrmited Watersde House, 35, North Whai! Road, London, W2 INw §1 Ordimary 0479922 100% -
Maiks & Spercer Qutled Erruted Watersxhe Housa, 35, North Wharf Road, London, W2 TNw [} Ordmary 04029568 00% -
Maiky bndl Spencer Insainanonal Hokdings Limied  Waterside Howse. 35, Norh Whad Road, London, Wz Ty 1 Crdnary 02615081 0% -

The Company will guarantee the debts and liabilities of the above UK subsidiary undertakings at the balance sheet date of £38.4m in
accordance with section 479C of the Companies Act 2006. The Company has assessed the probability of loss under the guarantee as
remote.



Marks and Spencer pic

COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
209 08
fim fm
Non-current
Unlisted investments 99 9.9
Other investments' ’ 48 6.0
14.7 15.9
Cureent . -
Gther investments T T 135.6 5.8

1 Non-cunent other investments are £4 Bm (last year £6.0m] shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc held for employee share schemes

Non-current unlisted investments are carried as fair value through other comprehensive income (available for sale assets before 1 April 2018).
Other financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in their value taken to the income statement.

C11 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

219 2018
Em fm
Non-current
Prepayments and accrued income 96.2 N.2
96.2 .2
Current
Trade receivables 118.8 1128
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables {10.2) {6.1)
Trade receivables — net 108.6 105.7
Other receivables 141 13.6
165.4 156.1

Prepayments and accrued income
Amounts owed by parent company
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies

25627 25633
2895 35204
3,405 43601

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £4.9m {last year £21.1m) and are mainly sterling denominated. The
Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value,

As at 30 March 2019, £192.9m (last year £629.7m) of the intercompany receivable is interest bearing. Overall the interest receivable during
the year was £8.8m (last year £9.9m). Interest rates are set within individual intercompany loan agreements however are approximately in line
with LIBOR. The remaining £2,659.3m (last year £5,454 Om) of intercompany receivables are interest-free.

C12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents are £144 8m (last year £23.8m). The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

The effective interest rate on short-term bark deposits is 0.71% {last year is 0.05%). These deposits have an average maturity of 2 days {last
year 3 days).
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:

2019 2018

fm fm

Cash at bank and in hand 217.0 130.4
Bank loans and overdrafts {72.2) 86.6)
Bank loans and overdrafts treated as financing - 50.0
1448 938

1
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

N9 2018
(Restated)
fm fm
Current
Trade and other payables 969.0 8739 .
Social security and other taxes 29.4 423
Accruals 438.5 3408
Deferred income . 509 46.5
Armounts owed to subsidiaries 1,283.7 4,459.3
2,771.5 5.782.8
Non-current
Other payables 30 4.6
Accruals 265.8 279.4
Deferred income 258.1 264.3
5269 548.3

Other payables, accruals and deferred income

As at 30 March 2019, £627.5m {last year £975.7m) of the intercompany payable is interest bearing. Overall the interest payable during the
year was £14.4m (last year £12.9m). Interest rates are set within individual intercompany loan agreements however are approximately in line

with UBOR. The remaining £656.2m (last year £3,660.0m) of intercompany payables are interest-free,

Amourts owed to subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been restated. Refer 1o note C22 for further details.

Under IFRS 15, disclosure of contract liabilities held on the balance sheet at the start and end of the period and revenue recognised during
the period which relates to the contract liabilities held at the start of the period is required. Gift card liabilities/voucher schemes are contract
liabilities as payment has been received for a performance obligation which will be performed at a later point in time. Included within trade

and other payables are gift card/voucher scheme liabilities:

2009
£

Year ended 30 March 2019
Opening balance 194.2
Issues 408.5
Released to the income statement (420.7)
1820

Closing balance

The Company operates a number of supplier financing arrangements, under which suppliers can obtain accelerated settlement on invoices
from the finance provider. The Company settles these amounts in accordance with each suppliers agreed payment terms.

The Company's trade creditors balance includes £200.0m (Jast year £212.0m) relating to payments due to M&S suppliers under these
arrangements. During the year ended 30 March 2019 the arangements were used by 183 suppliers, with a maximum facility available of

£381.0m.

C14 BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

019 2018
fm fm
Current

Bank loans and overdrafts! 722 86.6
Finance lease liabilities 0.1 0.1
6.125% £400m Medium Term Notes 20197 3998 -
Interest accrued on Medium Term Notes 3741 369
Revaluation of Medium Term Notes 3.7 -
512.9 123.6

Non-current
6.125% £400m Medium Term Notes 2019? - 400.1
6.125% £300m Mediurmn Terrn Notes 20212 298.7 298.2
3.00% £300m Medium Term Notes 20237 297.4 2969
4.75% £400m Medium Term Notes 20252 399.3 397.5
7.125% US$300m Medium Term Notes 203734 1921 1920
Revaluation of Medium Term Notes 458 381
Finance lease liabilities 40.1 414
1,2734 1,664.2
1,7863  1,787.8

Total

Bark loans and overdrafts in the prior year indude a £5.9m loan from the Hedge End FPark Limited joint venlure that was repaid duting the pear fsee note C21}

These notes are issued under Marks and Spencer plc’s £3bn European medum-term note programme and all pay interest annually.

1
2
3 interest on these bonds s payable semi-annually.
r

US$300m medium-term notes exposure swapped 16 sterling (lixed-to-fixed cross currency nterest rate swaps).
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C14 BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES CONTINUED

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on the following page. The weighted average lease term
for equipment is nil years {last year two years) and 91 years {iast year 93 years) for property. Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate. Al
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments. The Company’s cbligations
under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.

C15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Treasury policy

Marks and Spencer plc is the main treasury entity of the Group and as a result the treasury function is managed through this company. The
term Company and Group are therefore interchangeable in the risk analysis below. The Company operates a centralised treasury function
to manage the Group's funding requirements and financial risks in line with the Board approved treasury policies and procedures, and their
delegated authorities.

The Company's financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, cash and liquid reseurces and various items, such as trade
receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the
Company’s operations.

The Group treasury function also enters into derivative transactions, principaily interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward currency
contracts. The purpose of these transactions is 1o manage the interest rate and foreign currency risks arising from the Group's operations
and financing.

t remains the Group's policy not to hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints necessitate
the need to liquidate any outstanding investments. The treasury function is managed as a cost centre and does not engage in speculstive
trading.

Financial risk management

The principal financial risks faced by the Group are liquidity and funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty risks. The policies
and strategies for managing these risks are summarised on the following pages:

{a} Liquidity and funding risk
The risk that the Company could be unable to settle or meet its obligations at a reasonable price as they fall due:

- The Group's funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering sufficient headroom, maturity and flexibility and cost-
effectiveness to match the requirements of the Group.

- Marks and Spencer pic is financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, Medium Term Notes and a committed by a
syndicated bank.

- Operating subsidiaries are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings and intercompany loans.

Al year end, the Company had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit facility of £1.1bn set to mature on 15 April 2023. These facilities
contain only one financial covenant being the ratio of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable; to interest
plus rents payable. The covenant is measured semi-annually. The Company also has a number of uncommitted facilities available to it. At
year end, these amounted to £100m (last year £100m), all of which are due to be reviewed within a year. At the balance sheet date a sterling
equivalent of £nil (last year £nil} was drawn under the committed facilities and £nil (last year £45m) was drawn under the uncommitted facilities.

In additior to the existing borrowings, the Company has a Euro Medium Term Note programme of £3.0bn, of which £1.4bn (last year £1.4bn}
was in issuance as at the balance sheet date
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

The contractual maturity of the Company's non-derivative financial liabilities {excluding trade and other payables {see note C13)) and
derivatives is as follows:

Bank loars  Syndicate Finance
and d bank Medium lease Darrvatrve Dervatrve
overchafis acilny termm notes habihties Total assets’ liabiities? Totat
£m frm £y fm im £m £m im
Timing of cash flows
Within one year (86.6) - 86.1) {(1.8) (174.5) 303 82.0) “1.7
Between one and two years - - {486.1) (1.8) {487.9) 219 {18.1) a8
Between two and five years - - {4656.3) {5.3) (471.6) 2700 {248.5) 215
More than five years - - (1,207.2) (148.2) (1,355.4) 223.1 {198.5) 24.6
(86.6) - {2,2457) (157.1)  (2,489.4} 545.3 {557.1) (11.8)
Effect of discounting and foreign exchange - - 585.9 115.7 701.6
At 1 April 2018 {86.6) - {1,659.8) {41.4) (1,787.8)
Timing of cash flows
Within one year 72.2) - (487.2) 1.7) (561.1) 590 (28.6) 304
Between one and two years - - 62.7} (.7 64.4) 242 (16.2) 8.0
Between two and five years - - 751.3) (5.2) (756.5) 2824 (241.4) 41.0
More than five years - - {895.5)  (140.7) (1,036.2) 230.8 (191.5) 39.3
72.2 - {2196.7) (149.3) (2418.2) 596.4 (477.7) 118.7

Effect of discounting and foreign exchange - 522.9 109.1 632.0

At 30 March 2019 (72.2} - (1,673.8) (40.2) (1,786.2)
1. 1. The cash flows relating to finance lease habafities reflect the remaining minimum lease payments which were fixed st nception and therefore are reflocted within the present value of finance
lease fiabslities At 30 March 2019 the total value of addonal committed contingent rents are £382.6m which will be expensed as nasred. In the year anding 30 March 2019 content rents of

£35.0m ware racogrised within the operatmg lease rentals payable.
2 Cerivatve cash flows are dreclosed on actual settlement. All denvatives sre settied net, except for cumency swaps.

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

2019 018

£m Em
Within one year 0.1) {0.1}
Later than one year and not later than five years (0.4) {0.4)
Later than five years (39.7) 409y
Total {40.2} 41 .4}

{b) Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk exists where the Company can suffer financial loss through default or non-performance by financial institutions with whom
it transacts.

Exposures are managed in accordance with the Group treasury policy which limits the value that can be placed with each approved
counterparty to minimise the risk of loss, The minimum long-term rating for all counterparties is long term Standard & Poor's {S&P)/Moody's
A-fA3 (BBB+/Baal for committed lending banks). In the event of a rating by one agency being different to the other, reference will be made
to Fitch to determine the casting vote of the rating group. In the absence of a Fitch rating the lower rating will prevail. Limits are reviewed
regularly by seniar management. The credit risk of these financial instruments is estimated as the fair value of the assets resulting from the
contracts.

The table below analyses the Company’s short-term investments and derivative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store
cash and cash in transit.

Credit rating of cqunterparty

AAA Al Ak As A A 8BB+
fm £fm im im ftm fm fm Tatal
Short-term investments’ - - 05 4.4 - - - 49
Derivative assets? - - - - 8.0 - 29 10.9
At 31 March 2018 - - 0.5 4.4 8.0 - 29 15.8
ABA Al Ab- A+ A A BBB+
£fm m fm fm fm £m fm Total
Short-term investrnents! - - 05 145.0 800 - - 2255
Derivative assets? - - 17.3 21.0 11.8 - 03 50.4
At 30 March 2019 - - 17.8 166.0 1.8 - 03 2759
1. inciudes cash on deposit held by Marks & Spencer plc
2 Dervative balances have been assessed per counterparty Where a counterparty has both derivative sssets and derrvative liabilives, the net position is reflected in the table above

3 Standad & Poor's Glabal Ratings equivalent 1ating shown as reference to the majority credit rating of the counterparty from either Standard & Poor's Global Ratings, Moody's or
Frch whers appheable. Excludes ali intarcompany dervatives executed on behall of group companies by Marks and Spencer PLC as none of the entities have credit 1atings.
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COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

The Company has very low retail credit risk due to transactions being principally of a high volume, low value and short maturity.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was as follows: trade receivables £118.8m (last year £112.8m), other
receivables £14.1m (£13.6m), cash and cash equivalents £217.0m {last year £130.4m) and derivatives £60.5m {last year £34.3m).

Impairment of financial assets
From 1 April 2018, the Company's financial assets subject to the expected eredit loss (ECL) model are primarily trade and other receivables.

The credit risk management practices of the Company include internal review and reporting of the ageing of trade and other receivables by
days past due by a centralised accounts receivable function, and grouped by respective contractual revenue stream, along with fiaison with
the debtors by the credit control function.

From 1 April 2018, the Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach in measuring expected credit losses which use a lifetime expected
credit loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped by shared credit rigk characteristics along the lines of differing
revenue streams such as international franchise, food, UK franchise, corporate and sundry as well as by geographical location and days past
due.

The expected loss rates are determined based on the average write-offs as a proportion of average debt over a period of 36 months prior
to the reporting date. The historical loss rates are adjusted for current and forward-looking information where significant. The Group
considers GDP growth, unemployment, sales growth and bankruptcey rates of the countries in which goods are sold to be the most relevant
factors, and where the impact of these is significant adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

The Group considers credit risk to have significantly increased for debts aged 180 days or over. The Group has incorparated this into the
expected foss model through a uniform loss rate for ageing buckets below 180 days dependent on the revenue stream and country and
providing for 100% of debt aged over 180 days past due. Where the Group spedifically holds insurance or holds the legal right of offset with
debtors which are also creditors, the loss provision is applied only to the extent of the uninsured or net exposure.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. indicators that there may be no reasonable expectation
of recovery include the failure of the debtor to engage in a payment plan, and failure to make contractual payments within 180 days past
due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit and subsequent recoveries are
credited to the same line item.

Upto Ddays 31-60days past  61-90 days past 91180 days 181 days or
Current past due che due past due  more past due Totsl
fm £m fm fm fm fm £m
Gross carrying amount - trade receivables 1115 30 0.6 0% 1.1 1.7 118.8
Expected loss rate 7.03% 3.18% 9.20% 18.17% 2845% 100.0% 8.57%
Lifetime expected credit loss 79 - 0.1 0.2 0.3 1.7 10.2
Net carrying amount 103.6 3.0 05 0.7 08 - 108.6

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at 30 March 2019 reconciles tc the opening loss allowances as follows:

Trade receivables expected loss provision £
31 March 2018 - calculated under 1AS 39 6.1
Amaounts restated through opening retained earnings 0.6
Opening loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 calculated under IFRS 9 6.7
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit and lass during the year 3.7
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable 0.2)
At 30 March 2019 10.2

In relation to other financial assets not forming part of trade receivables, a simplified approach is utilised where lifetime expected credit
losses are calculated rather than 12 month expected credit losses. For ex-employee debt the average write-offs are divided by the average
debtor balance to determine a write off rate, fees from collection agencies used to collect the balances are factored into the loss allowance
based on the size of the individual debt and future unemployment rates are factored into the calculation of allowance as well as the impact
of discounting of the aged debt.

The loss allowance for other receivables is recognised within provisions within current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The closing loss allowance as at 30 March 2019 reconciles to the opening loss allowance as follows:

Other receivables expected loss provision £m
31 March 2018 - calculated under 1AS 39 04
Amounts restated through opening retained earnings {0.1)
Opening loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 calculated under IFRS 9 03
Increase in loan loss allowance recognised in profit and loss during the year 06
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable {0.6)
At 30 March 2019 03
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I the prior year, the impairment of trade and other receivables was assessed on an incurred loss mode! basis. Individual receivables that
were considered 1o be uncollectable were written off by reducing the carrying value directly. Individual receivables were assessed to
determine if there was evidence of impairment, and losses were recognised in a separate provision for impairment. The Group considered
the following to be indicators of evidence of impairment:

- Significant financial difficulties of the debtor.
- Probability that the debtor would enter bankmuptcy.

- Default of late payments, the extent to which they were overdue being determined on a case-by-case basis with reference to the
knowledge and communication with the debtor and their refationship with the business.

The impairment loss provision in the prior year opened at £1.7m and closed at £0.4m. Where an impairment provision was recognised,
receivables were written off against the provision when there was no expectation of recovering any further debt.

(c) Foreign currency risk

Transactional foreign currency exposures arise primarily from the impont of goods sourced from overseas suppliers and also from the export
of goods from the UK to overseas subsidiaries. The most significant exposure is to the US dollar incurred in the sourcing of Clothing and
Home products from Asia.

Group Treasury hedges these exposures principally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively based on dynamic forecasts
from the business. Hedging begins arcund 15 months ahead of the start of the season and is between 80% and 100% hedged nine months
before the star of the season.

At the balance sheet date the gross notionat value in sterling terms of forward foreign exchange contracts amounted to £1,985.1m {last year
£2,167.0m) with a weighted average maturity date of six months {last year six months}.

Gains and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 30 March 2019 will be released to the income statement at various
dates over the following 17 months {last year 17 months} from the balance sheet date.

The FX forwards are designated as cash flow hedges of highly probable forecast transactions. Both spot and forward points are designated
in the hedge relationship, under IFRS 9 the currency basis spread may be excluded from the hedge relationship and recognised in OCi - cost
of hedaing reserve. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument, to the degree effective, is retained in OCl and recycled to stock
as part of the 'basis adjustment’. This will be realised in the income statement once the hedged item is sold. There have been no
discontinued or restarted hedges, and no ineffectiveness in the FX forwards has been reported this financial year or last.

The FX forwards are recognised at their fair value {IFRS 13 level 2 measurement), the Group has considered and elected not to apply
credit/debit valuation adjustments, owing to their relatively short dated nature. The risks at the reporting date are representative of the
financial year.

The Group previously used a combination of foreign currency debt and foreign exchange contracts to hedge its net balance sheet translation
exposure by currency arising from investment in overseas operations. The treasury policy was changed during the previous financial year and
the Group no longer hedges these and all contracts outstanding were terminated in the prior year.

The change in the fair value of the designated hedging instrument, to the degree effective, is retained in OCl, segregated by cost and effect
of hedging. The Company also holds a number of cross currency swaps to designate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling debt.
These are reported as cash flow hedges, Under IFRS 9 the currency basis on the cross currency swaps is excluded from the hedge designation
and recognised in OCI - cost of hedging reserve. Effectiveness is measured using the hypothetical derivative approach. The contractual
terms of the cross currency interest rate swaps include break dauses every five years which allow for the interest rates to be reset {last reset
December 2017). The hypothetical derivative is based on the original critical terms and so ineffectiveness may result.

The cross currency swaps are recognised at their fair value (IFRS 13 level 2 measurernent), the Group has considered and elected to apply
credit/debit valuation adjustments, owing to the swaps’ relative materiality and longer dated nature.

After taking into account the hedging derivatives entered into by the Company, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Company's
financial liabilities excluding short-term, is set out below:

P10 i
Fixed rate Floating rate Total Fixed rate Floating rate Total
fm Em £m £m fm
Currency
Sterling 1,339.1 447.2 1,786.3 12762 511.6 1,787.8
1.339.1 447.2 1,786.3 1,276.2 511.6 1,787.8

The fioating rate sterling borrowings are linked to interest rates related to LIBOR. These rates are mainly for periods of six months.

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, post hedging the GBP and USD fixed rate borrowings are at an average rate of
4.8% {last year 4.7%) and the weighted average time for which the rate is fixed is five years (last year six years).

(d) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk in relation to sterling variable rate financial assets and liabilities.

The Group's policy is to use derivative contracts where necessary to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage this risk.

The structure and maturity of these derivatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as fair value or cash flow
hedges as appropriate.

At the balance sheet date, fixed rate borrowings amounted to £1,339.1m (last year £1,276.2m) representing the public bond issues and
finance leases, amounting to 75% {last year 71%) of the Group's gross borrowings.
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The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

2019 018

% %

Committed and uncommitted borrowings - 10
Medium-term notes 48 47
4.1 4.1

Finance leases

The interest rate swaps are recognised at their fair value {IFRS 13 level 2 measurement). The Group has considered and elected to apply
credit/ debit vatuation adjustments, owing to the swaps’ relative materiality and longer dated nature. The contractual terms on £150m of the
£175m notional of interest rate swaps relating to the 2025 debt allow for early termination every five years {next optional termination date
April 2023). Variable interest periods on the pay legs are 6 monthly compared with 12 monthly on the receive fixed legs and related debit.

Derivative financial instruments

The below table illustrates the effects of hedge accounting on the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated income
statement through detailing separately by risk category and each type of hedge the details of the associated hedging instrument and hedged

item.
30 Mareh 2019
Current Non Current
Forward foreign Forward toreign Interast rate  Cross-currency Forward fareign InteTest rate
exchange exchange contracts swaps swaps  exchange contracts swaps
contracts
im Em im fm fm £
Cash flow Held for  Fairvalue  Cash flow Cash flow  Fair value
Hedging risk strategy hedges trading hedges hedges hedges hedges
Notional / currency legs 1,1940 5881 2000 1935 203.0 1750
Carrying amount assets / (liabilities) 207 03 53 4.0 (1.8 146
Maturity date to Mar 2020 to Mar 2020 Dec 2019 Dec 2037 to Sep 2020 Jun 2025
Hedge ratio 100%’ 100% 100% 100% 100%:! 100%
Inter-cormpany
Highly probsble  loans/ deposia & Highly protrable
transacucnal FX subsidiary FX  GBP fixed rate  USD fixed rate vansactional FX  GBP fixed rate
Description of hedged item exposures exposures borrowing borrowing wxposures borrawing
Change in fair value of hedging
instrument? 923 {1.5) 5.0) 79 20 05
Change in fair value of hedged item
used to determine hedge effectiveness? 92.3) 54 50 4.4 (2.0) 0.4
Weighted average hedge rate for the GBP/EUR 1.12, GBP/EUR 1.12,
year GBP/AUSD 1.35 N/A 3.4% 7.3% GBP/JSD 1.32 3.2%
Amounts recognised within finance
costs in profit and loss? - 39 - (35) - 0.1
Balance on cash flow hedge reserve at
30 March 2019 7.9 N/A N/A 8.49) 1.0 N/A
Balance on cost of hedging reserve at
30 March 2019 - N/A N/A {14.5) - N/A

1 Percantage of the smount permitted under treakury poahcy in relation 1o kayered hedges on a ofling basis
2 The £1.4m far value change represented in the fair value movament of the forwaid cortiacts under the hald lor trading strategy is used to economically hedge for certan intercompany loans/deposits

which are represented n the £5.3m ax the net foreign exchange gains and losses under this strategy
3. Amount in relation to cross currency swaps represents ineffectveness

31 March 2018
Notional Value Fan Value
Asseis Liabiluies Assets Liabilities
fm fm fm fm
Current
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 1518 1,169.0 18 73.4)
- held for wading 3836 2745 54 (3.6
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges - - - -
535.4 14435 72 77.0)
Non-current
Cross currency swaps - cash flow hedges - 1935 - (26.7)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 474 140.7 0.4 40
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 425.0 - 26.7 -
4724 334.2 271 (30.7)
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Derivative finandial instruments continued

30 March 2019
Notonal Value Fair Value
Assots Liabilities Assets Lisbilities
fm £m £m fm
Current
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 855.4 328.6 267 6.0)
- held for trading 2834 304.7 8.7 (8.4)
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 2000 - 5.3 -
1,348.8 633.3 40.7 (14.4)
Non-current
Cross currency swaps - cash flow hedges - 193.5 4.7 0.7
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 84.8 118.2 05 (2.1}
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 1750 - 14.6 -
259.8 Nz 198 (2.8

The Group's hedging reserves disclosed in the consclidated statement of changes in equity, relate to the following hedging instruments:

Cast of Centaf  Deferred Total Hedge Hedge Hedge Hedge Deferrad Total
hedging hedging tax costof  reserve FX resarve resgTvy rersenve tax hadge
resenve FX reserve hedging  dervatives CCIRS  gilt locks 2037 ressrve
derivatives CCIRS! resorve deb
fm fm £m £m £m &m fm fm fm im
IAS 39 closing balance - - - - 60.7 88 04 308 (15.8) 67.3
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS ¢ 08  (139) 2.4 0.7 {0.8) - - 13.9 2.4 10.7
Opening Balance 1 April 2018
under IFRS 9 08 (139 24 (10.7) 599 8.8) 04 447 {18.2} 78.0
Add: Change in fair value of
hedging instrument recognised in
OcCi - - - - {108.9) - - {19.2) - (128.1)
Add: Costs of hedging deferred :
and recognised in OCI (0.8) 0.7) - (1.5) - - - - - -
Less: Reclassified to the cost of
inventory - - - - 422 - - - - 42.2
Less: Reclassified from OCl to
profit or loss - - - - - - - 158 - 158
Less: Reclassified from OCl to
profit or loss - included in finance
costs - - - - - 0.4 ©2 - - 0.2
Less: Deferred tax - - 05 0.5 - - - - 2.8 98
Closing Balance 30 March 2019 - (146} 29 (11.7) 6.8) {8.49) 02 413 8.9 17.9

1. Cross-currency interest isle swaps.

There were no reclassifications from the cashflow hedge reserve to profit and loss during the period in relation to forward currency contracts.

The Group holds a number of interest rate swaps to re-designate its sterling fixed debt 1o floating debit. These are reported as fair value
hedges, The ineffective portion recognised in the profit or loss that arises from fair value hedges amounts to a £0.1m gain (last year £0.4m
gain) as the gain on the hedged iterns was £4.6m (iast year £15.0m gain) and the movement on the hedging instruments was £4.5m loss (last
year £14.6m loss).

Movernent in hedged items and hedging instruments

019 2018
fm fm

Net (loss} in fair value of interest rate swap (4.5} (14.6)
Net gain on hedged items 4.6 150
Ineffectiveness 01 04

The Group holds a numbser of cross-currency interest rate swaps to re-designate its USD to GBP fixed debt. These are reported as cash flow
hedges. The ineffective portion recognised in the profit and loss that arises from the cash flow hedges amounts to a £3.5m loss {last year
£2.3m loss) as the gain on the hedged items was £4.4m {last year £24.9m gain) and the movement on the hedging instruments was £7.9m
loss {last year £27.2m loss).
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Movement in hedged items and hedging instruments

09 e

. Em fm

Net gain in fair value of cross-currency interest rate swap 4.4 249
Net (loss) on hedged items 79 (27.2)
ineffectiveness (3.5) (2.3)

Sensitivity analysis

The table below illustrates the estimated impact on the income statement and equity as a result of market movements in foreign exchange
and interest rates in relation to the Group's financial instruments. The directors consider that a 2%+/- (last year: 2%) movement in interest
and a 20% +/- {last year: 20%) movement in sterling against the relevant currency represents a reasonably possibie change. However this
analysis is for illustrative purposes only.

The: table excludes financial Instruments that expose the Group to interest rate and foreign exchange risk where such a risk is fully hedged
with another financial instrument. Also excluded are trade receivables and payables as these are either sterling denominated or the foreign
exchange risk is hedged.

Interest rates The impact in the income statement due to changes in interest rates reflects the effect on the Group's floating rate debt as at
the balance sheet date. The impact in equity reflects the fair value movement in relation to the Group's transactiona! foreign exchange cash
flow hedges at the balance sheet date. The impact in equity reflects the fair value movement in relation to the Group's cross-currency swaps.

Foreign exchange The impact from foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the fair value of the Group’s transactional foreign
exchange cash flow hedges at the balance sheet date. The equity impact shown for foreign exchange sensitivity relates to derivatives. This
value is expected to be materially offset by the re-translation of the related transactional exposures.

2% decrease in 2% ncrease 205 weskening 20% strangthenng
interest rates in interest rates in sterling in srarling
£m £m fm £m
At 31 March 2018
Impact on income statement: gain/{loss) 20 {2.4) - -
Impact on other comprehensive income: (loss)/gain (15.7 10.7 2478 (254 5}
At 30 March 2019
iImpact on income statement: gain/{loss) 55 4.3) - -
Impact on other comprehensive income: (loss)gain 4.3 26 2624 {262.4)
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Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The following tables set out the financial assets and financial liabilities which are subject to offsetting, enforceabie master netting
arrangements and similar agreements. Amounts which are set off against financial assets and liabilities in the Group’s balarce sheet are set
out below. For trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, amounts not offset in the balance sheet but which could be offset
under certain circumstances are also set out.

Ta reconcile the amount shown in the tables below to the Statement of Financial Position, items which are not subject to offsetting should

be included.

Gross brancial
assets/

Gross financial
{liabilities)

Ne1 financial assets/
fiabilities) per
statemeant of financial

Related amounts not
sut off in the statement

fhabilties) assets set off position of financial position Net
Im fm £m £m £m

At 31 March 2018
Trade and other receivables 313 (29.9) 14 - 1.4
Derivative financial assets 343 - 343 (34.3) -
Cash and cash equivalents 4563 (46.0) 0.3 - 0.3
1119 (759 36.0 {34.3) 1.7
Trade and other payables (2764) 299 (246.5} - (246.5)
Derivative financial liabilities {107 .8) - (107.8) 343 {735)
Bank loans and overdrafts {82.5) 450 {36.5) - (36.5}
{466.7) 759 {39C.8) 343 (356.5)

Net financial assets/
Gross financial Gross financal (habsilities) per Relsted amounts not
assety/ (lisbitivesy  statement of finsncial st off in the statement

(bl ities) assets set ofl positon of finencia! position Net
fm fm £m £m £m

At 30 March 2019
Trade and other receivables 249 1.0 32 - 32
Derivative financial assets 40.6 - 60.6 (17.2) 434
Cash and cash equivalents 348 (34.8) - - -
1203 (56.5) 43.8 (17.2 454
Trade and other payables {264 8) 2.7 (2429 - (2429
Derivative financial liabilities (17.2) - (17.2} 17.2 -
Bank loans and overdrafts {107.%) 348 (72.3) - {72.3}
(388.9) 56.5 {332.4} 17.2 (315.2)

The gross financial assets and liabilities set off in the balance sheet primarily relate to cash pooling arrangements with banks. Amounts which
do not meet the criteria for offsetting on the balance sheet but could be settled net in certain circumstances principally relate to derivative
transactions under ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives Association) agreements where each party has the option to settle amounts on
a net basis in the event of default of the other party.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

- Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Leve! 2: not traded in an active market but the fair values are based on quoted market prices or alternative pricing sources with
reasonable levels of price transparency. The Group's level 2 financial instruments includes interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives
Fair value is calculated using discounted cash flow methodology, future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates and
interest rates {from observable market curves) and contract rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of the various
counterparties for those with a long maturity.

- Level 3: techniques that use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on.chservable market
data.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group held the following financial instruments at fair value:;

209 208
Level ¥ Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
fm £m fm fm £fm fm fm Em

Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair vaiue through
profit or loss
- trading derivatives - 87 - 8.7 - 55 - 5.5
Derivatives used for hedging - 51.8 - 518 - 289 - 289
Short- term investments : . 135.6 - 1356 - 5.8 - 58
Unlisted investments' - - 9.9 g9 - - 29 LAY
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial fiabilities at fair value
thraugh profit or loss
- wrading derivatives - 84) - B.4) - 3.7 - @3.h
Derivatives used for hedging - 8.8 - (8.8) - (104.1) - {104.1}

1. There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy The Group holds £9 9m in unlsted equity securties measured at far vatue through other comprahensive ncome {last year £9 9m
measured as available for-sale) (see note 16) which is » level 3 instrumnent. The (air vaiue of this investment i determined with reference to the net asset vatue of the entity in which the rvestment is hakd,
which in turn derves the majarity of is net asset value through a third party property valuation

The Marks & Spencer DB Pension Schemes holds a number of financial instruments which make up the pension asset of £10,577.0m {last
year £10,425.0m). Leve! 1 and Level 2 financial assets measured at farr value through other comprehensive income amounted to £7,008.6m
{last year £7,152.dm). Additionally, the pension scheme assets include £3,216.1m {last year £2,836.9m) of Leve! 3 financial assets. See note 3
for information on the Group's retirement benefits.

The following table represents the changes in Level 3 instruments held by the Pension Schemes:

2019 2018

fm im

Opening balance 2,8369 14449
Fair value gain/{loss) recognised in othes comprehensive income 136.3 (74.9)
Additiona! investment 2429 1,669
Closing balance 32161 2.8369

Fair value of financial instruments

With the exception of the Group's fixed rate bond debt and the Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme, there were
no material differences between the carrying value of non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities and their fair values as at the
balance sheet date.

The carrying value of the Group's Medium Term Notes was £1,673.8m (last year £1,659.9m), the fair value of this debt was £1,724 0m {last
year £1,761.0m),

Capital policy
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide eptimal
returns for shareholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

in doing so the Group's strategy is to maintain a capital structure commensurate with an investment grade credit rating and to retain
appropriate levels of liquidity headroom to ensure financial stability and flexibility. To achieve this strategy, the Group regularly monitors key
credit metrics such as the gearing ratio, cash flow to net debt and fixed charge cover to maintain this position. In addition, the Group ensures
a combination of appropriate committed short-term liquidity headroom with a diverse and balanced long-term debt maturity profile. As at
the balance sheet date, the Group's average debt maturity profite was five years (last year: six years). During the year the Group maintained
an investment grade credit rating of Baa3 (stable) with Moody's and BBB- (negative outlook (revised from stable during the year)) with
Standard & Poor's.

In order 1o maintain or realign the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, returm capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets 1o reduce debt.

m
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C16 PROVISIONS
2019 2010
Property Restructuring Othar Total Tetal
fm fm fm £m £m
At start of year 2381 15.2 264 279.7 155.0
Pravided in the year 1706 143 60 1909 185.8
Released in the year {31.1) (1.2) {25.2) (57.5) (1.0
Utilised during the year (62.6) (20.9) 09 (84 .4) 47.1)
Discount rate unwind 17.4 - - 17.4 50
Transfer - (1.1} - (1.1) .
At end of year 3324 63 63 3450 2797
Analysed as:
Current 104.9 924
Non-current 240.1 187.3

Property provisions relate to onerous lease contracts and diapidations primarily arising as a result of the dosure of stores in the UK, as part
of the UK store estate strategic programme, together with the centralisation of the London Head Office functions into one building. These
provisions are expected to be utilised over the period to the end of each specific lease.

Restructuring provisions primarily relate to the estimated costs of several strategic programmes and the transition to a single tier UK
distribution network. These provisions are expected to be utilised within the next year.

Other provisions include amounts in respect of potential liabilities for employee-related matiers. The utilisation during the year primarily
related 1o the payment of transition amounts in respect of pay and premia. The release during the year relates to the finalisation of charges
for certain employee related matters provided for during the prior year.

C17 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is provided under the balance sheet liability method, measured on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period of
reversal.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities {after offsetting balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by I1AS 12 - ‘Income
Taxes') during the year are shown below.

Deferred tax (liabilitiesYassets

Land and Capital Other
buildings allowances in Pansion short-term Total
temparary excess of termnporary tempotaty UK
diHferences depreciation difierences differences deferred tax
im fm £m £m fm
At 1 April 2007 {354) (60.4) {210.2} 1.5 (304.5)
Credited/{charged) to the income statement 9Q 304 (8.8} 41 3546
Charged 10 equity - - (37.7} 20.5 (17.2)
At 31 March 2018 (25 5) (30.0 {256.7) 26.1 {286.1)
At 1 April 2018 (25.5) (30.0) (256.7) 261 (286.1)
Credited/{charged) to the income statement 25 22.7 6.4) (3.4) 154
Charged to equity - - 26.0 (10.9) 15.1
At 30 March 2019 {23.0) 7.3 {237.1) 118 (255.6)

Other short-term differences relate mainly to employee share options and financial instruments.

The deferred tax liability on land and building temporary differences is reduced by the benefit of capital losses with a tax value of £61.1m
{last year £53.8m).

Cn 15 Septernber 2014, the Finance Bill received Royal Ascent to enact the previously announced reductions in the rate of corporation tax
te 19% from 1 April 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020.

The Company has continued to remeasure its UK deferred tax assets and jiabilities at the end of the reporting period at the rates of 19%
and 17% based on an updated expectation of when those balances are expected to unwind.

C18 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

__________________________________________ 09 018
Shares fm Shares £m
issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each 2,850,039,477 7125 2,850,039.477 7125

12



Marks and Spencer ple

COMPANY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C19 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Capital commitments

2019 08

fm fm

Commitments in respect of properties in the course of construction 89.7 118.8
Commitments in respect of computer software under development 5.4 7.2
95.1 136.0

B. Cther material contracts

in the event of a material change in the trading arrangements with certain warehouse operators, the Company has a commitment to purchase
property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value, which are currently owned and operated

by the warehouse operators on the Company’s behalf.
See note 5 for details on the partnership arrangement with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme.

C. Commitments under operating leases

The Company leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have

varying tenmns, escalation clauses and renewa rights.

019 08
£m £m

Total future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Within one year , , 402.2 389.3
Later than one year and not later than five years 1.567.7 1,523.3
Later than five years and not later than ten years 16063 1,6166
Later than ten years and not later than 15 years 1,001.2 1,163.6
Later than 15 years and not later than 20 years 286.2 308.9
Later than 20 years and not later than 25 years 131.9 154.8
Later than 25 years 7265 786.8
Total 5,722.0 59433

The total future sublease payments to be received are £212.6m (last year £24.1m).

Of the total commitments under operating leases disclosed above, £299.5m (iast year £172.5m) is already provided for on the balance

sheet as onerous lease provisions with regards to stores identified as part of the UK store estate programme.

C20 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS GIVEN IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities

2019

X8

Em fm
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities after taxation 19.3) 3924
income tax expense 434 (8.2)
Finance costs 118.1 1133
Finance income 64.7) {61.1)
Operating profit 77.7 4364
Decreasef(increase) in inventories 990 (53.8)
(Increasel/decrease in receivables (16.6} 33
Increase/(decrease) in payables 59.9 {290.5)
Adjusting items net cash outflows {125.1) (103.9)
Depreciation, zmortisation and asset impairments 500.3 5308
MNon-cash share-based payment charges 19.1 187
Defined benefit pension funding (37.8) (43.0)
Adjusting operating profit items 3178 517.3
Cash generated from operations §74.3 1,017.3

Adjusting items net cash outflows relate to the utilisation of the provisions strategic programme costs associated with the UK store estate,
organisation, operational transformation, UK logistics, IT restructure, changes to pay and pensions, UK store impairments and property
charges, GMP and other pension equalisation and establishing the Ocado joint venture. Adjusting items M&S Bank relates to M&S Bank
income recognised in operating profit offset by charges incurred in relation to the insurance mis-selling provision, which is a non-cash item.

13
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C21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A. Marks and Spencer Group plc :

During the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group plc of £305.0m (last year £305.0m) and has
decreased its foan to its parent company by £2.1m {last year decrease of £1.6m}. The outstanding balance was £2,548.5m (last year £2,550.6m}
and was non-interest bearing.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, are summarised below:

2019 2018

Transactions Transactions

fm fm
Trading sales {324.5) (350.9)
Rental expense (148.8) {150.8)
Rent receivable 242 239
Interest 5.7 29

B. Hedge End joint venture

Alloan of £5.0m was received from the joint venture on 9 October 2002. It was repayable on five business days notice and was renewed
on 31 December 2017. Inmerest was charged on the loan at 2.0% until 31 December 2009 and 0.5% thereafter. The loan was
extinguished on 8 March 2019 through a capital reduction of the investment in the joint venture by £5.0m.

C. Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set out in notes C4 and C5.

D. Key management compensation
Payments and benefits relating to key management are set out in note 27 of the Group financial statements.

C22 RESTATEMENTS

Capital Withdrawal

During the year ended 1 April 2017, a withdrawal! of capital under the terms of the partnership agreement of £140,000,000 was
made by Marks and Spencer Plc from the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership. This was accounted for as an
intercompany payable within the financial statements for the years ended 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018. This has now been
accounted for as a credit through the income statement and therefore the year ended 31 March 2018 has been restated in these
financial statements to reflect an increase in opening retained earnings and reduction in the payable to the Marks and Spencer
Scottish Limited Partnership. The impact to the Statement of Financial Position can be seen below.

Retirement benefits

As explained within note C5, the second partnership interest {held by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme), entitles the
Pension Scheme to receive a £36.4m annually from 2017 urttil 2031. The second pastnership interest included within the DB Pension
Schemne assets, valued at £470.9m (last year £547.1m) is not a transferable financial instrument and therefore is not included as a plan
asset in accordance with IAS 19 on consolidation, though is included on the Company's Statement of Financial Position.

2018 was the first year of payments related to the second partnership interest. The actuarial valuation of the second parntnership
Interest was calculated incorrectly as it did not take into account the reduction in the value of the second partnership interest asset
as a result of the cash payment. Instead, the cash payment was shown as a company contribution. The correction to the postings
changes the actuarial loss to an actuarial gain for the prior period. However, the gain/lass in the Statement of Changes in Equity
agrees 1o the actuarial adjustments in the pensions note C4. An intercompany creditor of £36.4m remains, which does not represent
a real intercompany balance. This amount needs to be reversed and taken 1o reserves as part of the actuarial revaluation. Foilowing
this adjustment, the actuarial revaluation amounts in the Statement of Changes in Equity will agree 1o the pensions note in C4. The
impact to the finance statements can be seen below.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Previously
reported Adjustments Restated
fm fm fm

Other comprehensive income/{expense):
Rems that will not be dassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes 183.9 364 2203
Other comprehensive income far the year, net of tax 84.5 34 1209
Total comprehensive income for the year 4769 364 513.3
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C22 RESTATEMENTS CONTINUED

Statement of Financial Position

Previously
reported
fm
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5,959.2
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 44357
Equity
Retained earnings 3017

Adjustments
fm

(176.4)
(176.4)

1764

Restated
fm

5,782.8
44593

3,188.1
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C23 IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTED IN THE YEAR

IFRS ¢ and IFRS 15 were new accounting standards adopted in the year and effective for the Company from 1 April 2018. IFRS 15 has not
had a material impact on the financial statements of the Company and the impact of adoption is disclosed within note C1. As IFRS @ has a
more extensive impact on the opening balances of the financial statements of the Company on adoption the impact has been disclosed in

detail below.
IFRS 9

IFRS 9 was adopted using the modified transition approach without restating comparative information. The reclassification and adjustments
in relation to the new impairment rules are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 April 2018 and not reflected in the comparative

balance sheet.

The table below shows the amount of adjustment for each financial statement line impacted by the adoption of IFRS 9.

RS9

As at 31 March 1 April 2018
2008 Adjustrment restated

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position fm im £m
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 15.9 - 159
Current assets .
Trade and other receivables 6,360.1 0.6) 6,359.5
Current liabilities
Provisions 924 ©.1) 923
Equity
Retained earnings onz 0.5 30112
Hedging reserve 67.3) {10.7) 78.0)
Cost of hedging reserve - 107 107
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C23 IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTED IN THE YEAR CONTINUED

The adoption of IFRS 2 Financial Instruments resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. The total impact on the Company's retained earnings is as follows:

fm
Closing retained earings as at 31 March 2018 3017
Increase in provision for trade receivables ‘ 0.5)
Decrease in provision for other receivables 0.1
Adjustment to retained earnings from adoption of IFRS 2 on 1 April 2018 {©.5)
Opening retained samings on 1 April 2018 3011.2

Classification and measurement

On 1 April 2019, the Company's management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets held by the Company and
has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories being fair value through profit and loss (FVPL), fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and amortised cost. Available for sale [(AFS) category allowable under IAS 39 is not an allowable IFRS
9 categorisation. The main effects resulting from this classification are as follows:

FVPL YOG Available for sate Amortised cost
fm fm fm im
Financial assets at 31 March 2018 117.2 - 15.9 37530
Reclassify available for sale financial assets to FYOCI - 15.9 (15.9) -
Opening balance at t April 2018 117.2 159 - 3,753.0
The impact of the changes on the Company's equity is as follows:
AFS resarve FVYOCI reserve
fm .im
Opening balance at 31 March 2018 under 1AS 39 6.9 -
Reclassify available for sale financial assets to FVOCt 6.9 69
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 under IFRS 9 - 6.9

On the date of initial application, 1 April 2018, the Company’s financial instruments were as follows with any reclassifications noted:

Cnginal dassification

Neow classification

Orignal carrying

Diffarence in carrying

{145 39) {IFRS % amount MNew carrying amount AMOWNT
fm fm .« fm
Non-current financial assets
Trade and other receivables Amortised cost  Amontised cost - - -
Awvailable for

Other financial assets sale FVOCI 15.9 15.9 -
Derivative financial instruments FVPL AVPL 271 271 -
Current financial assets
Other financial assets FVPL FVPL 58 58 -
Trade and other receivables Amortised cost  Amortised cost 120.3 119.7 0.8)
Derivative financial instruments FVPL FVPL 72 7.2 -
Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables Amortised cost  Amortised cost 1,296.6 1,296.6 -
Borrowings and other financial tiabilities Amortised cost  Amortised cost 123.6 123.6 -
Derivative financial instrurments FVPL FVPL 770 77.0 -
Non-current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables Amortized cost  Amonised cost 548.3 548.3 -
Barrowings and other financial labilities Amortised cost  Amortised cost 1,664.2 1,664.2 -
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C23 IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTED IN THE YEAR CONTINUED

Derivatives and hedging activities

IFRS § more closely aligns the hedge accounting with financial risk management methodology. All hedge relationships were regarded as
continuing hedge relationships, as all which were designated hedges under IAS 39 as at 31 March 2018 met the criteria for hedge accounting
under IFRS 9 as the Company's risk management strategies and hedge documentation were aligned to the new standard.

Under IAS 39 the Company included the cost of hedging within the hedge relationship. On transition, IFRS 9 allows the choice to separate
aspects of the costs of hedging from the designation within a hedge relationship as part of the hedging instrument. Similarly, under IFRS 9
in relation to cross-currency interest rate swaps, the currency basis is separated into the cost of hedging reserve and separated from the
hedge relationship.

On transition to IFRS 9, a classification change between the hedging reserve and cost of hedging reserve within equity of £10.7m debit to
hedging reserve and credit to cost of hedging reserve was recognised.

impairment of financial assets
The Company helds the following types of financial assets subject to IFRS 9's new expected credit loss model:

- Trade receivables.
- Other receivables.

The Company was required to revise its impairment methodology under IFRS 7 for each of these dlasses of assets. The impact of the change
in impairment methodology on the Company's retained earnings and equity & illustrated above, while a detailed description of the
methodology is included with the credit risk disclosures in note C15.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss
allowance for all trade receivables. This resulted in an increase in the loss allowance on 1 April 2018 by £0.6m for trade receivables and a
decrease of £0.1m for other receivables.

C24 ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Marks and Spencer Group plc.

Marks and Spencer Group plcis the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings 10 consolidate these financial statements at 30
March 2019. The consolidated financial statements of Marks and Spencer Group plc are available from Waterside House, 35 North Wharf
Road, London, W2 TNW.

€25 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year end, the UK Defined Benefit pension scheme purchased additional pensioner buy-in policies with two insurers for
approximately £1.4bn. Together with the two policies purchased in March 2018, the Defined Benefit pension scheme has now, in total,
hedged its longevity exposure for approximately two thirds of the pensioner cash flow liabilities for pensions in payment. The buy-in policies
cover specific pensioner liabilities and pass all risks to an insurer in exchange for a fixed premium payment, thus reducing the Group's
exposure to changes in longevity, interest rates, inflation and other factors.

On 3 July 2019 the Company launched a £250m 8-year GBP bond, unsecured at 3.25%. The bond was fully subscribed.
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GLOSSARY

Closest equivalent  Reconciling items to
APM statutory measure  statutory measure

Definition and purpose

Income statemeant Measures

Movement in
revenuye per the  for- like stores
Income

Statement

Like-for-Fke
revenue growth

M&S.com revenue/ None
COnline revenue

Not Vapplicable

Sales from non like- _-'i’h;io-ér-iéd_-on‘-;-)ériod &%aﬁé-e in ;;Qenue {excluding VAT from stores which have

been trading and where there has been no significant change {greater than 10%) in
footage for at least 52 weeks and online sales. The measure is used widely in the
retail industry as an indicator of sales performance. it excludes the impact of new

stores, closed stores or stares with significant footage change.

FY1819 FY17/18
£m fm
Food
Like-for-Like 56304 57640
Net new space 2730 1760
Total Food revenue 59034 59400
Clothing & Home
Like-for-Like 34793 35342
Net new space 58.0 1368
Total Clothing & Home revenue 35373 346710

Total revenue through the Group's online platforms. These revenues are reported
within the relevant UK and International segment results. The growth in revenues

on a year-on-year basis is a good indicator of the performance of the online

channel and is a measure used within the Group's incentive plans. Refer to the
Remuneration Report within the Marks and Spencer Group ple Annual Report for

explanation of why this measure is used within incentive plans.

Revenue growthat  None
constant currency

Not applicable

The period-on-period change in revenue retranslating the previous year revenue at
the average actual periodic exchange rates used in the current financial year. This

measure is presented as a means of eliminating the effects of exchange rate

fluctuations on the period-on-period reported results.

Fr18/19 FY17/18
fm fm %
International Revenue
Al constant currency 936.6 10813 (134}
Impact of FX retranslation 5.9
Al reported currency 9366 1,087.2  (139)

IJE_F_c;c;gﬁlié:forrjlriv{;_ﬁovement in
revenue growth revenue per the  for-like stores &
adjusted for Easter  income staterment  adjustments for

Easter dates
International Movement in Sales from closure
owned retained revenue per the  markets
and franchise Income

revenue growth at  Statement
canstant currency

Sales from non tke

The period-on-period change in like-for-like Food revenue {excluding VAT)

adjusted for any differences in the timing of Easter between comparative periods.
This adjusted revenue measure is a good indicator of the underlying performance
of the Food business, as it eliminates the effect of Easter trading on period-on

period reported results.

FY1819 Fr17/18

£m fm %

UK Food revenue
Easter adjusted LFL 56304 57136 (1.5)
Impact of Easter 50.1
Like-for-Like 56304 57640 2.3
Net new space 2730 1760
Statutory total 59034 59400 0.6)

The period-on-period change in revenue relating to those international markets in
which the Group continues 1o trade subsequent to the completion of the
International exit strategy retranslating the previous year revenue at the average
actual periodic exchange rates used in the current financial year. This measure is
presented as a means of eliminating the effects of the International exit
programme and exchange rate fluctuations on the period-on-period reported

results.
FY18/19 FY17/18
fm fm %

International Revanue
Reported currency 235.6 10872 (139

Owned exit - (66.4) 100

Owned retained and franchise 9366 1,020.8 82
irnpact of FX retranstation [N} 100 )
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~

Gross margin

Gross profﬁ
margin'

Adjusting iterns None

Profit before tax Profit before tax

and adjusting items

Balance Sheet Maasures

Net debt None

Capital employed  Net assets

Cash Flow Measures

Net cash inflow
from operating
activities

Free cash flow

Other Measures

Capital expenditure None !

Owned retained and franchise at constant

curency 936.6 1,014.7 .7

~ Certain downstream
logistics costs (see
note 2)

Not applicable

Adjusting items {see
note 5)

Reconciliation of net

debt (see note 26)

Refer to definition

See Financial
Review

Not applicable

Where referred to throughout the Annual Repont, gross margin is calculated as
gross profit before adjusting items on a management basis divided by revenue.
The gross profit used in this calculation is based on an internal measure of
margin rather than the statutory margin, which excludes certain downstream
logistics costs. This is a key internal management metric for assessing category
performance.

Those items which the Group excludes from its adjusted profit metrics in order
to present a further measure of the Group's performance. Each of these items,
costs or incomes, is considered to be significant in nature and/or guantum or
are consistent with items treated as adjusting in prior periods.

Excluding these items from profit metrics provides readers with helpful
additional information on the performance of the business across periods
because it is consistent with how the business performance is planned by, and
reported to the Board and the Operating Committee.

Profit before the impact of adjusting items and tax. The Group considers this
1o be an important measure of Group performance and is consistent with how
the business performance is reported and assessed by the Board and the
Operating Committee.

This is a measure used within the Group's incentive plans. Refer to the
Remuneration Report within the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report for
explanation of why this measure is used within incentive plans.

Net debt comprises total borrowings (bank, bonds and finance lease liabilities
net of accrued interest), net derivative financial instruments that hedge the
debt and the Scottish Limited Partnership liability to the UK pension scheme
less cash, cash equivalents and unlisted and short term investments.

This measure is a good indication of the strength of the Group’s balance
sheet position and is widely used by credit rating agencies.

The net total of assets and liabilities as reported in the annual financial
statements excluding assets and liabilities in relation to investment property,
net retirement benefit position, derivatives, current and deferred tax liabilities,
Scottish Limited Partnership liability, non-current borrowings and provisions in
respect of adjusting items, This measure is used in the calculation of return on
capital employed

The cash generated from the Group’s operating activities less capital
expenditure and interest paid.
This measure shows the cash retained by the Group in the year.

Caleulated as the purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets during the year less proceeds from asset
disposals excluding any assets acquired or disposed of as part of a business
combination.

1Gross profit margin is not defined within IFRS but is a widely accepted profit measure being derived from revenue less cost of sales divided by

fevenue.
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